
Form E1A-I (Rev. 11/96) . STATE OF NEW JERSEY .
. APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION AND/OR ABATEMltNT FOR THE IMPROVEMENT,

CONVERSION OR CONSTRUCTION OF PROPERTY PURSUANT TO P.L. 1991, C.441
(N.J.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq.) AND AUTHORIZED BY MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE.

(Itaicized words are defined in law excets on revese side)

(Aes)
in the Municipality of 

City of Newark. in the County of Essx

hereby make claim for a ta exemption and/or abatement of taes, puruant to P.L.1991, Chapter 441, and the authorizing

municipa ordnance, fo premises locted at 302-306 Communipaw Avenue and S Monitor Street

which is fuer describe as Bloc 2050 . Lo 29 on the Tax Map of the municipality.

COMPLETE THE APPLICABLE SECTION itA" OR ItBIt
The following statements are made in suppo of this claim:
A. The subject propert is a one or tw fàily dwllng upon which claimant ha completed:

New constrction;
Conversion or conversion alteration of a building or stuctue into a dwllng;

Improvement of an existig dwlling.

B. The subject propert is a multiple dwllng. commercial or indtrial strctu:

Improvement to a multiple dwllng;
Conversion or conversion alteration of building or struct to a mutiple dwlLing;

Improvement to a commercial or indtrial bulding or structue;

Constrction of multiple dwllng under ta agreent;

Constrction of commercial or indtral strctu under ta ageement

ALL APPLICAN MUST COMPLETE THIS SECTION
A. Date of completion ofnewconstrctfon, convrsio"i or improvement No CoÇ 0 '¡ '5SlAe¿. 19_.
B. Tot cost of project $ 2,879,482.00 L~e lNah~ J .
C. Brief desiption of the natue and ty of construction. conveion. or improvement.

15 residential rental unity (2-low income; 1-mod income and 2-workforce eligible; remainder market rate units),one

commercial/retail unit and 15 on-site parking spaces. Currently owned by bank through foreclosure. Under contract.

IV. Prior exemptions and/or abatement grted under P .L. 1991. c.441 amount to$ 0.00;
. (State "none" ifno prior exemptions have be grted on subjec premises.)
Attched hereto is proof of all maters required (Assesor may require Copy of ordinance evidence of govering

boy's approva of categories of improvements or specific projec improveents, and such additional proof as may be
required to establish eligibilty.)

Attched hereto is a copy of the tax agreeent, ifapplicable, executed be the municipality and claimanl
There are no delinquent or unpaid prope taes nr pealties for non-payment of taes due on the propert.

II.

II.

i cefY that the foegoing statements made by me are true. lam awa
me are willfuly fàse, 1 am subject to punishment.

Date 7/22/2011

Date D Approved
D Disapproved (Ass r)

This form is prescribe by the Director, Division of Taxation, in the Depaent of the Treaur, as required by law and may be

reproduce fo distibution. but no alteration may be made therein without prior approva.

N (13) "Jö\-e~ ""c\v~-'i ~ 2) bSOf 006. 00 lV-C\.c..:~e. tQ."" ce. i ,



APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTION
FOR

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP, LLC

In compliance with Executive Orders of the Mayor of the City (as updated) of Jersey
City, Capital Development Realty Group, LLC (the "Applicant") hereby submits the
following information in support of its application for a Five (5) Year Tax Exemption
under and pursuant to the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency Law
æ.J.S.A. 40A:21-1, et ~.). .
Applicant:

Propert:

Project:

Applicant's General
Contractor:

Applicant's Architect:

Applicant's Attorney:

Capita Development Realty Group, LLC
81-83 Vesey Street
Newark, N.J. 07105-1297
Tel: (973) 491-0403

302-306 Communipaw Avenue and 5 Monitor Street
Block 2050 Lot 29 (flka 25.A, 26.A and P)
Jersey City, N.J.

Fifteen (15) residential units, commercial/retail units on
ground floor and fifteen (15) on-site parking spaces

Highland Port Development
81-83 Vesey Street
Newark, N.J. 07105-1024
Tel: (973) 491-0403

John Jay Boylan, R.A.
125 Magnolia Avenue
Jersey City, N.J. 07306
Tel: (201) 798-8888
Fax: (201) 798-3399

Miles M. Hunter, Esq.
The Law Firm of Miles M. Hunter
81-83 Vesey Street
Newark, N.J. 07105-1297
Tel: (973) 589-8578
Fax: (973) 589-8579
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit:

A. Description of the Property (Survey)
B. Deed (Deed-in-lieu of foreclosure) and Contract of Sale
C. Site Plan
D. Total Project Costs (Acquisition Costs)
E. Funding Sources (Acquisition Only, as deed-in-lieu to mortgagee and

acquiring from mortgagee) .
F. Description of Leases (Residential Leases and Good Faith Estimate of Initial

Rents)
G. Projected Statement of Property Operations

H. Planing Board Resolution

i. Current Tax Assessment

J. Current Tax Payment Status

K. Certificate of Formation, Disclosure Statement and Operating Agreement for

Applicant
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APPLICATION

i. Identification of the Propert: .

The land upon which the Project is located is Block 2050, Lot 29 (f/ka 25.A, 26.A
and P) on the Offcial Tax Maps of the City of Jersey City and more commonly
known as 302-306 Communipaw Avenue and 5 Monitor Street, Jersey City, N.J. The
metes and bounds description òfthe land that constitutes the Property is attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

2. Type of Project:

The Property and the improvements thereon were acquired by the constrction lender

by way of foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure. The Applicant has proposed to
use the Project to provide a project (the "Project") that consists of mixed-income
residential units and commercial space, supported by financing from yarious
governental programs along with a private sector lender. This Project will consist of
fifteen (15) residential aparments (the "Aparments") and commercial/retail space
(the "Commercial Space") on the ground floor, which are in the building located on
the Property. The project will also contain fifteen (15) on-site parking spaces.

The configuration of the Aparments will be as follows:
Two (2) units will be provided for eligible workforce households
Two (2) unt wil be provided for low income households

One (1) unit will be provided for moderate income households
Ten (10) unts wil be provided atthe market rate. The low and moderate
income units are collectively referred to as "Affordable Units".

Each of the aparments wil be equipped with a washing machine and dryer.
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The number, size and anticipated rent for the Affordable Units, workforce and market
rate units wil be as follows and as set forth on Exhibit B:

Number of Number of Square Anticipated Monthly Rent -
Aparents/Type Bedrooms/Bathrooms Footage Gross/Net of Utility

Allowance
One (1) 1 Bd/1bath 658sq/ft* $1052.00/$948.00*
Workforce -

One (1) 2Bd/1bath 861sq/ft* $1227.00/$1097.00*
Workforce
One (1) 2Bd/lbath 861sq/ft* $1227.00/1097.00*
Moderate
Two (2) 2Bd/lbath 861sq/ft* $800.00/$670.00*
Low
Two (2) 1 Bd/1bath 658sq/ft* $1454.00/$1350*
Market
Five (5) 2Bd/1bath 861sq/ft* $1680.00/$1550.00*
Market
Three (3) 2Bd/2bath 861 sq/ft* $1680.00/$1550.00*
Market
* The exact square footage and rents could var. The above represents the average square footage and rent
for each tye of unit.

The Affordable Units wil be available only to those who qualify under the.
relevant federal and state guidelines which are. as follows: Low-Income persons/families
must have a combined income of less than 50.0% of the area's median anual income
Moderate-Income persons/families must have à combined income ofless than 80.0% of
the area's median annual income. Workforce persons/families must have a combined
income ofless than 120% of the area's median anual income. The actual dollar amount
for the income limitation will be adjusted in accordance with the applicable governental
index.

The Applicant will retain Madison Propert Management, LLC (the "Manager")
and the Manager wil be responsible for the screening, qualification and selection of all
tenants who would prospectively occupy Affordable Units and the Workforce units in the
Project.

The following resident services wil be available to residential tenants: None.

3. Financing/Type of Abatement Requested:

a. . Major financing for the Project will be provided by the following:
(i) Magyar Ban loan: $2,098,000.00
(ii) Home Investment Parnership Program ("HOME") funds: $281,482.00; and
(iii)Neighborhood Stabilization Program ("NSP") fuds: $500,000.00.

b. Five (5) Year Tax Exemption
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In light of the above, the Applicant seeks a five (5) yeartax exemption under and
pursuantto the NJ.S.A. 40A:21-1, et seq. and City of Jersey City Ordinance 02.;048
(as amended) as follows:

Year Percentage (%) Tax Estimated Amount
on Improvement

1 st 0.00% $0.00
2nd 39% $13,647.00
3rd 59% $20,645.00
4th 79% $27,643.00
5th 80% $27,993.00
Total n/a $89,928.00

6th 100% $34,991.00

The foregoing is based on the land assessed value of $70,200.00, improvement
assessed value of$506,857.00 and a purchase price of $2,650,000.00. The Proposed
Statement of Property Operations is set forth on Exhibit G.

4. Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is (a) five (5) years
from the date of the adoption of the ordinance granting the ta abatement or (b) five
(5) years from the date of 

the issuance of a certificate of occupancy (whichever later
occur:;).

5. Description of the Project:

The Project sits on a lot that is 7,800 sq/ft or approximately .18 acres on
Communpaw Avenue at Monitor Street. The Project is situated in an area that is a
mix of residential and commercial properties. The Project is beinglhas been acquired
by the Applicant from the constrction lender, which lender acquired title to the
property and the improvements thereon by foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure.

This Project will consist of fifteen (15) residential aparments and approximately
2,440 sq/ft commercial/retail space on the ground level, together with fifteen (15)
parking spaces.

6. Estimate Total Cost of the Project:

The Tota Project Cost from the Applicant's perspective, as set forth in Exhbit D, is
estimated to be $2,831,482.00. The actual constrction costs have paid by the

constrction lender conveying the Property to Applicant. The Applicant's costs are

based on the acquisition price and related expenses.
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7. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses:

A Projected Statement of Operations is attached hereto as Exhibit G.

8. Construction Schedule:

Construction ofthe Project has been substantially completed. Completion of
construction, with the issuance of the final certificate of occupancy, is anticipated to
be completed in approximately one (1) month. This schedule is subject to change
based upon time necessary to obtain governental approvals (if applicable).

9. Real Estate Tax Assessment (2011):

a. Land: $57,700.00
b. Improvements: $0.00
c. Total: $57,700.00

10. Real Estate Tax Information:

The real estate taxes assessed against the Property are as follows:

2010 Tax Year:
1 st/2 nd Quarer 2011 :

$3,983.03
$1,991.52

11. Certificate as to Coinencement of the Project:

Construction of the Project has commenced but has not been completed and no
certificate of occupancy has been issued.

12. Estimated Job to be Created:

Ii is projected that the Project generated approximately thirty-four (34) full time
equivalent constrction jobs dunng the term of construction. The Project wil
generate one (1) part time job for propert management of the Project. The Project
wil not likely generate any direct full time permanent employment opportunities
upon the commencement of operations of the Project as the same relates to the
Apartents. The commercial/retail space can be expected to generatejobs; however,

the same canot be estimated as it depends on the ultimate use of the tenant(s). This
Project has resulted in additional low/moderate and workforce housing and prevents
the building from becoming abandoned or otherwse underutilized. by remaining
vacant. The Project will not cause any loss or displacement of curent employment
opportities or displace any tenants or homeowners. .

13. Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws:

The Project will comply with all applicable redevelopment laws, including those for
the Morris Canal Redevelopment Area where the Propert is located.
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14. Compliance with State and Local Law:

The Project meets the requirements ofthe laws of the State of New Jersey and the
City of Jersey to qualify for a tax exemption. As an existing residential and
commercial use building, the Project conforms to zoning regulations as of right, as an
existing non-conforming use or otherwise pursuant to an approval granted by the
Planning Board on February 28,2006 attached hereto as Exhibit H.

15. Form of Financial Agreement:
Proposed draft attached;

16. Project Employment Agreement and Project Labor Agreement: N/A.
The improvements at the Property are nearly substantially complete and the Applicant
is purchasing the same from the construction lender that acquired the Propert by
deed-in-lieu of foreclosure.

17. Certificate of Formation:

The applicant is a limited liability company formed pursuant to the laws of the State
of New Jersey and is in good stading and qualified to do business in the State of
New Jersey.

Attached hereto as Exhibit K is the certificate of formation, disclosure statement and
operating agreement for Applicant's ownersimembers.

18. Fees: $3,000.00 tax exemption application fee paid by the Applicant.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALL Y LEFT BLANK)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Applicant hereby certifies that it has made a
diligent inquiry to confirm the accuracy of all the information contained in the
Application and that the information set fort in this Application is true and complete to
the best of its knowledge. This Application was revised and re-submitted July 22, 2011.

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP, LLC
a New Jersey limite ompany

,'i;¡;
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Exhibit A
Legal Description/Surey

9



""



,

~ ~ landAmerica.
_ Commonwealth

F)Chi~iÎ ~

AL TA LOAN POLICY

SCHEDULE C
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

File No. 15545
Policy No.

ALL that certain lot, parcel or tract of land, s'ituate and lying in the City of Jersey City, County of
Hudson, State of New Jersey, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a corner formed by the intersection of the northeasterly line of Communipaw Avenue
and the northwesterly line of Monitor Street and running thence;

(1) North 35 degrees 00 minutes west 78.00 feet; thence

(2) North 55 degrees 00 minutes east 100.00 feet; thence

(3) South 35 degrees 00 minutes east 78.00 feet; thence

(4) South 55 degrees 00 minutes west 100.00 feet to the potnt or place of BEGINNING.

FOR INFORMATIONAL PUROSES ONLY: Also known asLot 25.A; 26.A & P in Block 2050 on the City
of Jersey City Tax Map.

Schedule C
ALTA Loan Policy (10-17-92)
NJRB 2-08
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ExhibitB
. Deed
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ll11Iml~æ,I~~i~lIlillllllliim2Ø11l181iiø23661 1/6 '1 ~y.
83/31/2110 Ø9,ii::i1 ~ DEE A ii . . .':(U 0( .Ilk: 11723 Ps: 111. fAlElilU ~'S_ ,-. ~ --wiii..¡ L.Flci . .
lIon. Coty, R..ider 01 Deid.. .' . 1h~ ¡:n. tb,;~ £.Ln, i:~ß'
Reo.ipI No. 3Ø . DIíD IN LIEU OF FORECLOSURE

Th De is made on Februa 22, 2010,by 302 COMMUNIPAW AVENU LLC, a New
Jerey limte ~abilty company, having a mailg addres c/o Paramount Funding Corp., .25 Route

22 Eat, Spr&feld, New Jery 07081, refene to as the Grator, to MB COM AVE., L.L.C,
whose addres is 400 Somerst Stit,New Bruswick, NJ 08901 , refer to as the Grantee.

The word "Grantor" and "Gratee" shall mean iill Grtors and alI Grtees listed above.

"TranBfer of OwnerShip". The Grator grants and conveys (trers ownership of). the
propey descnbe below to the Gratee. ' This trsìer is made for the sum of Ten Dollars
($~ 0.00). The Grator acknowledges reipt of this money.

Tax Map Reference. (NJ.S.A.46:l5-2.1) Municipality of Jerey City

Block No. -2050 Lot Nos. 25.A, 26.A and P

o No Prpery ta identificaon number is available on the date hereof. . (Check box
ihl'licale ).

Propert. The propert consists of the land and an the buildings and structures on the land iii
the City of Jerey City, County of Hudson and State of New Jersey. The legal descnption is:

See Schedule A attched hereto an made apar hereof.

. Being the s.ame preses conveyed to Grtor herein by Deed fiom Anthony Sanchez

dated Febru 7, 2005, an reorded in the Ofce of the Hudson County Clerklegister on

Febru 14,2005, in Deed Book 1470 at page 159.

TIs conveyace is made subject to any and all covenats. eaements and restrictions of
record affectig said premise, subsurace conditions, all goverenta laws, ordinances. an
regulations regarding the use of said premises, and any stte of facts which an accurte survey
might show.

Promises by Grantor. The Grantor promises that the Grantor has done no act to encwnber the
propey. Ths is called a "covenant as to grtor's ac" (N.J.S.A. 46:4-6). This promise mean
tht the Grator ha not allowed anyone else to obtain any legal rights whch afect the propert

(such as by makng a mortgage or allowig ajudgment to be enterd againt Ihe Grtor).

The foregoing EXCEPT AND SUBJECT TO that certn Consction Mortgage and
Seculy Agrement ("Mortgagej date April 9, 2007, an recorded Aprl 10. 2007, in the
Hudson County Regist's Offce in Mortgage Book 15702, page 167.

GRAOR AND GRAE HEREIN DO NOT INTND ACCEPTANCE OF
TRS DEED IN LIEU OF FORECLOSURE TO BE DEEMED TO CONSTTUTE A
MEGER OF THE MORTGAGE REFERRD TO IN THE PREDING PARAGRAPH
WITH THE FEE CONVYED HEREBY. 2Ð100331ÐlÐ023660

3/31/211Ø 9,69,eø Il
Condder.U"" $1.00
Ex_i.Co.., Ex..1
CounlY:$.Øl &i.te,$,ØØ
NJAlF $.00 PH?: S.øø
EM:$.Øe G...,.I:$.oo
8ur's Fee: S."
Tolal RTF, $.00

MEl 93.782470.\
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Sigitare. Th Or sign th De 18 of 
th da at 1he to of the fi pa.

W"it by: 302

1'Cl'()Name: . .

STATE OF NE JE. COUN OF i)(9.t;~¿ .8S.:

.BE IT REER, th on tbs'!da of ~,,!,ø.lb ,20lQ be me th sibscriber,
pey ap ',"¿ hi '-i) .. r(AH~D P'd ,Ao wh acowlced un oa to
my øtOIl thih pe (or ifmo th on. ca pc): (a) ii a mebe or mmge
of 3Ð COMMA W AVE UC. th llm II co ii In the withn
Øi and is au to sign 1b wi inen On bobi of th limi1 liability
compy; an (b) as ll _bc or øi, sisecd and deliv t1s insteDt as
th volun ac imd de of 

th limte li i:y, mad 
by vi of auori frm liJ

of it membe.

~I~
~S3 . fI 't'i~ O\)-=~'l - i.

Record and Return to: .
Thomas DaCosta Lobo, Es.

McCarter & English, LLP
Fonr Gateway Center
100 Mulberr Street .
Newark, New Jersey 07107.
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
-

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), made this g.l,
day of August, 2010, between MB COM AVE., LLC, having an address of 400 Somerset
Street, New Brunswick, New Jersey 08901 (the "Seller"), and CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT
REALTY GROUP, LLC, having an address of 81-83 Vesey Street, Newark, New Jersey 07105
(the "Purchaser").

Preliminar Stàtement

WHEREAS, the Seller owns certain propert (as hereinafter described) located at 302
Cornunpaw Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey, and known as Lots 25.A, 26.A & P in Block
2050 on the Tax Map of the City of Jersey City; and

WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell such propert to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
desires to purchase such property, all on the terms and conditions hereinafter provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual promises contained
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Seller and the Purchaser hereby agree as follows:

1. Sale and Purchase. On the terms and conditions hereinafter provided, the Seller
shall sell and convey to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall purchase, the Propert (as such
term is hereinafter defined). .

2. Propert. As used herein, the term "Property" means that property situated in the

City of Jersey City, County of Hudson and State of New Jersey, which is more particularly
described on Exhibit A attached hereto; together with all buildings and improvements thereon
and fixtures attached thereto; together with all rights, privileges, tenements, hereditaments, rights
of way, easements, appendages and appurtenances of such land.

3. Price. The purchase price for the Propert shall be Two Milion Six Hundred

Fift Thousand and 00/1 00 Dollars ($2,650,000.00) (the "Purchase Price"). The Purchase Price
shall be payable at closing, by confrmed fud, subject to closing adjustments as aforesaid.

4. Closing. The closing of title shall occUr no later than ten (10) days after the later
to occur of (a) expiration of the Inspection Period (as defined below) (b) issuance ofa certificate
of occupancy for the Propert, at the offices of McCarer & English, LLP, Four Gateway Center,
100 Mulberry Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102, provided however, if a certificate of
occupancy is not issued for the Property on or before November 1, 2010, either party may
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other in which event neither party shall have
any fuer obligation to the other except such obligations that expressly surive termination of
this Agreement.
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5. Title. (A) Title to the Propert conveyed shall be good and marketable, subject
however to the following:

(i) the state of facts shown on an accurate survey of the Property;

(ii) zoning regulations, and municipal building restrictions, and all other laws,

ordinances, regulations and restrictions of any duly constituted public
authority enacted prior to the closing date;

(iii) other covenants, easements and restrictions which do not materially and
adversely affect the use of the Propert as permitted by zoning and related
ordinances and laws on the date hereof, as well as grants to utility and/or
power companies, the rights of the public in sidewalks and abutting public
rights-of-way, and easements given to the public for water course

maintenance, slope rights or sight rights;

(iv) the lien of current taxes due and payable;

(v) standard exceptions set forth in the form of title insurance policy of the
. title insurance company selected by the Purchaser; and

(vi) any other matter which would constitute an Objection (as hereinafter
defined) that the Purchaser does not waive pursuant to the following

subsection of this Agreement, provided that a title insurance company
authorized to do business in New Jersey agrees (either at normal rates to
be paid by the purchaser or at a special rate to be paid by the Seller) that it
wil insure title free of such Objection or with affirmative insurance
against the enforcement of such Objection against the Property.

(B) The term "Objection" shall mean any title defect or encumbrance
(including any lien), and the matters referred to in subsection (A) above, which renders title to
the Property unmarketable.

(C) Not later than thee (3) business days after the date of this Agreement, the
Purchaser shall order, at the Purchaser's expense, a title report or title commitment from a title
insurance company authorized to do business in New Jersey and a surVey. Within the later of
three (3) business days after its receipt of such title report or title commitment and sureyor the
expiration of the Inspection Period, the Purchaser shall give written notice of any Objections to
the Seller. The Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived any Objection not specified in such
notice that is either set forth in such report or commitment, on the sureyor is otherwise known
to the Purchaser.

(D) The Seller shall have no obligation to bring any action or proceeding or
otherwise to incur any expense or liability (contingent or otherwise) to remedy an Objection. If

2
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the Seller is unable to convey title in accordance with this Agreement or does not elect to remedy
any Objection, the Purchaser may elect either (i) to accept such title as the Seller is able to
convey on the closing date, without any reduction of the Purchase Price or any credit or
allowance on account thereof or any other claim against the Seller, or (ii) to rescind this
Agreement. Such election shall be made by the Purchaser within three (3) days of written notice
by the Seller to the Purchaser to the effect that the Seller is unable to convey title in accordance
with this Agreement or does not elect to remedy an Objection.

(E) Although it is not obligated to do so, the Seller shall have the right to
remedy any Objection. For the purpose of remedying Objections, the Seller shall have the right
to one or more adjournments of the closing date for an aggregate period not exceeding one
hundred and twenty (120) days. If the Seller fails to remedy the Objections prior to the
adjourned closing date, the provisions of sunsection (D) above shall be applicable, and the Seller
shall be deemed to have elected not to remedy the Objections.

6. Inspections; Mortgage Contingency; Tax Abatement; Affordable Housing 

Funding. (A) During the thirt (30) day period following the Effective Date (the "Inspection
Period") and thereafter for so long as this Agreement is in effect, Seller agrees to allow Purchaser
or Purchaser's agents or representatives reasonable access to the Property for purposes of
surveying the Property and to conduct any non-intrusive physical and environmental inspection
of the Property. "Effective Date" shall mean the date when Purchaser is in receipt of this
Agreement executed by both the Purchaser and the Seller. Purchaser shall not conduct or allow
any physically intrusive testing of, on or under the Property without first obtaining Seller's
written consent as to the timing and scope of work to be performed and, upon request of Seller,
entering into an access agreement mutually acceptable to Purchaser and Seller. Purchaser may
terminate this Agreement at any time during the Inspection Period in Purchaser's sole discretion,
for any reason or no reason, by delivering writtèn notice thereof to Seller prior to the expiration
of the Inspection Period. If this Agreement terminates pursuant to this Paragraph (A), the paries
shall be relieved of any fuher obligations hereunder, except such obligations that expressly
surive termination.

(B) Purchaser agrees that, in making any inspections of, or conducting any

testing of, on or under the Property, Purchaser or Purchaser's agents wil carry adequate liability
insurance and, upon request of Seller, wil provide Seller with written evidence of same, wil not
reveal to any third. party not approved by Seller the results of its inspections or tests, and will
restore promptly any physical damage caused by the inspections or testsi Purchaser shall give
Seller reasonable prior notice of its intention to conduct any inspections or tests, and Seller
reserves the right to have a representative present. Purchaser agrees to provide Seller witl a
copy of any inspection or test report upon Seller's written request. Purchaser agrees (which
agreement shall survive closing or termination of this Agreement) to indemnfy, defend, and hold
Seller free and harless from any loss, injur, damage, claim, lien, cost or ~xpense, including

attorney's fees and costs, arising out of a breach of the forgoing agreements by Purchaser in
connection with the inspection and testing of the Propert. Any inspections and testing shall be
at Purchaser's sole expense.

3
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(C) Durng the Inspection Period, Purchaser shall apply for a loan
commitment (the "Loan Commitment") from Magyar Ban ("Ban"). Purchaser's obligation to
proceed with the purchase shall be subject to receipt by Purchaser of the Loan Commitment from
Bank providing for a loan to Purchaser on the following terms and conditions:

(i) Loan Amount: $2,050,000.

(ii) Loan term: Thirty (30) years.

(iii) Interest Rate: Ban's Prime Rate plus 1.25% for the first eighteen

(18) months. Interest rate shall adjust to 5.5% for the next eight and one-half (8 1/2) years.
Interest rate shall adjust as of the commencement of the. eleventh (11th) and twenty-first (21 5t)
years to a rate equal to the ten (10) year Federal Home Loan Bank amortizing rate plus three
percent (3%); the interest rate shallbe subject to a floor and cap as Ban may determine subject
to the Ban's underwiting.

(iv) Payments: Payments of interest only for the first eighteen (18)
months. Thereafter, (a) for the first eight and one-half (8 1/2) years, payments of principal and
interestbasedon ~ twenty eight (28) year six (6) month amortizing loan, (b) for the next ten (10)
years, payment of principal and interest based on a twenty (20) year amortizing loan, and (c) for
the next ten (10) years, payment of principal and interest based on a ten (10) year amortizing
loan. The Loan may be prepaid in whole or in par without penalty, subject to customary terms
and conditions.

(v) Collateral: First mortgage on the Property and an absolute
assignment of leases and rents.

(vi) Guarantors: Jack Pires and Americo Seabra, jointly and severally.
The natue and scope of the guaranty shall be as determined by Ban as par of the Bank's
underwriting.

(vii) Appraised Value: Not less than $2,676,500.

(viii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Not less than 1.2 to 1.

(ix) Completion of Construction: A certificate of occupancy has been
issued by the City of Jersey City with respect to the building(s) constructed on the Property.

(x) Certified financial statements of borrower and guarantors showing
suffcient liquidity to pay all debt service due during the first year of the loan.

(xi) Such other terms and conditions customarily included II loan
commitments for commercial loans of this type.

4
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Within five (5) days of the Effective Date, Purchase shall submit to Bank a loan application.
Thereafter, Purchaser shall timely provide to Bank any documentation reasonably requested by
Bank to underwrite the loan. If Ban does not issue the Loan Commitment within fort-five (45)
days of the Effective Date, either party may terminate this Agreement by written notice to the
other. If this Agreement terminates pursuant to this Paragraph (C), the parties shall be relieved
of any further obligations hereunder, except such obligations that expressly survive termination.

(D) During the Inspection Period, Purchaser shall apply to the City of Jersey
City for a long-term tax abatement (the "Tax Abatement") and shall make application for fuds
"from the Neighborhood Stabilization Program and the Affordable Housing Trust (the "Funds").
Provided Purchaser has fied such applications durng the Inspection Period and is using
commercially reasonable diligent efforts to obtain the Tax Abatement and the Funds, Purchaser's
obligation to proceed with the purchase shall be subject to receipt by Purchaser of the Tax
Abatement and the Funds, provided however, if the Tax Abatement and a binding comnItment
for the Funds are not received by the Purchaser on or before November 1,2010, either pary inay
terminate this Agreement on written notice to the other in which event neither party shall have
any fuher obligation under this Agreement except such obligations as expressly survive
termination.

7. Condition of Propert; Inspections. The Purchaser acknowledges and confirms

that the Purchaser is not relying on any representation or inducement which was or may have
been made or implied by the Seller or any other part acting on behalf of the Seller with respect
to the Propert or any circumstances or conditions affecting the Propert (including, with,out
limitation, matters relating to approvals and requirements of governental authorities and utility
companies). The Purchaser is purchasing the Propert in an "AS IS, WHERE IS" condition and
with "ALL F AUL TS" as of the date of this Agreement. Except as specifically set forth in this
Agreement, no representations or warranties have been made or are made and no responsibility
has been or is assumed by Seller or by any employee, officer, person, firm, agent or
representative acting or purporting to act on behalf of Seller as to the condition or repair of the
Propert or the value, expense of operation, developability or income potential thereof or as to
any other fact or condition which has or might affect the Propert or the condition, repair, value,
expense of operation, developability or income potential of the Property or any portion thereof.
The parties agree that all understandings and agreements heretofore made between them or their
respective agents or representatives are merged in this Agreement, which alone fully and
completely expresses their agreement, and that this Agreement has been entered into after full
investigation, neither part relying upon any statement or representation by the other unless such
statement or representation is specifically embodied in this Agreement. To the extent that Seller
has provided to Purchaser information from any inspection, engineering or environmental reports
or copies of any documents relating to the Propert, Seller makes no representations or
waranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of same or otherwise concerning . the
contents of such reports or documents relating to the Property. Purchaser acknowledges that
Seller has requested Purchaser to inspect fully the Property and all portions thereof and to rely
solely upon the results of Purchaser's own inspections or other information obtained or otherwise
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available to Purchaser, rather than any information that may have been provided by Seller to
Purchaser. All current or future notices of violations of federal, state or municipal laws, statutes,
regulations, ordinances, orders or requirements, whether or not noted or issued by any
governental authorities having jurisdiction of any type or character whatsoever, against or
affecting the Propert or any par thereof shall be the sole responsibility of Purchaser, who

expressly undertakes the duty and obligation to investigate the existence of any such violations,
and Seller shall have no responsibility therefor. This provision shall surive the Closing.

8. Certificate of Occupancy. If required by municipal ordinance, Purchaser shall

make application with the municipality in which the Property is located for the issuance of any
governental approvals necessary for the transfer of the Property and shall obtain such
approvals prior to Closing. Purchaser shall be responsible for any fiing or application fees,
repairs, alterations, or improvements necessar in connection with obtaining the certificate of
occupancy or any required governental approvals.

9. Documents to be Delivered by Seller at Closing. At the closing, the Seller shall
deliver to the Purchaser:

(A) the customar New Jersey form of bargain and sale deed with covenant
against grantor's acts, duly executed by the Seller in form for recordation;

(B) an affidavit of title, duly executed by the Seller;

(C) Certified true, correct and complete copies of the Seller's operating
agreement and any required member consent;

(D) To the extent in Seller's possession, originals or copies of leases, service
agreements (to the extent the same are not terminated at Closing by Seller and assumable by
Purchaser), warranties, permits, approvals and estoppel certificates from existing tenants at the
Propert; and

(E) a closing statement showing the applicable closing adjustments, duly
executed by the Seller.

i O. Documents to be Delivered by Purchaser at Closing. At closing, the Purchaser
shall deliver to the Seller:

(A) the purchase price for the Propert as adjusted pursuant to Section i i; and

(B) a closing statement showing the applicable closing adjustments, duly
executed by the Purchaser.

i i. Adjustments.

6
MEl I0286762v.4



(A) Real estate taxes and annual municipal or special district assessments shall
be apportioned on and as of the Closing Date. If the relevant tax bil for such real estate tax year
has not been issued on or before the date of the Closing, theapportiònment of taxes shall be
computed based upon the most recent ascertainable tax amounts for the Propert and subject to
final adjustment upon the issuance of the final tax bils. If, on the Closing Date, bills for real
estate taxes or assessments imposed upon the Propert for the current real estate tax year have
been issued but shall not have been paid, such taxes shall be prorated and paid at the time ofClosing. .

(B) The present insurance coverage and public utility service on the Propert
in the name of Seller shall be terminated as of the Closing Date, and there shall be no proration
of insurance premiums or public utility bills. Seller shall be entitled to receive any rebates
related to the present insurance coverage and any utility deposit held by or. for the benefit of
Seller in connection with any such utility service.

(C) Except as provided in Paragraphs (A) and (B) above, all normal .and
customarily proratable items, including, without limitation, rents, shall be prorated as of the
Closing Date, Seller being charged and credited for all of the same attibutable to the period up
to the Closing Date (and credited for any amounts paid by Seller attributable to the Closing Date
and the period thereafter) and Purchaser being responsible for, and credited or charged, as the
cas~ may be, for all of same attributable to the Closing Date and the period thereafter. If any of
the foregoing canot be determined finally as of the Closing Date', such item will be prorated on
the best available information. If any of the items subject to proration under this Paragraph (C)
is prorated based on estimated amounts determined from then available information, then such
item shall be reapportioned as soon as pràcticable after the Closing Date and the proper part
promptly reimbursed. The provisions of this Paragraph (C) shall survive Closing.

(D) Notwthstanding the foregoing, Rents delinquent as of Closing (for
purposes of this Agreement, Rents due for the month in which the Closing occurs shall not be
deemed delinquent unless such Rents are delinquent for the preceding month( s) also) will not be
prorated. Rents collected after Closing by Purchaser shall be applied as follows: (i) first, to
Rents attibutable to the period after the Closing Date which are due, until all of such Rents have
been collected, and (ii) second, to Rents attributable to the period before the month during which
Closing occurs ("Delinquent Rents"). Seller shall have the right to initiate the collection of
Delinquent Rents for a period of six (6) months after Closing and thereafer pursue such

collection without prejudice to Seller's rights or Purchaser's obligations hereunder. Purchaser
shall remit to Seller any sums received by Purchaser to which Seller is entitled within ten (10)
business. days after receipt thereof less reasonable costs and expenses of collection, including
reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and disbursements. If Seller receives any amounts after
the Closing Date which are attibutable, in whole or in part, to the period on and after the Closing
Date, Seller shall remit to Purchaser that portion of the monies so received by Seller to which
Purchaser is entitled within ten (10) business days after receipt thereof less reasonable costs and
expenses of collection, including reasonable attorneys' fees, cour costs and disbursements. The
provisions of this Paragraph (D) shall survive Closing.

7
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(E) Purchaser wil be entitled to a credit at Closing for all deposits under any
leases actually in the possession of Seller and advance payments of Rent for months after the
month in which the Closing occurs and Seller shall retain said amounts.

12. Default; Remedies. If the Seller materially breaches this Agreement, Purchaser
may elect to either (a) terminate this Agreement, in which event this Agreement shall be
terminated, and neither par shall have any further liability to the other except as may be
expressly provided for in this Agreement, or (b) commence an action for specific performance,
provided such action is commenced within sixty (60) days of the occurrence of Seller's breach.
If the Purchaser materially breaches this Agreement, the Seller shall be entitled to pursue such
remedies for breach of contract as allowed at law or in equity.

13. Fire and Casualty Loss. The Seller is responsible for any damage to the Propert,

other than normal wear and tear, until the Closing. In the event that prior to the Closing, any
portion of the Propert is destroyed by fire, the elements or other causes beyond the control of

the Seller, Purchaser or Seller may, by written notice to the other within fifteen (15) days of such
destruction, elect to terminate this Agreement. In the event that either part shall so elect, this
Agreement shall be null and void and of no effect and there shall be no furher liability on the
par of either pary to the other. Unless this. Agreement is so terminated, it shall remain in full
force and effect and Seller shall repair or restore the Propert and the date fixed for closing shall
be extended for such reasonable period to enable Seller to so repair and restore.

14. Brokerage. The Seller and the Purchaser each represents and warrants to the other
that it has not dealt with any broker, finder or similar agent in connection with the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement that would result in any broker's, finder's or other fee or
commission being due or payable to any other pary in connection with the transaction
contemplated hereby. Each of the Seller and the. Purchaser shall indemnfy and hold harless
the other against any and all liability, loss, cost and expense (including reasonable attorney's

fees) resulting from a breach of said representation and warranty of the indemnifying party. The
provisions of this Section shall survive the closing..

15. Expenses. The Seller shall pay the realty transfer fee in connection with the
conveyance .of the Property and the Purchaser shall pay the mansion tax, if applicable. All

charges, if any, for the Purchaser's title insurance policy and survey shall be paid at or before
closing by Purchaser. Each party shall bear all other fees, charges and expenses incurred by it,
without contribution from the other.

16. Notices. All communications under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall
be deemed to be suffciently given when presented personally (including by Federal Express or
other recognized courier for which receipt is given:) or two (2) days after having been mailed by
certified mail, return receipt requested, to a part at the following addresses, or to such other
address as such party may designate to the other part in writing:

8
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To the Seller:

With a copy to:

To the Purchaser:

With a copy to:

MB COM Ave., LLC
c/o Magyar Ban
400 Somerset Street
New Brunswick, New Jersey 08901
Attn: Brian Stanley

EdWard J. Butler, Jr., Esq.
McCarer & English, LLP
Four Gateway Center
100 MulberrStreet

Newark, New Jersey 07101-0652

Capital Development Realty Group, LLC
c/o HigWand Port Development Corp.
8 1 -83 Vesey Street
Newark, New Jersey 07105
Att: Jack Pires

Miles M. Hunter, Esq.
81-83 Vesey Street
Newark, New Jersey 07105-1024

17. No SurivaL. Except as expressly provided herein, none of the provisions of this
Agreement shall survive the delivery of the deed.

18. Further Assurances. From time to time at the request of either the Seller or the
Purchaser (whether before, at or after closing), the other party shall execute, acknowledge and
deliver such other and furter documents as the requesting party may reasonably request to better
effectuate the provisions of ths Agreement.

19. Entire Agreement; Merger Clause. This Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement of the paries hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior
and contemporaneous representations, agreements and understandings, whether wrtten or oraL.

20. Miscellaneous.

(A) No provision of this Agreement may be changed or waived orally, but
only by an instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged therewith.

(B) This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Jersey, without giving effect to the principles of conflcts of law.

MEl I0286762vA
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(C) This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same Agreement.

(D) As used herein, the term "including" shall be deemed to mean "including.
without limitation."

(E) Neither this Agreement, nor a memorandum thereof, shall be recorded in
any place of public record by the Purchaser, and any such recording shall be deemed a default by
Purchaser hereunder.

(F) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
paries hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Purchaser shall not assign any or all
of its right, title and interest in and to this Agreement without the consent of Seller except that
Seller's consent shall not be required for the assignment to an entity controlled by Purchaser.

(G) If the time period by which any right, option or election provided under
this Agreement must be exercised, or by which any act required hereunder must be pedormed, or
by which the Closing must be held, expires on a Saturday, Sunday or legal or bank holiday, then
such time period shall be automatically extended through the close of business on the next

business day.

(H) Seller and Purchaser shall each provide such tax information to Seller's
and/or Purchaser's respective counsel promptly upon request therefor as Seller's and/or
Purchaser's counsel may deem to be reasonably necessar in order to effect compliance with any
reporting requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as alended, which obligation
shall survive the Closing.

(I) The parties to this Agreement hereby voluntarily, knowingly and
irrevocably waive any constitutional or other right each may have to a trial by jury in the event of
litigation related to or concerning this Agreement.

(1) The parties hereto agree that the terms and language of this Agreement
were the result of negotiations between the paries and, as a result, there shall be no presumption
that any ambiguities in this. Agreement shall be resolved against either part. Any controversy
over the construction of this Agreement shall be decided neutrally and without regard to events
of authorship or negotiation.

(Remainder of 
Page Left Intentionally Blank - Signature Page to Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written.

SELLER:

MB COM AVE., LLC

BY:~
Name:;= ;;~
Title: Authorized Signatory

S-);!r-~;J

PURCHASER:

11
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EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

ALL that certain lot, parcel or tract of land, situate and lying in the City of Jersey City, County of
Hudson, State of New Jersey, and being more paricularly described as follows:

BEGINING at a comer formed by the intersection of the norteasterly line of Communi paw
Avenue and the northwesterly line of Monitor Street and ruing thence;

(1) North 35 degrees 00 minutes west 78.00 feet; thence

(2) North 55 degrees 00 minutes east 100.00 feet; thence

(3) South 35 degrees 00 minutes east 78.00 feet; thence

(4) South 55 degrees 00 minutes west 100.00 feet to the point or place of 
BEGINNING.

FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: Also known as Lot 25.A 26.A & P in Block
2050 on the City of Jersey City Tax Map.
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Exhibit C
Site Plan
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Exhibit D Total Project Cost

DÈVELopNleN"tCòST
., . ,

. .~ . .. .

COSt
., .., .. .,

1. Land $ 238,532
2. .Existing~tructures

.. ?,411.4e8.
a. SilëW6rk (if noOn côrïstru~tion.contrciët)

.. ..

. .

C. Construction/Rehabilitatlon
... ,--"" ...... .'-' ... ,. -"

1. Site Work -

2. New Building / Appliances 48,000
3. Rehabilitation -

4. General Conditions -

5. Contractor Overhead and Profi -

6. Construction Contingency -

Note: Projects consisting of 12 or more HOME assisted units must meet

..
Davis - Bacon wage req~irements.

Ó. Architectural and. ÊnginSSdrïgFées
.".....,. -- ,..

1. Architect Fee - Design -

2. Architect Fee - Supervision -

3. Consultant Fee (provide description of consultant -

activities)

4.. Erigineering Fees. -
,.. -

E. 'other Ownèr Costs
1. Appraisal 5,400
2. Performance Bond (Survey Fees)
3. Building Permits -

4. Tap Fees
5. Soil. Boring/Environmental Survey -

6. Legal Fees 4,000
7. Title and Recording 10;000
8. Accounting/Cost Certification .~,500- . . ." - '. - .., .. ~

F. Interim Costs
. . ~. - -. ,"'c. ".

1. Construction Insurance
2. Construction Interest -

3. Goristruction Laan Qri.9inetion Fee -
... ." . .."

G. PEmllcirieiit FïiianC1ng Fees ~:ii~ !=~penses . .-.... $. ... 39~1SO

.H.Developer'sFee
.-.... -....

$'
.. ,.- .'-

. .. .. .,
f Tenant RelOcation, ¡ i:ea~E!-up- Reserve tt ear orie r . l 92,259'
J. . Affrmatlve Marketiìiganq Marketing $ .21;582
k. . t otallJses(Ï)e\,elopment)

..

.$ 2~à1g~482.. .... . - .. . . -

EXh D Home - Development Cost
302-Communipaw-ProForma-Study-for-bank-revised-5ye T AX+4.000/-5YrAdj1.000/-eP-Q60911-BS-MP-Alt-B
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ExhibitE
Funding Sources

Magyar Ban loan: $2,098,000.00
Home Investment Parership Prograi ("HOME") fuds: $281,482.00

Neighborhood Stabilzation Program ("NSP") fuds: $500,000.00
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~
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~
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JERSEY CITY

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & COMMERCE
DIVISION OF CITY PLANNING

ROBERTO. COITER, PP. AICP
PLANNING DIRECTOR

JERRAMIAH T. HEALY, MAYOR
CARL S. CZAPLICKI, DIRECTOR

July 8, 2011

Miles M. Hunter
81-83 Vesey Street
Newar~ NJ 07105

Re: Certification of attached Resolution for 302-306 Communipaw Avenue

Dear Mr. Hunter,

I hereby certify, as the Secretary of the Jersey City Planing Board, the attàched Resolution of the

Planning Board relating to Case #P06-009, approved on Februar 28,2006 and memorialized on
March 14, 2006, is a true copy of the document from the fies maintained in the Offce of City
Planng.

Please feel free to contact me if there are any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,~~
RobertD~ Cotter, PP, AICP

c. fiÎe

30 Montgomery Street - Suite 1400, Jersey City, NJ 07302
201-547-5010 offce _201-547-4323 fax.
ww.cityofjerseycity.com .





RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY

APPLICANT:

FOR:

302 - 306 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE, LLC.
lA~tr mr

PRELIMINARY Mte F1tML SITE PLAN APPROVAL
WITH DEVIATIONS
302 -306 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE
JERSEY CITY, NEW JERSEY
BLOCK 2050, LOTS 25A, 26A AND P

P06-009CAS'E NO.:

WHEREAS, the applicant, 302-306 COMMUNIPAWAVENUE, LLC, (the "Applicant"), per
. CONNELL FOLEY, LLC (Charles J. Harrington, II, Esq.,appearing) made application to
the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson and. State of New Jersey,

for Preliminary and Final Site Plan Approval with deviations pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-
70(c), to wit:. Calendar No. P06-009, to develop the lots with a mixed use resideritial and
commercial development that will consist of a four (4) story building with fifteen (15)
reside"ntial units, and commercial/retail units on the ground floor with sixteen (16) on-site
parking spaces, on the propert located at 385 - 387 Communipaw Avenue, Jersey City,
New Jersey, Block 2042, Lots 25A, 26A, and P; and

WHEREAS, due notice of a hearing on the above saidapplication before the Planning
Board of the City of Jersey City, on February 28,2006 at 5:30 p.m., was duly published as
prescribed in the Zoning Ordinance. of the City of Jersey City; and

WHEREAS,. the applicant has submitted proof that it has complied with the applicable
. . procedural requirements including the payment of fees and public notices; and

WHEREAS, all testimony having been formally heard for this application; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of the application and the testimony presented at the
meeting; the Planning Board has made the following findings of fact:

1695607-01 .W~





FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The APPlicai1302-306 Communipaw Avenue, LLC, has filed an application for
Preliminary.u~8 FiRri Site Plan Approval with deviations pursuant to N.J:S;A. 40:55D-70(c).
. The purpose of the application is to develop the lots with a mixed use residential and
commercial development that wil consist of a four (4) story building with .fifteen (15)
residential units and commercial/retail units on the ground floor and sixteen (16) on-site
parking spaces. The propert is currently vacant. The propert is located within the Morris
Canal Redevelopment Area and the Applicant is seeking a deviation from Section XI.D.4c
to permit relief from the maximum height requirements .and to permit relief from the
landscaping requirements in the. parking area.

2. . The property is located in the Morris Canal Redevelopment Area. .

3. The Applicant is also seeking a deviation from the landscaping requirements within

the parking.area.

.4. As set forth in the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan, goals of the Plan include

providing "opportunities for the growth of neighborhood level retail, services and community
facilties for the Lafayette neighborhood," and encouraging "the' acquisition of vacant
land... for purposes of... construction of new homes... for use and occupancy by residents of
Lafayette." The proposed development wil provide for a permittèd use consistent with the
Redevel.opment Plan, and the use is compatible with the existing neighborhood

development. The requested deviations will promote the purposes of the Redevelopment
Plan.

5. The proposed additional height wil primarily permit the floor to ceiling heights to
increase for the ground floor commercial/retail space, which wil create more attractive and
desirable retaíl space. The height of the building is consistent with the surrounding
buildings and the request for the variance is minimaL.

6. Although on-site parking ,is not required for the development, the. development is
proposing sixteen (16) on-site parking spaces, fifteen (15) of which wil be dedicated to the
residential use. A reques.t has been made for reliefJrom the landscaping requirements

within the parking area.

7. The development is proposing substantial landscaping and the additional requirep .
trees/landsçaping in the parking area would be a dètriment to the proposed lay.out.

8. . The proposed development and requested deviations are appropriate for the
development of the propert and wil benefit the immediate neighborhood and wil promote
the general welfare. The development wil also promote a desirable visual environment by
developing ..an appropriate in-fill development and a mixed use appropriate. for the
neighborhood. The proposed use is ali appropriate use of the land, and the proposed use.
wil not affect any permitted uses in the neighborhood.
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9. Lastly, the proposed deviations wil not cause a substantial detriment to the public
good, or impairment to the intent and purpose of the Redevelopment Plan.

. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Board ofthe City of JerseyCity,
. County of Hudson and State of New-Jersey, for the foregoing ~easons, approves the within

application for Preliminary Site Plan Approval with deviations pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:550-
70(c); to wit: Calendar No. No. P06-009, to develop the lots with a mixed use residential
and commercial develòpment that will consist of a four story building with fifteen
residential units and commerciai/retail units on the ground floor, and sixteen (16) on-site
parking spaces, on property located at 302 - 306 Communipaw Avenue, Jersey City, and
known on the Jerséy City Tax Maps as Block 2050, Lots 25A, 26A and P, in accordance
with the plans and testimony submitted to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City,
subject to the following conditions:

1. The Applicant/Developer shall keep a copy of the development plans on site.

2. The Applicant/Developer shall be required to apply fora Saturday permit for any

work to be done on Saturdays. ..
3. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with and/or address all Jersey City Review

Agents' comments.

4. If required by the Jersey City Building Code, ther:e shall be two means of egress for.

each commercial space, depending on how many commercial spaces there are.

5. The Applicant shall provide proof that all real estate taxes are paid to date.

6. The Applicant shall use aluminum clad windows instead of vinyL.

.7. The Applicant shall obtain the consent of the Jersey City Planners regardingthe

color of the stucco.

8. The proposed signage for the retail uses shall be submitted to. the Division. of
Planning for review and approval.

1695607.01 'i~





APPLICANT:

FOR:

302-306 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE, LLC

PRELIMINARY ~ SITE PLAN APPROVAL
WITH DEVIATIONS
302 - 206 COM~UNIPAW AVENUE
BLOCK 2050, LOTS 25_~, 26A and P

P06-009CASE NO.:

VOTE: 6 - 0

COMMISSIONER: YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

John Cardwell, Chairman X
Leon Yost, Commissioner X
Jeni L. Branum, Commissioner X
Larry Eccleston, Commissioner X
Roseanna Petruzzell, Commissioner X
Frank Desanto, Commissioner X

J~E'~~~AIRMAN
JERSEY CITY PLANNING BOARD.

APPRQVEDAS TO LEGAL FORM:

DATE OF HEARING: February 28,.2006.

March 14, 2006DATE OF MEMORIALIZATION:

1695607.01
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Curent Tax Assessment
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Propert Detal Page 1 of1

Block: 2050 Prop Loc: 5 MONITOR ST. Owner: MB COM AVE., LLC Square Ft: 0
Lot: 29 District:. 0906 JERSEY CIT Street: 400 SOMERSET ST. Year Built:

Quai: Class: 1 City State: NEW BRUNSWICK, NJ 08901 Style:
Additional Information

Prior Block: Acct Num: 00607045 Addl Lots: EPL Code: 000
Prior Lot: Mtg Acct: Land Desc: 100X78 Statute:
Prior Qual: Bank Code: 0 Bldg Desc: VACANT LAND Initial: 000000 Further: 000000
Updated: 04/16/10 Tax Codes: Class4Cd: 0 Desc:

Zone: Map Page: 1205 Acreage: 0.1791 Taxes: 3983.03 / 0.00
Sale Information

Sale Date:. 02/21/00 Book: 8723 Page: 107 Price: 10 NU#: 3

Sr1a Date Book Page Price NU# Ratio Grantee

Year Owner Information
2011 MB COM AVE., LLC

400 SOMERSET ST.

NEW BRUNSWICK, NJ 08901

2010302 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE, LLC.

25 ROUTE 22 EAST
SPRINGFIELD, N.t 07081

2009302 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE, LLC.
25 ROUTE 22 EAST
SPRINGFIELD, N.J. 07081

2008302 COMMUNIPAW AVENUE, LLC.
25 ROUT 22 EAST

SPRINGFIELD, N.J. 07081

TAX-UST -HISTORY

Land/Imp/Tot Exemption Assessed
57700 0 57700

o
57700

57700
o

57700

o 57700

57700
o

57700

o 57700

57700
o

57700

o 57700

htt:/ /ta 1.c~,monmouth.ni. us/cgì-bìn/m4 ,cgì? &distrct=0906&block=2050&lot=29&qual= 7/3/2011
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Curent Tax Payment Status
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AccoUIl'Sumar By Years

City Of Jersey City
Online Tax Inquiry

607045 BIo/Lo02050 / 00029 Principal:
MB COM AVE., LLC Intere:
400 SOMERSET ST. Totl Due:
NEW BRUNSWICK, NJ 08901

5 MONlTOR ST.

Accunt:
Owr
Illll~:
Cit/St/Zip:
Pro Loction:

Bank

~ons:
Int~y
Date:

Page 1 of1

.00

.00

.00

Pavmnt.Amount
1034.99

Pay By E-Check ) (Pay By Credit Card)

" Pl Allow 24- Hors for paym to be applie to yor acunt
"*THERE wn BE A mNVNINCE FEE DEPENDI ON THE TYE OF TRNSCTON YOU SEL£cr

o

07-03-2011

04-13-20U

cefica Sale Dae Amount Sub Type Sta UenHoldChgs.

2008-1438 0626-200 1,859.82 Ouide cancle PL YMlI PAR TAX SEVICE

2001478 07-0.200 1,915.91 3,428.66 Quid cancelE US. BAK-csr/SMUNI VI DT .

n Tax n Addedl Aba Bil n Misc. Bil n. Pa nnent n
Ivear 8W ~~ue Desption Biled Paid/ Adj.
2011 3 08-01-2011 TAXES BIll 1,034.99
2011 2 05-01-2011 TAXES BIll 995.16
2011 2 04-13-2011 AXES PAYMENT
2011 1 02-01-2011 AXS BIll

2011 1 02-01-2011 TAXES PAYMENT

2010 4 11-01-2010!TAXES BIll

2010 4 11-08-2010 TAXES PAYMENT

2010 3 08-01-2010 TAXES BIll

2010 3 08-30-2010 TAXES PAYMENT

2010 2 05-01-2010 TAXES BILL

2010 2 05-12-2010 TAXES PAYMENT
2010 1 02-o1-2010rrAXES BIll

2010 1 03-05-2010 TAXES INTERES

2010 1 03-05-2010ITAXES PAYMENT

2009 4 01-04-2010 RED. STATEMENT PAYMENT

2009 4 01-12-2010 WRITEN RESP. PAYMENT

2009 4 11-01-2009 AXES BIll

2009 4 03-05-2010 TAXES PAYMENT

2009 3 09-15-2009 AX ADV CHARGE PAYMENT

2009 3 08-01-2009 AXS BIll

200 3 08-25-209 AXES INTERES
2009 3 08-25-2009 TAXES PAYMENT

2009 2 06-30-2009 TAX AOV CHARGE PAYMENT

2009 2 05-01-2009ITAXES BIL

2009 2 06-30-2009 TAXES INTERES
2009 2 06-30-2009 TAXS PAYMENT
200 1 02-01-2009rrAXS BIll

2009 1 06-30-2009 TAXS PAYMENT
2008 4 11-01-2008 TAX BIll
2008 4 12-12-2008 TAXES INTERES

2008 4 08-21-2008 TAXES PAYMENT

2008 4 12-12-2008 TAXES PAYMENT

2008 3 09-19-2008 RED. STATEMENT PAYMENT

2008 3 08-01-2008 TAXES BILL

2008 3 08-21-2008 TAXES INTERES

2008 3 08-21-2008 AXES PAYMENT

. 2008 2 06-26-2008 AX AOV CHARGE PAYMENT

2008 2 05-01-2008 AXES BIll

2008 2 06-26-2008 AXES INTERES

2008 2 06-26-2008 AXES PAYMENT

2008 1 02-01-2008 AXES BIll

2008 1 06-26-2008 AXS PAYMENT

Accunt # Blo ......................... ......... ............ loL.._. .. Qualifer
( Searc I Re-Calculate Interest

995.16

990.78

990.79

978.16

1,023.30

81i.65

817.66

913.68

913.59

711.89

711.89

899.65

880.07

-995.76

-995.76

-990.78

-990.19

-918.16

-68.09
-1,023.30

-20.00
-10.00

-817.65
-15.00

-9.81
-817.66
-37.51

-51.07
-913.68

-913.59

-14.20
-19.29

-692.60
-20.00

-7.12
-111.89

-36.47

43.63
-899.65

-880.07

)

Intere Dat
(MM/DD/YY r r

Intre n Bil Ad'. n Payment Adj.

Ope Bal. Days iDnt. Paid Byue.
1,034.99

lOCKBOX

lOCKBOX

U.S. BANK-CUST /SASMUNI V
U.S. BANK-CUST /SASSMUNI V

U.S. BANK-CUST /SASMUNI'

U.S. BANK-CUST/SASMUNI V
U.S. BANK-CUST /SAMUNI V

AXSAlE PAYMENT

AXSAlE PAYMENT
AXSAlE PAYMENT

AXSALE PAYMENT

CREDlTCA

CREOlTCARD

. TAXAlE PAYMENT .

TAXSAlE PAYMENT
TAXSAlE PAYMENT

TAXSAlE PAYMENT

htt://ww.cityofjerseycity.com/ebTaxInauir/AccountSumar .aspX? Account=607045 7/3/2011
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Exhbit K
Certificate of Formation
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NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
D1VJS10N OF REVENUE.

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP LLC

0400250195

The above-named DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY was duly filed in
accordance with New Jersey state law on 09/17/2008 and was assigned
identification number 0400250195. F6llowing are the articles that
consti tute its original cert~ficate.

.1. Name:
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP LLC

2. Registered Agent:
FERNANDO PINEIRO

3. Registered Office:
220 OLD TURNPIKE ROAD
CALIFON, NJ 07830

4, Business Purpose:

Building
5. The date upon the LCC will be dissolved:

12/31/2099

6. Members/Managers:

FERNANDO PINEIRO
220 OLD TURNPIKE ROAD
CALIFON, NJ 07830

JACK D. PIRES
1168 SHERLIN DRIVE
BRIDGEWATER, NJ 08807

7. Main Business Address:

81-83 VESEY STREET
NEWARK, NJ 07105 1024

Signatures:
MILES M. HUNTER, ESQ.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Page I of2





NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
DIVISION OF REVENUE

-
CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP LLC

0400250195

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have
hereunto set my hand and affixed my
Offcial Seal at Trenton, this

I 7th day of September, 2008

c-.~~~~~
\

R. David Rousseau

State Treasurer
Certification# i 12623722

. Verify this certificate at

https://wwwi.state.nj.usff_StandingCertJSPNerfy_Cert.jsp

Page 2 of2





AMENDMENT
OF

CERTIFICATE OF FORMTION
OF

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP LLC

1. The name of the limited liability company is:

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP LLC

2. The identification number is:

0400250195

3. The original Certificate of Formation we filed on September i 7, 2008.

4. The effective date is the date this Amendment is filed.

5. The Certificate of Amendment is amended as follows:

. -;' i
.. í'ILRt) . f

,OCT 27Z008

šTAlE"lREASURER

I

Artcle 2 Registered Agent is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

Registered Agent:
Jack D. Pires

Aricle 3 Registered. Office is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following: ..

Registered Office:
8 i -83 V ~sey Street
Newark, N.J. 07105

Article 6 Members/Managers is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

Members/Mariagers:

Jack D. Pires
1168 Sherlin Drive
Bridgewater, N.J. 08807

Americo Seabra
10 Birchwood Lane
Watchung, N.J. 07069





The undersigned represents that this filing complies with State law as detailed in
N.J.S.A. 42 and that he is authorized to sign this form behalf of the limited liabilityco~~~

Miles M. Hunter, Esq. .
Authorized Representative
October 22, 2008





DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
, Division of Revenue

Business Support Services, Commercial Recording
P.O. Box 308 .

Trenton, NJ 08646

Acknowledgement Prinled: 11/13/2008

SHIP TO:
LAW FIRM OF MILES M HUNTER
56 BOSTON STREET
NEWARK, NJ 07103 3434

Thank you for your recent work request. The following information summarizes all
work requests processed and the associated fees.

If your work was rejected, it is imperative that you inclueje this form or a copy when
resubmitting corrected documents or if you are requesting a refund.
This wil assist us in verifying ,payment and the original date the work request was .
submitted. Call us at (609) 292-9292 if you have any questions regarding this notice.

1. Customer Number: 589124
2. Account Number:

3. Session Number: 2079313
4. User 10: 35

5. Comments On.Work Request:

6. Number of Rejected Jobs: 0

Method of Payment: Check
Check No: 1766

Job 1 :
Session Number: 2079313
Work Description: AMENDA AMENDMENT/RENEWAUALL OTHERS
Job Number: 3840436
Filng Number: 400250195
Processed Date: 13-NOV-08

Entity Name: CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REAL TV GRO
Comments On Job:

Amount: $100.00
Job Completion Status: C CLOSED (JOB OR SESSION)

FEE CODE FEE DESCRIPTION FEE QTV TOTAL------ ------------------------ --------------- -----
AMENDB AMENDMENT LLCILLP 100.00 1 $100.00

JOB TOTAL: $100.00

COMPLETED JOB TOTAL: $100.00

OFFICIAL RECEIPT . .. T HIS IS NOT A B ILV ..

. Please retain a copy for your records to verify check and credit card billng.

Page 1 of 1
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OPERATING AGREEMENT

OF

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP, LLC

Ths Operating Agreement of Capital Development Realty, LLC ("Agreement"), is dated
as of November 5,2008 is made by Americo Seabra and Jack D. Pires, each of whom is
sometimes referred to herein as a "Member" and who, collectively, are sometimes referred toherein as "Members". .

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company, as hereinafer defied, has been formed by the
Members to engage in any activity withn the puroses of which a limited liability company may
be organed under the laws of the State of New Jersey, including,. Without limitation, acquiring,
owng, developing, improvig, altering, maitang, leasing, mortgaging, encumberig,

operating, sellng, and/or otherwse dealing with all or par of certain parcels of real propert, as
well as any.improvements and fixtues thereon, as more paricularly described in Exhibit A
attched hereto, located in the City of Jersey City, New Jersey (collectively and as may be
amended, the "Propert"); and to conduct such other activities reasonably incident to any of the
foregoing.

NOW THEREFORE, in order to car out their intent as expressed above and in
consideration of the mutul agreements and covenants hereinafter contaned, the Members
hereby covenant and agree as folloWs:

ARTICLE I

DEFINTIONS

"Act" means the New Jersey Limited Liability Company Act.

"Agreement" is defined in the first paragraph above.

"Anua Tax Distrbution" is defined in Section 4.03.

"Applicable Tax Rate" is defined in Section 4.03( e).

"Banptcy" when used with reference to any Member, shall be deemed to occur
(i) when the Member (a) makes an assignent for the benefit of creditors, or (b) files a volunta
petition in banptcy, or (c) is adjudged a banpt or insolvent, or has entered against him an

order for relief in any banptcy or insolvency proceeding, or (d) seeks, consents to or
acquiesces in the appointment of the trtee, receiver or liquidator of all Or any substatial par of
such Member's propert, or(ii) 90 days after the appointment without the Member's consent or
acquiescence of a trtee or liquidator of the Member or of all or any substantial par of his
properties, if the appointment is not vacated or stayed, or with 90 days after the expiration of
ary such stay, if the appointment is not vacated.



"Capital AccoUIt" is defined in Section 3.02.

"Capital Contrbution" for each Member means the aggregate of sums contrbuted
by such Member pursuat to Aricle ILL hereof.

i\, - ,,~._.../

"Cause" is defined in Section 6.Q5(b).

"Certfication" or "Certificate of Formation" means the Certificate of Formation
of the Company, as the same may be amended or restated as provided herein or requied by law,
which has been duly filed in accordance with (and which, in all respects, is suffcient in form and
substace under) the laws of the State of New Jersey, and was recorded with the Treasurer of the
State of New Jersey on September 17, 2008.

"Code" or "Internal Revenue Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

"Company" means Capital Development Realty Group, LLC, a limted liability
company of the State of New Jersey.

"Company Minimum Gain" means the minimum amount of gai that would be
recognzed by the Company for federal income ta puroses if the Company disposed of

propert subject to non-recourse liabilities (that is, liabilties for which no Member bears the
economic risk ofloss pursuat to Treasury Regulation 1.752-1 (a)(2)) in ful satisfaction and for
the amount thereof, computed in accordance with Treasur Reguation Section 1. 704-2( d).

"Cumulative Net Tax Liabilty" is defined in Section 4.03(d)

"Curent Tax Liability" is defined in Section 4.03(d).

"Current Tax Benefit" is defined in Section 4.03( d).

"Effective Date" means the first date that this Agreement is signed by all the
Members.

"Fiscal Year" is the Company's fiscal year for all accounting, ta and financial
reporting puroses, which shall be the calendar year (i.e., Januar 1 though December 31).

"Gross Asset Value" is defined in Section 4.01(a).

"Initial Period" is defined in Section 3.01 (b)(ii).

"Managing Member(s)" means those Members responsible for managing the day-
to-day business and affairs of the Company subject to the terms and provisions of Aricle 6
below (each such Member may be .individually referred to herein as the "Managing Member").
The Company's intial Managing Member shall be Jack D. Pires.

2



"Majority-In-Interest of Members" mean those Members whose Percentage
Interests, in the aggregate, are in excess of fift percent (50%) of the total Percentage Interests of
all Members.

"Member Nonrecourse Debt" has the same meanng as "parership nonrecourse
debt" as set fort in Section 1.704-2(b)(4) of the Regulations.

"Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum "Gain" means an amount, with respect to '
each Member Nonrecourse Debt, equal to the Company Minimum gai that would result if such
Member Nonrecourse Debt were treated as a Nonrecourse Liabilty, determed in accordance
with Section 1.704-2(i)(3) of the Reguations.

"Member Nonrecourse Deductions" has the same meaning as "parership

nonrecourse deductions" as set fort in Sections 1.704-2(i)(l) and 1.704-2(i)(2) of the
Regulations.

"Members" means the intial Members of the Company identified above and any
additional Members admitted to the Company as Members (but excluding ay Person who merely
has rights as an assignee of a Member under the Act) in accordace with Section 7.04 and Aricle
IX hereof.

"Net Income" is defined in Section 4.01 (b).

"Net Loss" is defied in Section 4.01 (b).

"Nonrecourse Deductions" is defied in Section 1.704-2(b)(l) of the Reguations.

"Nonrecourse Liabilty" is defied in Section 1.704-2(b)(3) of the Regulations.

''Non-Receiving Members" means,all Members other than the Receiving
Member.

"Percentage Interest" mean a Member's interest in Net Income and Net Loss of
the Company, adjusted as provided in Section 3.01(b) and Section7.04. Each Member's
Percentage Interest as of the Effective Date is reflected on Exhbit B, attched hereto.

"Person" means any individual, limited liability company, parership,
corporation, trst or other entity.

"Propert" is defied in the RECITALS on page on of this Agreement.

"Receiving Member" is derined in Section 9.02(c).

"Regulations" or "Treasur Regulations" means the United States Treasur
Regulations promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service.

3



"Supermajority-In-Interest of Members" means those Members whose Percentage
Interests, in the aggregate, are in excess of seventy-five percent (75%) of the tota Percentage
Interests of all Members.

ARTICLE II

THE COMPANY

2.01. Formation of Limted Liabilty Company. The Members hereby forma
limited liability company 

(the "Company") pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of
New Jersey. The terms and provisions hereof will be constred and interpreted in accordance
with the terms and provisions of such laws.

2.02. Name of Company. The name of the Company will be "Capita
Development Realty Group, LLC". A Majority-In-Interest of Members shall have the power to
change the name of the Company at any time.

2.03. . Purose of Company.

(a) The puroses of the Company's business are: (i) to acquire, own,
develop, improve, alter, maintain, lease, mortgage, encumber, manage, and otherwse operate
and deal with par or all of the Propert, including, without limtation, to obtain financing and
refiancing for the above puroses, to sell exchange, trfer, or otherwse dispose of all or any
par of the Propert and to invest and reinvest any fuds held in reserve pursuant to the terms of
ths Agreement; (ii) to engage in any activity withn the puroses for which a limited liabilty
company may be organzed under the laws of the State of New Jersey; and 

(iii) to conduct such
other activities as may be necessar, appropriate and incidenta to the foregoing puroses in
connection therewith

(b) The Company shall have the power to do any and all 'acts
necessar, appropriate, proper, advisable, incidental or convenient to or in fuherance of the
puroses of the Company as set forth above and shall have without limitation, any and all powers
that may be exercised on behalf of the Company by the Members pursuait to Aricles VI and vn
of this Agreement.

2.04. Principal and Registered Office.

(a) The principal offce of the Company shall be at 81-83 Vesey
Street, Newark, N.J. 07105-1024.

(b) The registered offce of the Company shall be at 81-83 Vesey
Street, Newark, N.J. 07105- 1 024.

(c ) The nane of the registered agent at such address is Jack D. Pires.

(d) The Mangig Members may elect to change the Company's
registered agent and the Company's registered and pricipal.

"\
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offces by complying with the relevant requirements of New Jersey
law.

2.05~ Duration of Company. The duration of the Company is perpetul, uness

sooner terminated pursuat to any provisions of ths Agreement or as otherwse provided by law.

2.06. Furer Assurances. The paries hereto have executed and will hereafer

execute whatever certificates and documents, and will file, record and publish such certificates
and documents, which are required to form and operation a limited liability company under the
laws of New Jersey. The pares heretQ. will also execute and fie, record and publish such
certificates and documents as they, upon advice of counsel, may deem necessar or appropriate
to comply with other applicable laws goverg the formation and operation of a limted liability
company.

2.07. Expenses of Formation and Syndication.

(a) Each Member shall bear his own expenses in connection with his
consideration of an investment in the Company and his acquisition of a membership interest in
the Company, including without limitation, the fees of any attorney, financial advisor, or other
consultat, except as ths Agreement may otherwse expressly provide.

(b) The Company shall pay for all other expenses of formation of
every natue and description including, without limitation, fiing, recording and quaifyng fees,
taxes and cost~.oflegal publication, expynses of registration, qualification or obtag any
necessar exellptions under any federal or state securties laws.

ARTICLE III

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

3.01. Capita Contributions of the Members.

(a) The Members of 
the Company have made or will, upon execution

of ths Agreement, make Capita Contrbutions to the Company of cash, cash equivalents,
propert or the assumption ófdebt and/or liabilities as set fort on Exhbit B hereto. The amount
of cash contrbuted by each Member shall be credited to such Member's Capita Account,
pursuanUo Section 3.02.

(b) Additional Contrbutions.

(i) Unless otherwse determined by a Supennajority-In-

Interest of Members, no Member shall be required to make any additional Capital Contributions
to the Company in excess of the contrbutions described in Section 3.01(a) and Section

3.01 (b)(ii) of 
ths Agreement.

(ii) The Members agee an acknowledge that durng each year

of the thee-year period beginnng on the date first above wrtten (the "Intial Period"), a
Majority-In-Interest of Members may require each Member to make an additional Capital

5



Contrbution of $500.00, up to an aggregate additional Capita Contribution of $1 ,000.00 per
Member durg the Initial Period. . After the Initial Period, the Members acknowledge that a
Supermajority-In-Interest of Members may require the Members to make additional Capital
Contrbutions to the extent that the Company shall reasonably requie additional fuds to car

out its business puroses. . After the Intial Period~ any additional Capital Contributions requíred
by a Supermajority-In-Interest of Members shall be made by the Members in accordance with
each Member's Percentage Interest.. .

L '.
\._-'/

(ii) The failure by one or more Members to honor any capita

call made in accordance with ths Section 3.01(b) withn thrt (30) days of such capita call shall
result in the imiediate adjustment of each Membets Percentage Interest in Company Net
Income and Net Loss (but not in Company capita) to equal to percentage obtaed by dividing
each Member's adjusted Capital Account by the aggregate adjusted Capita Accounts of all .
Members imediately after all Members that elect to honor any call or calls for additional
Capital Contributions have made such contributions. If any Member fails to honor a tota of
three (3) capital calls made irl accordance with ths Agreement, such Member's interest in the
Company shall become immediately redeemable by the Company, or, if the Company lacks the
necessar fuds, shall become subject to equa purchase options held by the other Meirbers,in
either case, for a purchase price equal to stich'Member's adjusted Capita Account balance 'at the
time of any such redemption or purchase. .

(iv) The Members acknowledge that Company has an
outstading loan (the "Loan") from Magyar Ban ("Magyar") which is sècured by the Propert;
Each of the Members may be obligated to execute and deliver to Magyar guanty or other
instrents in connection with the Loan,. as members of the Company, and hereby agree to
execute and deliver the same. .

3.02. Capita Account. A "Capital Account" shallbe established for each
Member. The Capita Account will be credited with (i) the Capital Contrbutions of such
member (net of liabilties relating to any contrbuted propert that the Company is considered to
assume or ùie subject-ounder Section 752 of the Code), (ii) such Member's distrbutjve share
of Net Income, as hereinafer defied~ and (iii) any items of income or gainJhat.are takeÌiinto.

account in determining capital accounts under Treasui Regulations Section.1.704;" .

1(b)(2)(iv)(m) on account of any adjustment to the adjusted ta basis of any Company asset
pursuant to Code Section 734(b) or Section 743(b). The. Capital Account will be 'debited by (i)
such Member's distrbutive share of Net Loss, as hereinafer defined, (ii) an items ofloss that
are taken into account in determnig capitaI accounts under Treasui Regulations Section
L.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m) on account of any Code Section 734(b) or Section 734(b) adjustments to the
ta basis of Company assets, and (ii) the amOunt of cash and the Gross Asset Value of other
Company propert distributed to such Memper (net of any liabilities relating to such,distrbuted
propert that the Member is considered to assume ortake subject to under Code Section 752). In
the event the Gross Asset Value of Company assets is adjusted.Under Section 4,01 of ths .
Agreement, the Capità Accounts of the Members shall be adjusted to reflect the aggregate net
adjustment as if the Compay recognized gain or loss equal to the amount of such aggregate net
adjustment and such gain orloss were allocated to the Members pursuat to Section 4.02 of ths
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Agreement. The foregoing provisions relating to the maintenance of Capita Accounts are
intended to comply with Treasur Reguations Section 1.704-1(b) et seg. and shall be applied in
a maner consistent with such Reguations.

3.03. Retu ofContnbutions. Except as otherwse expressly provided herein,

none of the Members. shall be entitled to withdrw or demand a refud or retu of any Capita
Contrbutions, or any interest thereon.

3.04. Loans to the Company by Members. Any Member may from time to time,
with the consent ofa Supermajonty-In-Interest of Members, advance money to the Company by
loan. The amount of any permitted loan made to the Company by a Member shall not be
considered an increase in such member's Capital Contnbution or otherwse constitute a
contnbution to the Company, nor shal the makg of such loan entitle such Member to an
increased share of the profits, losses or distrbutions to be made pursuat to the provisions of this
Agreement. Loans made to the Company shall bear such reasonable rate of interest and shal
featue such other terÌs as shall be agreed upon by a Supermajonty-In-Interest of Members and
the Member makg such loan.

3.05. Loans to the Company by Thrd Paries. The Members recognze that the
Company may require thd-par financing for its puroses and acknowledge that a lender may
require personal guantees of any loan provided to the Company. In the event any thrd-par
lender requires Members guartees of Company debt, each Member agrees to personally

guanty a portion of such debt equa to his Percentae Interest in the Company. Each of the
Members agrees to indemnify and hold haress the othe:rMembers from and agait all losses
~sing under or in connection with the portion of any Company debt for which the indemnfying
Member has offered a personal guty. If any member refues to provide the necessar
personal guaantees of Company debt that may be requied bya thrd-par lender in accordance
with ths Section 3.05, such Member's interest in the Company shall become imediately
redeemable by the Company, or, if the Company lacks the necessar fuds, shall become subject
to equal purchase options held by the other Members,. in accordace with the terms of the last
sentence of Section 3.01(b)(iii) of ths Agreement.

ARTICLE IV

ALLOCATION OF NET INCOME, NET LOSS AN DISTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBERS 

4.01. Gross Asset Value and Net Income and Net Loss.

(a) "Gross Asset Value" meai, with respect to any asset of the
Company, the asset's adjusted basis for Federal income ta puroses; provided, however, that (i)

the Gross Asset Value of any asset contrbuted by a Member to the Company as a Capital
Contrbution or distnbuted to a member by the Company shall be the gross fair market value of
such asset (without tang into account Section 7701 

(g) of the Code) as reasonably determed
by the Managing Members as of the date of the contnbution or distrbution, as the case may be;
and (ii) the Gross Asset Value of all Company assets shall be adjusted to equa their respective

gross fair market values (tag into account Code Section 7701 (g)), as reasonably determined
by the Managing Members as of 

(A) the date of the acquisition of an additional interest in the
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Company by any new or existing Member in exchange for more than a de miniis Capital

Contribution to the Company, or (B) upon the distribution by the Company to a retirg or
continuing Member of more than a de minimis amount of Company propert or money.

(b) "Net Income" and "Net Loss" respectively shall mean the net

taable income or loss (i.e., the aggregate amount of all income and gain reduced by the
aggregate amount of all loss and deduction) of the Company as determned anually in
accordance with the method of accounting followed by the Company for Federal income tax
puroses and determined in accordance with Section 703(a) of the Code (for this puroses, all
items of income, gai, loss and deduction required to be stated separtely pursuant to Section .
703(a)(l) of the Code shall be included in taable income or loss); provided, however, for

puroses of computing such taable income 
or loss: (i) any deductions for depreciation, cost

recovery or amortization attbutable to any assets of the Company shall be determined in
accordance with the Code, except that if the Gross Asset Value of an asset differs from its
adjusted ta basis for Federal income tax puroses at any time during such fiscal year, the
deductions for depreciation, cost recovery or amortization attbutable to such asset from and
after the date durng such year in which such difference first occurs shall bear the same ratio to
the Gross Asset Value as of such date as the Federal income ta depreciation, amortization or
other cost recovery deduction for such year from and afer such date bears to the adjusted tax
basis as of such date;. (ii) any gain or loss attbutable to the taxable disposition of any Company
propert shall bedetermined by the Company as if the adjusted ta basis of such propert as of
such date of such disposition were. such Gross Asset Value reduced by all amortization,
. depreciation and cost recovery deductions (determined in accordance with clauSe (i) above)
which are attbutable to the propert; (iii) the computation of all items òf income, gain, loss and
dedùction shall be made without regard to any basis adjustment under Code Section 743, which
may be made by the Company; (iv) any receipts of the Company that are exempt from Federal
income ta and are not otherwse included in taabie income or loss shall be added to such
taxable income or loss; (v) any expenditues of the Company described in Code Section
705(a)(2)(B) or treated as expenditues described in Section 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code pursuat to

Treasur Regulation Section 1.704- i (b) shall be subtracted from such taxable income or loss.

4.02. Allocations.

(a) Each Member shallhave allocated to him the portion of the Net
. Income or Net Loss of the Company that is equal to such Member's Percentage Interest. For
example, if a Member's Percentage Interest is 10%, 10% of the Net Income or Net Loss of the
Company wil be allocated to that Member on an anual basis~

(b) Calculations and allocations of Net Income and Net Loss shall be
made by the accountats regularly employed by the Company or such other person who may
keep the books and records of the Company as requested by the Managing Members, but at least
anually and in conformity with the current requirements of the Internal Revenue Code.

,

(c) Net Income and Net Loss and items of income, gain, loss,
deduction or credit for any year in which a Member transfers his interest in the Company shall be
divided between the traferrg Member and his tranferee as necessar to reflect the interests
of each as a member durg such year.
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4.03. Distrbutions.

(a) Subject to Section 4.03(b) of ths Agreement, to the extent
Company fuds are available, all distrbutions of cash and propert shall be made at such times
and in such amounts as shall be agreed to by a Supermajority-In-Interest of Members and all
such distrbutions to Members shall be made in accordance with the Members' Percentage
Interest, uness otherwse provided.

(b) Notwithtading the foregoing Section 4.03 (a), each Fiscal Year
the Company shall distrbute to each member the "Anua Tax Distrbution" computed for each
Member in accordance with Section 4.03( c), below.

(c) For puroses of Section 4.03(b), above, the "Anual Tax
Distrbution" shall be determined in the following maner. The Anual Tax Distrbution payable
to a Member with respect to any Fiscal Year (the "Curent Fiscal Year") shall equal the lesser of
(i) the excess, if any, of the "Cmnulative Net Tax Liabilty" (as hereiriafter defined) allocable to
such Member for all Fiscal Years of the Company through and including the Curent Fiscal Year,
over the aggregate Anual Tax Distrbutions paid to such Member under Section 4.03(b) with
respect to all Fiscal Y ears of the Company excluding the Curent Fiscal Year; or (ii) the "Curent
Tax Liabilty" (as hereinafter defined) allocable to such member for the Curent Fiscal Year.

(d) The "Cmnulative Net Tax Liabilty" ofaMember as of the end of
any Fiscal Year shall equal the amount detenrined by first computing the "Curent Tax
Liability" or "Curent Tax Benefit" of such Member from the Company on a year-by-yea basis
in accordace with ths Section 4.03( d), and then adding such liabilties and subtrcting such
benefits to arve at the Cmnulative Net Tax Liability, ifany. Use of money considerations shall
not be taen into account in ths process. The "Curent Tax Liabilty" or "Curent Tax Benefit"
for each Fiscal Year shall be deemed equal to the product of (i) the "Applicable Tax Rate" (as
hereinafer defied), multiplied by (ii) an amount equal to the portion of the taable income or
ta loss, as the case may be, allocable to such Member for such Fiscal Year in accordance with
Section 4.09 of this Agreement.

(e) For puroses of this Section 4.03, the "Applicable Tax Rate" for
any Fiscal Year shall equal the highest combined effective federa and state income or franchise
tax rate to which any Member (or any indirect parer or member in any member which is treated
as a parership for ta puroses) is subject for the year. Such rate shall be detennedby tag
into account (i) the federal ta benefit of any deduction for state income or franchise taes, and

(ii) state apportionment factors, credits for taes paid to other states and other provisions which
have the effect of reducing multiple state taxation of the same income. Once the Applicable Tax
Rate is determed for a Fiscal Year, such rate shall be used in determining the Anua Tax
Distrbutions payable by.the Company to all Members with respect to such Fiscal. y. ear (even
though some Membersmay be in lower effective brackets for such year).

4.04. Contingency Reserves. A Majority-In-Interest of Members shall have the
right to set aside reasonable Company fuds in such reserves as it deteriines to be prudent for
the operation of the Company's business, including sums it deems necessar to reserve for the
futue payment or reduction of any Company obligations.
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4.05. Regulatory Allocations. Notwithstanding anytng to the contr in this

Agreement, the following special allocations shall be made in the following order:

(a) Minium Gain Chargeback. Except as otheiwse provided in
. Section 1. 704-2(f)of the Regulations, notwthstading any other provision of this Aricle iv, if
there is a net decrease in Company Minium Gain durg any Company taxable year, each
Member shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain for such taable year

(and, if necessa, subsequent year) in an amount equal to such Member's share ofthè net
decrease. in Company Minium Gain, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-
2(g). Allocations pursuant to the previous sentence shall be made.in proportion to the respective .
amounts required to be allocated to each member pursuant thereto. The items to be so allocated

shall be determined in accordance with Sections 1.704-2(f)(6) and 1.704-20)(2) of the
Regulations. This Sections 4.05(a) is intended to comply with the minimum gain chargeback
requirement in Section 1. 704~2(f) ofthe Reguations and shall be interpreted consistently
therewith.

(b) Member Minimum Gain Chargeback. Except as otherwse
provided in Section 1.704-2(i)(4) of the Regulations, notwthstading any other provisions of ths
Aricle iv, if there is a net decrease in Member Nonrecourse Debt Minum Gain attbutable to
a Member Nonrecourse Debt durng any Company taable year, each Member who has a share
of the Member Nonrecourse Debt Minium Gain attbutable to such Member Nonrecourse
Debt, determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(i)(5) of the Regulations, shall be specially
allocated items of Company income and gain for such year (and, if necessary, subsequent years)
in an amount equal to such Member's share of the net decrease in Member Nonrecourse Debt
Minimum Gain attbutable to such MemlJerNonrecourse Debt, determned inaccordarce with
Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4). Allocations pursuant to the previous sentence shall be made
in proportion to the respective amoUnts required to be allocated to each Member pursuant
thereto, The items to be so allocated shall be determed in accordance with Sections 1.704-
2(i)(4) and 1.704-20)(2) of the Regulations. The Section 4.05(b) in intended to comply with the
minimum gain chargeback rèquirement in Section 1.704-2(i)(4) of the Regulations and shallbe
interpreted consistently therewith.

(c) Qualified Income Offset. In the event any Member which is not
obligated to fully restore a deficit balance in his Capital Account upon liquidation unexpectedly
receives any adjustments, allocations or distrbutions described in Regulations Sections 1.704-
1 (b )(2)(ii)( d)( 4), Regulations Section 1.704:-1 (b )(2)(ii)( d)( 5), or Regulations Section. 1 .704-
1 (b)(2)(ii)(d)(6), then items of Company income and gain shall be specially allocated to each
such Member in an amount and maner sufficient to eliminate, to the extent required by the
Regulations, the deficit balance in the Capita Account of such Member as quickly as possible,
provided that an allocation pursuat to this Section. 4.05( c) shall be made if and only to the extent
that such Member would have a deficit in its Capita Account afer all other allocations provided
for in ths Aricle IV have been tentatively made as if ths Section 4.05(c) were not in the

. Agreement. 11s Section 4.05( c) is intended to constitute a qualified income offset withn the
meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-I(b)(2)(ii)(d) and shal be interpreted consistently

therewith.
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(d) Member Nonrecourse Deduction. Any Member Nonrecourse
Deductions for any taxable year shall be specially allocated to the Member who bears the
economic risk of loss with respect to the Member Nonrecourse Debt to.which such Member
Nonrecourse Deductions are attributable in accordance with Regulations Section 1. 704-2(i)(l).

4.06. Additional Allocation Rules.

(a) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event any Member's
Percentage Interest in the Company changes during a Fiscal Year for any reason,. including .
without limitation, the transfer of any interest in the Company, the allocation of taxable income
or loss described above shall be adjusted as necessar to reflect the varing interests of the
Members during such year.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) in the event Code Section

704( c) or Code Section 704( c) principles applicable under Treasury Regulations § i. 704-
1 (b )(2)(iv) require allocations of income or loss of the Company in a maner differentthan that.
set forth above, the provisions of Section 704( c) and the regulations thereunder shall control such
allocations among the Members, and (ii) all deductions of the Company that are attbutable to a
liability of the Company for which a Member (or a person related to such Member under
Treasury Regulations §L.752-4(b)) bears the economic risk ofloss (within the meaning of
Treasur Regulations §L.752-2(b)(1)) shall be allocated to such Member.

(c) Subject to the provisions of Section 3.05 hereof, no Member shall
enter into (or permit any person related to the Member to.enter into) any arangement with
respect to any liability of the Company that would result in such Member (or a person related to
such Member under Treasury Regulations §L.752-4(b)) bearng the economic risk ofloss (within
the meaning of Treasru Regulations §L.752-2(b)(l))with respect to such liability unless such
arangement has been approved by the Supermajority-In-Interest of Members. To the extent
Members guarantee the repayment of any Company indebtedness under this Agreement, each of
the Members shall guarantee. such indebtedness in proportion to their respective Percentage
Interests.

4.07. Negative Balance. No Member with a negative balance in his Capital
Account shall be obligated to the Company, another Member or any-third par to restore the
amount of such negative balance.

4.08. Limitation of Liability. Nothing contaned in this Aricle IV shall be
construed to make any Member liable for any actual cash losses of the Company.

4.09. Standards/Tax Allocations. Each Member expressly consents to the
method for making distributions and allocations set forth in this Article IV for book purposes.
For Federal tax puroses, subject to and consistent with Code Section 704(c), Treasur
Regulation L.704-I(b)(2)(iv), and Code Sections 734 and 743, each item of income, gain, loss
and deduction of the Company shall be allocated among the Members in the same maner as its
correlative item of "book" income, gain, loss or deduction has been allocated pursuant to this
Aricle iv.
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ARTICLE V

DEPOSIT AND USE OF COMPANY FUNDS

Upon formation of the Company, all Capital Contributions shall be transferred to
a separate Company account or accounts in such bans or other financial institutions as may be
selected by the Managing Members. Such account or accounts shall be maintained in the name
of or for the benefit of the Company. Thereafter, all revenues, ban loans, proceeds and other
receipts will be deposited and maintained in such account or accounts, which mayor may not
bear interest, and all expenses, costs and similar items payable by the Company wil be paid from
such accounts. The Company's funds, including but not limited to the Members' Capital
Contributions, Comp~ny revenue and the proceeds of any borrowing by the Company, may be
invested as the Managing Members deem advisable. Any interest or other income generated by
such deposits or investments will be considered part of the Company's account. Company funds
from any of the varous sources mentioned above may be commingled with other Company
funds, but nowith the separate fuds of the Members or any other person, parnership or entity,
and may be withdrawn, expended and distributed only as authorized by the terms and provisions
of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

6.01. Management. Subject to the provisions of Section 6.09 and 6.10 of this
Agreement, the day-to-day business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the
Managing Member(s) (as the case may be). Except for situations in which the approval ofthe
Majority-In-Interest of Members or a Supermajority-In-Interest of Members is expressly required
by this Agreement or by non-waivable provisions of the Act, the Managing Member(s) shall
have full and complete authority, power and discretion to manage and control the Company and
all matters related to the Company in its day-to-day business, affairs and propert. Any action
pursuant to any provision of this Agreement that is within the specific authority ofthe
"Managing Member(s)" or that requires the consent of the "Managing Member(s)" shall be taken
only with the consent of all of the Managing Membet(s). The Managing Member(s) shall not be
required to devote their full or exclusive time to the Company and Managing Member(s) shall
not be entitled to a fee for their services to the Company as Managing Member(s).

6.02. Specific Authority Granted to the Managing Member(s). Subject to the

provisions of Sections 6.09 and 6.10 of this Agreement, the Managing Member(s) shall have the
power and authority on behalf of the Company (and without the approval of any Member in this
capacity as a Member) to exercise the following powèrs in addition to any other powers granted
to the Managing Member(s) pursuant to this Agreement (without limiting their other powers):

(a) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, to enter into any contract
or agreement of any nature or to authorize expenditures, which are necessary to, desirable for, or
in furtherance of the 

puroses of the Company, provided the aggregate value of any such
contract, agreement or expenditure does not exceed $10,000.00 on an annual basis;
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(b) Subject to Section 6.02(a) and the other provisions of this
Agreement, to operate and manage the Company's day-to-day business affairs relating to the
Propert;

(c) Subject to Section 6.02(a) and the provisions of this Agreement, to
make reasonable expenditures in connection with the Prop'ert and the Company's business
operations related thereto;

(d) To open and maintain bank accounts;

(e) To receive and receipt for and otherwise deposit of all checks,
monies and securities of the Company;

(f) To maintain for the condllct of Company affairs one or more
offices and do such other acts as the Managing Member(s) may deem necessary or advisable in
connection with the maintenance or administration of such office or offices including, without
limitation, purchasing supplies and maintaining the books and records of the Company, subject
to the terms of this Agreement;

(g) To erigage inçlependent attorneys, accountats, consultats, or

other such persons as may be deemed necessar or advisable in the conduct of the day-to-day
business operations of the Company;

(h) To advertise to otherwise promote the activities of the Company;

(i) To invest funds of the Company from time to time in such short-
term securties, money market funds, certificates of deposit or other liquid assets as the
Managing Member(s) deem appropriate in the best interest of the Company;

(j) To have the Company follow any accounting procedures or
practices as to maintenance of capital accounts, allocations, or distributions which do not conflict
with any other Section of this Agreement;

(k) To change the Company's registered agent or the Company's
registered and principal offces;

(I) To effectuate any and all actions on behalf of the Company which
have been approved by a Majority-In-Interest of Members or a Supermajority-In-Interest of
members pursuant to any provision of this Agreement requiring such approval; and

(m) To do any and all of the foregoing upon such terms and conditions
as the Managing Member(s) may deem proper, and to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and
all instruments in connection with any or all of the foregoing and to take such further action as
the Managing Member(s) may deem necessary or advisable in connection with the conduct of the
affairs of the Company, subject to the terms of this Agreement.

6.03. Liability of Managing Member(s). The Managing Member(s) shall not be
liable to the Company or any member for any loss or damage sustanea by the Company or any
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Member unless the loss or damage is determined by final judgment of a cour of competent
jurisdiction to have been the result of bad faith, gross negligence or wilful misconduct ofthe
Managing Member(s). Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, the Managing

. Member(s) do not in any way guaranty the return of any Capital Contribution to a Member Or a
profit for the Members from the operations of the Company. Subject to the foregoing provisions
oftms Section 6.03~ the Company shall indemnify and hold harless the Managing Member(s)
from and against all claims and demands to the maximum extent permitted under law and in the
same maner as .provided pursuat to Section 7.02 ofthis Agreement.

6.04. Designation of Managing Members. The Managing Member(s) shall be
elected anually by a Majority-In-Interest of Mernbers. Initially, the Managing Member(s) are as
set forth in the Definitions section hereof If any of the Managing Members resign, is no longer
able to serve the Company in such capacity, or is removed for cause (as provided in Section
6.05), then a successor(s) shall be selected by a Majority-In-Interest of Members.

6.05. Removal for Cause.

(a) Any of the Managing Members may be removed for "Cause" (as
defined in Section 6.05(b)) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 6.05(a). Ifa

Majority-In-Interest of Members determines that a Managing Member should be removed for
Cause, such Majority-In-Interest of Members, shall, by their written consent, instruct one of the
other Managing Members to give written notice to the Managing Member facing removal and to
all other Members (a "Removal Notice") which specifies the Cause with paricularity. Such
Member shall be removed as a Managing Member of the Company effective as of the date which
is thirty (30) days after (i) the date such Removal Notice is given with respect to a Cause
described in clause (i) of Section 6.05(b); or (ii) the date the misconduct described in clause (ii)
of Section 6.05(b) is deemed to constitute a Cause, afer giving effect to the applicable cureperiod. .

í'

(b) For purposes of 
this Section 6.05, "Cause" shall mean: (i) the

conviction of a Managing Member for an act involving fraud, embezzlement or financial
dishonesty against the Company; or (ii) wilful and deliberate misconduct on the par of a
Managing Member which remains uncured (in the reasonable opinion of a Majority-In-Interest
of Members) for a period of thirt (30) days after wrtten notice of such misconduct (provided,
however, that if the misconduct is of the tye that canot reasonably be cured within a 30-day
period, such misconduct wil not constitute "Cause" if such Managing Member (in the
reasonable opinion of a Majority-In-Interest of Members) commences to effect such cure withn
the 30-day period and diligently prosecutes such cure through completion, and provided further,
however, that if such Managing Members disputes whether its conduct constitutes misconduct,
then after it has been determined that such Managing Member has engaged in such misconduct
by a Majority-In-InterestofMembers, such Managing Member shall be entitled to cure the same
in accordance with the foregoing provisions). Notwthstanding the foregoing, a Managing

. Member shall not be entitled to the benefit of the cure periods provided in clause.(ii) of this
Section 6.05(b) after the second time such Managing Member cures its wilful and deliberate
misconduct after written notice of such misconduct.
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6.06. Resignation of Manager. A Managing Member may resign at any time by
giving written notice to the Company. The resignation of a Managing Member shall take effect
upon delivery of such notice or at such later time as shall be specified in such notice; and, unless
otherwse specified in the notice, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to
make it effective. If a Managing Member also holds a membership interest (either directlý or
indirectly through another Person), the resignation of such Managing Member shall not affect the
Managing Member's rights with respect to such membership interest and shall not constitute the
Manager's resignation as a Member or as the holder of an interest in another Person which may
hold a membership interest in the Company.

6.07. Offcers. The Managing Members may designate one or more individuals
to be offcers of the Company, and any officers so designated shall have such title, authorities
and duties as the Managing Members may delegate to them, but in no event to exceed the
authonty granted to the Managing Members pursuant to this Agreement. Any offcer may be
removed as such at any time by the Managing Members. The initial offcers of the Company are
as follows:

Jack D. Pires, President & Director of New Development Projects
Americo Seabra, Vice President & Director of Operations and Construction

6.08. Limitation on Power to Manage. Unless authorized to do so pursuant to
this Agreement, no Member, employee or agent of the Company shall have any power or
authority to bind the Company in any way, to pledge the Company's credit, to render the
Company liable for any obligations or to confess judgment against the Company.

6.09. Majority-In-Interest of Members Approval Required. In addition to any
other provisions in this Agreement which expressly require the approval of a Majority-In-Interest
of Members for a paricular action and subject to Section 6.10 of this Agreement, the Company
shall not take action concerning any of the following matters with.out the approval of a Majority-
In-Interest of Members:

(a) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, entering into any contract
or agreement of any nature or authorizing expenditures, which are necessar to, desirable for, or
in fuerance of the puroses of the Company, provided the aggregate value of any such
contract, agreement, or expenditure is in excess of $lO,OOO.OObut not in excess of
$1,000,000.00;

(b) Setting-up, and from time to time adjusting such reserves for
Company expenses, losses, liabilities, and future requirements as may be reasonable or
necessar, as provided in Section 4.04 of this Agreement;

(c) Electing the Managing Members on an anual basis or, from time
to time, appointing successor Managing Members pursuant to Section 6.04 of this Agreement;

(d) Changing the name of the Company pursuant to Section 2.02 of
this Agreement;
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(e) Purchasing, at the expense of the Company, such liability and other
insurance reasonably necessar to protect the Propert and the Company's other assets and
business;

(f) Organzing any other subsidiary entity in which the Company wil
have any voting or other interest or transferring all or substantially all of the asset of the
Company to such entity;

(g) Placing record title to, or the right to use, Company assets in the

name or names of a nominee or nominees for any purose; and

(h) Makng any other decision or action, which by the provisions of
this Agreement is required to be approved by the Majority-In-Interest of Members.

6.10. Supermajority-In-Interest of Members Approval Required. In addition to
any other provision in this Agreement which expressly requires the consent of a Supermajority-
In-Interest of Members for a paricular action, the Company shall not take action concernng any
of the following matters without the consent of a Supermajority-In- Interest of Members.

(a) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, entering into any contract
or agreement of any nature or authorizing expenditures, which are necessar to, desirable for, or
in furtherance of the puroses of the Company, provided the aggregate value of any such
contract, agreement, or expenditure is in excess of $1,000,000.00;

(b) Admitting additional Members of the Company, subject to the
terms of this Agreement and/or on any other terms;

(c) Making a capital call for additional Capital Contributions, pursuant
to Section 3.01 (b) (i) of this Agreement;

(d) Borrowing funds for the Company in an amount in excess of

$1,000,000.00 or securing such borrowings with any of the Company's assets or properties;

(e) Making distributions to Members in accordance with Section 4.03
of this Agreement;

(f) Doing any act in contravention ofthis Agreement;

(g) Filing or consenting to the fiing of a petition under the Federal or

any state banptcy, insolvency or reorganization act with respect to the Company;

(h) Sellng, exchanging, mortgaging, pledging, hypothecating or
otherwise disposing of, dealing with or encumbering the Propert or all or substantially all of the
assets of the Company, except as may be specifically permitted in Sections 6,02 and 6.09 of this
Agreement;

(i) Amending, revising or restating the Company's Certificate of
Formation;
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G) Changing or reorganizing the Company into any other legal form;

(k) Dissolving the Company, consolidating or merging the Company
with another entity, or acquiring substantially all.ofthe assets of any other entity;

(l) Amending, revising or restating this Agreement;

(m) Adjusting, compromising, settling or referring to arbitration, any
claim against or in favor of the Company or any nominee of the Company, or instituting,
prosecuting or defending any legal proceedings relating to the Property and the business of the
Company;

(n) Causing the Company to enter into any contractual arangements
with Members or any of their affliate, pursuant to Section 7.05 of this Agreement;

(0) Approving a Member's transfer of 
all or any portion of his interest

in accordance with Aricle IX of this Agreement; and

(P) Consenting to any other decision or action which by the provisions

of this Agreement expressly requires the consent ofa Supermajority-In-Interest of Members; or
which materially affects the Company or the assets or operations thereof

ARTICLE VII

MEMBERS

7.01. Liability. No Member shall be personally liable for any debts, liabilities,
or obligations of the Company beyond such Member's Capital Contribution, except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement or as required by the Act.

7.02. Exculpation and Indemnification of Members 

(a) Except as specifically provided in this Agreement or as otherwise

required by applicable law, no Member (including any Managing Member) shall be liable to the
Company or to the other Members for any loss, claim, damage or liability arising from, related
to, or in connection with this Agreement, except for any loss, claim, damage or liability
determined by final judgment of a court of competent jursdiction to have resulted from such
Member's (i) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a
knowing violationoflaw or (ii) gross negligence.

(b) The Company shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law indemnify and hold harless each Member (including each Managing Member) (each an

"Indemnified Person") against any and all losses, claims, damages, or liabilities to which such
Indemnified Person may become subject in connection with any matter arising from, related to,
or in connection with, this Agreement or the Company's business or affairs, except for such
losses, claims, damages or liabilities as are determined by final judgment of a cour of competent
jurisdiction to have resulted from such Indemnified Person's bad faith, gross negligence or
wilful misconduct (collectively, "Indemnification Losses"). The Company shall, from time to
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time, reimburse or advance to any Indemnified Person the funds necessar for payment of
reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with any action, suit or
proceeding, upon receipt of a written underting by or on behalf of such Indemiufied Person to
repay such amount(s) if a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to the Indemnified Person
establishes that his acts or omissions (i) were in bad faith or involved wilful misconduct, (ii)
constituted gross negligence, or (iii) were otherwise of such a character that New Jersey law
would require that such amount(s) be repaid. The Company may purchase insurance for the
benefit of Indemnified Persons regarding the subject matter of this Section 7.02(b). .The
Company shall not be liable to any Indemnified Person or third pary for amounts due under âny
settlement effected by an Indemnified Person without the consent of the Supermajority-In-
Interest of Members.

(c) Each Member (including each Managing Member) who.becomes
personally liable or assumes personal liability under or with respect to any agreements,
guarantees or indemnities made, given or issued under or with respect to any investments made
or project undertaken directly or indirectly by the Company (including but not limited to any
loans or other obligations guaranteed by the Members) shall (subject to the provisions of Section
7.01(b)) he indemnfied and held harless by the Company against such personal liability and all
other Indemnification Losses of such Member in connection with any such personal liability or
alleged personal liability or any guaantees or agreements related thereto or any claims or any
proceeding concerning any.ofthe foregoing.

(d) The provisions of this Section 7.02 shall surive any termination of
tils Agreement or the dissolution of the Company.

(e) Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Agreement, the
indemnification obligations of the Company under this Section 7.02 shall:

(i) be in addition to any liability that the Company may

otherwse have;

(ii) extend upon the same terms and conditions to the

employees, agents and representatives of ~ach Indemnfied
Person;

(iii) be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any assigns,

heirs and personal representatives of each Indemnified
Person and any such Indemnified Persons; and

(iv) . he limited tothe assets of the Company.

7.03. No Priority on Return of Capital Contribution or Distributions. Except as.
otherwse provided in ths Agreement, no Member or assignee (as defined under the Act) shall
have priority over any other Member or assignee as to the return of its Capital Contribution or as
to distributions.

7.04. Admission of New Members. With the approval required in Section
6.10(b), the Members may admit additional Persons as Members of the Company, enabling such
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Persons to paricipate in the Net Income, Net Losses, distributions, allocations and Capital
Contributions of the Company in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. If additional
Members are admitted as Members of the Company, they shall have such Percentage Interests as
shall be agreed upon by a Supennajority-In-Interest of members, and the Percentage Interests of
the other Members shall then be modified as shall he agreed upon by a Supermajority-In-Interest
of Members. Upon admission, a new Member shall agree, in wrting, to be bound by this
Agreement.

7.05. Company's Dealings With Members and Related Paries. Subject to the
terms of this Agreement, the Members shall have the right to deal with and enter into any tye of
agreement and arangement with the Company, provided the terms of such arangement are fully
disclosed to the other Members and approved bya Supermajority-In-Interest of Members. The
Members hereto acknowledge and agree that the Company shall have the right to enter into
construction and constrction management agreements with Highland Port Development or
Viridi~ Construction or other entity owned or controlled by Jack D. Pires.

7.06. Expenses. Except as otherwse provided in this Agreement, the Company
shall pay all ordinar and necessar expenses related to its business activities. Such expenses,
whether biled directly to the Company or reimbursed to the Members, may include, but are not
limited to: (i) all costs of or related to borrowing money and the establishment and use of credit
facilities, including, without limitation, any commitment or other fees charged by lenders or
finders, (ii) legal, auditing, accounting, consulting, brokerage and other fees and (iii) other out-
of-pocket costs of the Company. The Company shall also be responsible for costs incurred in
connection with any litigation relating to the business of the Company, including, without
limitation, examinations, investigations or other proceedings. conducted by ay regulatory agency,
legal and accounting fees incurred in connection therewith and any judgments, fines, penalties,
damages, and amounts paid in settlement payable as a result thereof.

ARTICLE VIII

OTHER BUSINESS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Any Member may engage.in, or possess an interest in, other business ventures of
every nature and description, independently or with others, whether or not such other enterprises
shall be in competition with or operating the same or similar businesses as the Company. This
Agreement shall not, however, confer upon the Company or the other Members any right or
opportunity to paricipate in such independent v~ntues or any right to the income or profits
derived therefrom.

ARTICLE IX

WITHDRAWAL OR REMOVAL OF MEMBERS;
TRANSFERAILITY OF COMPANY INTERESTS

9.01. Members.
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(a) Banptcy of Members. A Member shall cease to be a Member
of the Company upon his Bankuptcy.

(b) Payment to Former Member. If a Member ceases to be a Member

pllsuant to Section 9.01 (a), the Company shall pay the former Member for the value of his
membership interest in the Company (as determined below) in five (5) equal anual installments
without interest beginning six (6) months after the event causing the Member to teriinate his
membership interest in the Company, provided, however, that the Company may, in its sole
discretion, prepay such installments at any time without penalty. All payments to former
Member made. pursuant to this Section shall be in accordance with Treàsur Regulations Section
1.704-1 (b)(2)(ii)(b)(2). A former Member's interest in the Company shall for all puroses be
deemed canceled and no longer outstanding as of the day of the event giving rise to the
termination of such interest.

The value of the Member's interest for purposes of this Section9.01.shall be
determined by multiplying the Member's Percentage Interest by the fair market value of the
Company as of the dose ofthe month preceding the month in which the Member's interest is
terminated,. which fair market value shall be established by an appraisal prepared by an appraiser

selected by the Managing Members.

(c) WithdrawaL. A Member is prohibited from resigning or
withdrawing from the Company without the consent of a Supermajority- In-Interest of Members.
Any attempted withdrawal in violation of this Section 9.01(c) shall be null and void for all
purposes.

9.02. Transfer of Member's Interest.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Member's

membership interest in the Company is non-transferable without the consent of a Supermajority-
In-Interest of Members, which consent may be withheld for any reason whatsoever.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Member may transfer any portion of his membership interest to
another Member without such consent and the transferring as well as the transferee Members'
Percentage Interests in the Company shall then be adjusted accordingly. In addition, a Member
may transfer any portion of his membership interest to his wife and/or children (if any) without
the consent of a Supermajority-In-Interest of Members; however, upon such a transfer, unless a
Supermajority-In-Interest of Members agree otherwse, the transferee shall not become a
Member of the Company but instead shall only have rights as an assignee of the transferring
Member under the Act (i.e., shall possess no management or voting rights of any kind). Any
transfer or attempted transfer of all or any part of a Member's interest in the Company except as .
expressly permitted in this Agreement shall be null. and void for all puroses. If a Member is
permitted to transfer his membership interest pursuant to the approval of a Supermajority-In-
Interest of Members, the transferee shall be admitted as a Member of the Company once he, she
or it agrees, in writing, tó be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and upon satisfying such
other conditions oftransfer as the Members approving such transfer shall require.

(b) Upon the death or incompetency of any Member, the Company
shall have to option, exercisable within sixty (60) days of such death or incompetency, to
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purchase all (but not less than all) of such Member's interest in the Company at such time for a
price determined using the valuation mechanism described in Section 9.01(b) above. If the
Company does not exercise the option described in the immediately preceding sentence, each.
remaining Member shall have the option, exercisable within thirt (30) days after the expiration
of the Company's option period, to purchase such Member's Interest in the Company.. Ifmore
than one remaining Member exercises his option to purchase such Member's interest in the
Company, then each remaining Member exercising such option shall purchase that percentage of
such Member's interest in the Company obtained by dividing each paricipating remaining
Members' respective Percentage Interest by the aggregate Percentage Interest of all remaining
Members exercising their right to purchase such Member's interest in the Company. Ifneither
the Company nor the remaining Members exercise their options to purchase such Member's
interest, such Member's interest shall be transferred to the designated beneficiar and, unless a
Supermajority-In-Interest of Members agrees otherwse, such beneficiar shall not become a
Member of the Company but instead shall only have right~ .as an assignee of such Member under
the Act.

(c) Sales of Company Interests to Third Paries. Notwithstading
Section 9.02(a) to the contrar, if any Member receives from a single third part (the "Offeror")
a bona fide offer (the "Offer"), in wrting, signed by the Offeror setting fort all the material
terms of an Offer to purchase all or any portion of such Member's interest in the Company, then
the Member who shall have received such Offer (the "Receiving Member") shall, if he wishes to
accept the Offer, forward a true copy thereof to the Company and each of the Non-Receiving
Members, together with reasonable information as to the identity of the Offeror (e.g., its parners
or directors, offcers and controllng shareholders) and the terms of the Offer.

(i) In such event, the Company shall have thirt (30) days after

receipt of a copy of the Offer from the Receiving Member to either:

(I) notifY the Receiving Member and each other Non-
Receiving Member of its intent to purchase all (but not less than all) of the Receiving Member's
interest offered for sale upon the same terms and conditions contained in the Offer except as to
date, hour, place of closing, and purchase price. Notice of election to purchase shall be
addressed to the Receiving Member and shall provide for the consummation of the tranaction on
the date set forth in the notice of acceptance, which date shall be not more than ninety (90) days
afer the conclusion of the thrt (30) day period referenced in the Section 9.02(c)(i). Such notice

shall also set forth the hour and place of closing. The purchase price to be paid by the Company
for such interest shall equal the lesser of (i) the purchase price stated in the Offer or (i) eighty
five percent (85%) of the price determned using the valuation mechanism described in Section
9.01(b) above; or

(2) notifY the Receiving Member and each other Non-
Receiving Member that it does not elect to purchase all (but no less than all) of the Receiving
Member's interest offered for sale. If the Company does not give notice to the Receiving
Member within the option period referenced in Section 9.02( c )(i)(l), the Company shall be
deemed to have given notice that it does not elect to purchase all of the Receiving Member's
interest.
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(ii) If the Company does not elect to purchase all of the

Receiving Member's interest pursuantto Section 9.02(c)(i), then each Non-Receiving Member

(other than the Company) shall within ten (10) days afer receiving notice (or having been
deemed to receive notice pursuant to Section 9.02(c)(i)(2) of this Agreement) shall either:

(1) notify the Receiving Member of his intent to

purchase all (but not less than all) of the Receiving Member's interest offered for sale upon the
same terms and conditions contained in the Offer exc.ept as to date, hour, place of closing, and
purchase price. Notice of election to purchase shall be addressed to the Receiving Member and
shall provide for the consumation of the transaction on the date set forth in the notice of
acceptance, which date shall be Iiot more than ninety (90) days after the conclusion of the ten

(10) day period referenced in this Section 9.02(c)(ii). Such notice shall also set fort the hour
and place of closing. The purchase price to be paid by such Non-Receiving Member(s) shall
equal the lesser of (i) the purchase price stated in the Offer or (ii) eighty five percent (85%) of
the price determined using the valuation mechanism described in Section 9.01(b) above; or

. (2) notify the Receiving Member that he does not elect
to purchase all 

(but not less than all) of the Receiving Member's interest offered for sale. If any
Non:"Receiving Memberdoes not give notice to the Receiving Member within the option period
referenced in the Section 9.02(c)(ii), such Non-ReceivingMember shall be deemed to have given
notice that it does not elect to purchase all of the Receiving Member's interest.

(iii) If any Non-Receiving Member elects, within his option

period, to purchase all of the Receiving Member's interest offered for sale in accordace with
Section 9.02(c)(i) or Section 9.02(c)(ii), then the Receiving Member shall be obligated to sell
and transfer all of his interest offered for sale to the relevant Non-Receiving Members as set
forth in Section 9.02(c)(i) or Section 9.02(c)(ii). Ifmore than one (1) Non-Receiving Member
(other than the Company) elects to purchase all of the Receiving Member's interest offered for
sale, then each Non-Receiving Member shall purchase a percentage of the Receiving Member's
interest described by the fraction, the numerator of which is the respective Non-Receiving
Member's Percentage Interest and the denominator of which is the aggregate Percentage
Interests of all Non-Receiving Members (other than the Company) electing to purchase all of the
Receiving Member's interest offered for sale.

(iv) If the Company and/or the Non-Receiving Members do not
close on the purchase of all of the Receiving Member's interest by the date set forth in the notice
of acceptance, then the Receiving Member shall have the right and option (to be exercised by
wrtten notice to the Non-Receiving Members to such effect within sixty (60) days afer such
failure to close) to sell his interest to the Offeror upon the terms submitted in the Offer. Upon
the sale of the Receiving Member's interest to the Offeror, the Offeror shall be admitted as a -
Member of the Company in place of the Receiving Member which shall have sold his interest.
As a condition precedent to the foregoing, the Offeror shall execute and deliver an instrument, in
substance and form satisfactory to the.Supermajority-In-Interest of Members (excluding the
Receiving Member), assuming and agreeing to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(v) If the Non-Receiving Members do not exercise their rights
to purchase all of the Receiving Member's interest under Section 9.02(c)(i) or 9.02(c)(ii), then,
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upon the sale of the Receiving Member's interest to the Offeror, the Offeror shall similarly be
admitted as a Member of the Company in place of the Receiving Member whichshall have sold
his interest. As a condition precedent to the foregoing, the Offeror shall execute and deliver an
instruent, in substance and form satisfactory to a Supermajority-In-Interest of Members
(excluding the Receiving Member), assuming and agreeing to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

(vi) Whether any transaction contemplated by the foregoing
provisions ofthis Section 9.02(c)is consummated pursuant to the provisions of this Section
9 .02( c), all the provisions of this Section 9 .02( c) shall apply to any subsequent offer or offers
made to purchase a Member's interest.

(d) If a Member is permitted to transfer his interest pursuant to
approval ofa Supermajority-In-Interest of Members, as provided in this Agreement, the
transferee shall be admitted as a Member of the Company once he, she or it agrees, in wrting, to
be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and upon the transferee's satisfaction of such other
conditions of transfer as the Members shall require.

9.03. Optional Adjustment to Basis of Company Propert. In the event ofthe
transfer of any interest of a Member in the Company pursuant to the death, incompetency.or
Banptcy of a Member, the Managing Members may cause the Company to make an election
as provided in Section 754 of the Code (if such an election is not already in effect for the
Company) and cause the Company to make the adjustments to the basis of the propert of the
Company (with regard to the transferee Member only) as provided in Section 754 ofthe Code.

ARTICLE X

DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

i 0.0 i. Dissolution.

(a) The Company shall be dissolved and its business terminated upon
the happening of the earliest of the following:

(i) The occurrence of any event which causes a dissolution

under the laws of New Jersey; or

(ii) The consent ofthe Supermajority-In-Interest of Members;
or

(iii) Ninety days after the date on which the Company no longer

has at lease one Member, unless at least one new Member
is . admitted within that ninety day period.

(b) The Banptcy, death, expulsion, or incapacity of any Member
will not cause the dissolution of the Company.
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(c) Upon any dissolution of the Company, the accountants then
retained by the Company shall prepare a statement setting forth the assets and liabilities of the
Company as of the date of dissolution, and such statements shall be fuished to all Members.

10.02. Liquidation.

(a) In the event of the dissolution of the Company, which dissolution
(if applicable) is not followed by an election of the remaining Members to reconstitute the
Company, the assets of the Company shall be sold or distributed as promptly as possible, but in
an orderly and businesslike maner, as the Managing Members shall determine. All assets of the
Company which are sold shall be sold at such price and upon such terms-as the Managing
members may deem advisable. Any Member may purchase the assets of the Company at such
sale. If for any reason the Managing Members canot take charge of the liquidation, the
Members shall select a Person to do so in their place by the consent of ~ Majority-In-Interest of
Members.

(b) The proceeds of any sale described in Section 1 0.02( a), in addition
to the cash and securities on hand, shall be applied and distributed in the following order of
priority:

(i) to the payment of debts and liabilities of the Company,

including, without limitation, loans payable to Members; then .

(ii) to the setting up of such reserves as a Majority-In-Interest

of Members may deem necessar for any contingent liabilities or obligations of the Company,
provided that any such reserves shall be paid over to an independent escrow agent, to be held by
such agent or his successor for such period as such Person shall deem advisable for the purose
of applying such reserves to the payment of such liabilities or obligations and, at the expiration
of such period, the balance of such reserves, if any, shall be distributed as hereinafter provided;
then

(iii) to the Members, in proportion to the positive balances of

their respective Capital Accounts after all Net Income and Net Loss resulting from the
liquidation and/or distribution of all assets of the Company have beenallocated.

( c) The liquidator of the Company (if not the Managing Members)
may in his discretion distribute any or all of the Company's assets in kind and in varing
amounts (including a percentage of one or more such assets which exceeds the percentage in
which a Member shares in distributions from the Company) to the Members.

10.03. Retur of Capital Contrbution. The retu of all or any part of the Capital
Contribution of the Members shall be made solely from Company assets and the Members shall
have no right to demand either cash or propert other than cash.

10.04. No Release. No dissolution of the Company shall release any Member
from his obligations under this Agreement.
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ARTICLE XI

ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD; RECORDS; TAX RETURNS.

11.01. Anual Accounting Period. The annual accounting period of the
Company shall be the Fiscal Year.

11.02. Records.

(a) The Managing Members shall maintain, or cause to be maintained,
the Certificate and all amendments thereto, this Agreement and all amendments hereto, complete
and accurate records of all transactions of the Company, copies of the Company's tax returns,
and full and true books of account in accordance with the accounting method followed by the
Company for Federal income tax puroses. .

(b) All of such books and records shall, at all times, be kept at the
principal office of the Company and, during regular business hours, shall be opened upon
reasonable notice for inspection, examination and copying by a Member or the Member's
authorized representative( s).

11.03. Income Tax Retus.

(a) The Managing Members are hereby designated as the "tax matters
members" under the Code.

(b) . With respect to the preparation of Federal, state and local income

tax retus of the Company, the ta matters member shall see to the preparation and filing of all
such returns in a timely maner and shall make, in his sole discretion, uness otherwise provided
herein, such. elections or determinations as may be desirable and available under curent
provisions of the Code. In the event that the Internal Revenue Service audits the return of any
Member with respect to his participation in the Company, the Company shall have the right, but
not the obligation, to participate at its own expense in such audit in matters afecting the
Company's ta retu. The Members shall tae such steps and execute such instruents as may
be required to accomplish this, including without limitation the execution of powers of attorney.
In the event of an income ta audit of any Company tax retu, to the extent the Company is
treated as an entity for purposes of the audit, including administrative settlement and judicial

reyiew, the tax matters member shall be authorized to act for, and his decisions shall be final and
binding upon, the Company and the Members. The ta matters member shall keep the other
Members apprised of the status of any income ta audit.

ARTICLE XII
,

STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION

12.01. In addition to maintaining the information referenced in Section 11.02(b)
hereof, the tax matters member shall deliver (or have delivered) to the Members the followig:
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(a) By March 31 st of each year, a statement which shall include, as of
the end of and for the previous Fiscal Year, the following: '

(i) A balance sheet and the related statements of cash receipts,

disbursements, and changes in Members' capital;

(ii) The then current balances in the Capital Accounts of the

Members; and

(iii) Such other information as, in the opinion of the tax matters

member, shall reasonably be necessar for the Members to be curently aware of the operating
and business results of the Company.

(b) Any information reasonably necessar for the preparation by any
Member of his Federal, state and local income or other tax returns.

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may not be amended except by the consent of the Supermajority-
In-Interest of Members. All amendments made in accordance with this Aricle XII shall be
evidenced by a writing executed by the Members and a copy of such wntten amendments shall
be kept at the office ofthe Company. Notwthstading the foregoing, the Managing Members
shall amend this Agreement from time to time in each and every maner to comply with the then
existing requirements of the Code, Treasur Regulations and rulings of the Internal Revenue
Service affecting the status of the Company as a "parership" for Federal income tax purposes,.

and no amendment wil be approved which shall directly or indirectly affect or jeopardize the
status of the Company as a "parership" for Federal income ta purposes.

ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

14.01. Notices. Any offer, acceptace, election, approval, consent, request,
waiver, notice or other document required or permitted to be given pursuant to any provision of
this Agreement shall be deemed duly given only when in writing, signed by or on behalf of the

person giving same, and either personally delivered (with receipt acknowledged by the recipient)
. or deposited in a designated United States mail depository, registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the person or persons to who such offer,
acceptance, election, approval, consent, request, waiver or notice is to be given at their respective
addresses indicated herein, or at such other address as shall have been set forth in a notice sent
pursuant to the provisions of this Section 14.01.

14.02~ Binding Effect. Subject in all respects to the limitations. concerning the
tranferability of interests in the Company contained herein and except as otherwise herein
expressly provided, the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
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benefit of the paries hereto, their respective personal representatives, heirs and permitted
assigns.

14.03. Counterpars. This Agreement may be executed in any number of

counterparts and by facsimile machine transmission. Each such counterpar and/or facsimile
machine transmission shall, for all puroses, constitute one agreement which is binding on all of
the paries hereto.

14.04. Paragraph Headings. Paragraph titles or captions contained in ths
Agreement are iriserted as a matter of convenience and for reference only, and shall not be
constred in any way to define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or the
intention of the provisions thereof.

14.05. Exhibits. All exhibits and schedules anexed hereto are expressly made a
par of this Agreement, as fully as though co~pletely set forth herein, and all references to this
Agreement herein or in any of such exhibits or schedules shall be deemed to refer to and include
all such exhibits or schedules.

14.06. Variation in Pronouns. All pronouns and varations thereof shall be
deemed to refer to masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the person or
persons may require.

14.07. Severability. Each provision hereof is intended to be severable and the
invalidity or illegality of any portion of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or legality of
the remainder.

14.08. Qualification in Other States. In the event the business of the Company is
caried on or conducted in states in addition to New Jersey, then the Members agree that the
Company shall exist under the laws of each state in which business is actually conducted by the
Company, and they severally agree to execute such other and fuher documents as may be

required or requested in order that the Memberslegally may qualify the Company in such states
to the extent possible. A Company office or principal place of business in any state may be .
designated from time to time by the Members.

14.09. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement ofthe
parties hereto with respect to the matters set forth herein and supersedes any prior understanding
or agreement, oral or wrtten.

14.10. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

14.11. Forum. Any action by one or more Members against the Company or by
the Company against one or more Members which arses under or in any way relates to this
Agreement, actions taen or failed to be taken or determinations made or failed to be made by
the Members or relating to the Company including, without limitation, transactions permitted
hereunder or otherwise related in any way to the Company, may be brought only in the state
cours of the State of New Jersey or the United States District Cour for the District of New
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Jersey. Each Member hereby consents to the jurisdiction of such cours to decide .any and all
such actions and to such venue.

14.12. Attorney Review. The Members represent and agree that:

(a) each Member fully understands his right to discuss all aspects of
ths Agreement with his private attorney;

(b) to the extent each Member desires, he has availed hims.ef of this
. right;

. (c) . each Member has read carefully and understands fully all of the
provisions of this Agreement; and

(d) each Member is voluntarily entering into this Agreement.

(remainder of ths page intentionally blan)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Operating Agreement
date first written above.
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EXHIBIT A

Description of Property

1. 385-387 Communipaw Avenue, Block 2042 Lots 1 and 2, Jersey City, N.J.
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America Seabra
Jack D. Pires
Total Membership Interest

EXHIBITB

Initial Percentage Interests

50.0%
50.0%

100.00%
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DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
OF CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY GROUP, LLC

Entity: Capital Development Realty Group, LLC,
a New Jersey limited liability company

Members:

Member Percentage Interest

Americo Seabra 50.0%
10 Birchwood Lane
Watchung, N.J. 07069
Jack Pires (Manager) 50.0%
1168 Sherlin Drive
Bridgewater, N.J. 08807

I hereby certify that the foregoing list represents all of the members owng a ten
percent (10.0%) or greater interest in Capital Development Realty Group, LLC. The
operating agreement (to e' ments) of the Applicant is true, correct and
complete and .ns in full :6 ct.

efore me this ~da of July, 2011.

Miles M. Hunter
An Attorney-at-Law of New Jersey
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6-22-11

TAX AGREEMENT 

FIVE YEARIEW CONSTRUCTION

THIS AGREEMENT made on this day of ,2011, by and
between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City), a municipal corporation organized under
the Laws of the State of New Jersey and having its principal place of business at 280
Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey, and, CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT REALTY
GROUP, LLC, (Applicant), whose principal place of business is 81-83 Vesey Street,
Newark, New Jersey 07105.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council has indicated by its intention to utilize the
five year tax exemption provisions authorized by Aricle VIII, Section I, paragraph VI of
the NJ State Constitution and the Five Year Exemption Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq.
for improvements and projects by the adoption of Ordinance 05-060, as amended by
Ordinance 07-146; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant. is owner of certain property located at 5 Monitor
Street, a/a 302-306 Communpaw Avenue, in the City of Jersey City, County of
Hudson and State of New Jersey, designated as Block 2050, Lot 29 on the Tax
Assessor's Map, more commonly known by the street address of 302-306 Communipaw
Avenue and more particularly described in the metes and bounds description attached
hereto as ExhibitA (Property);

WHREAS, on or about July 8, 2011, the Applicant applied for a five year tax
exemption for a new Mixed-Use Residential/Commercial Building, four (4) story
building on the Property with 15 aparment unts, a commercial unit on the ground floor
and 15 on-site parking spaces (Improvements) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq and
Section 304-12 of the Municipal Code (Law); and

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the application, approved the constrction of
the Improvements and authorized the execution of a Tax Exemption Agreement by the
adoption of Ordinance_on ,2011.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and
covenants hereinafter contained, the paries hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I: APPROVAL OF TAX EXEMPTION

The City hereby agrees to a tax exemption for the constrction of a new
(Commercial or Industrial Strctue OR Multiple Dwellng) (Improvements) on the
Property, as fuer described in the Application, attched .hereto as Exhibit B, pursuant

to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq. and Ordinance which authorized the
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execution ofthis Tax Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions hereof.

ARTICLE II: IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENTS

The Applicant agrees to make payments on the new Improvements, (separate and
apart from taxes on the land and existing improvements which shall continue to be
subject to conventional assessment and taxation and for which the Applicant shall receive
no credit against the in lieu of tax payment) in lieu of full property ta payments
according to the following schedule:

1. For the full Lalendar year of 20 12, no payment in lieu of taxes;

2. For the full calendar year of 2013, thirt-nine (39%) percent of the actual

taxes otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of$13,647.00;

3. For the full calendar year of 2014, fift-nine (59%) percent of the actual

taxes otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of $20,645.00;

'4. For the full calendar year of 2015, seventy-nine (79%) percent of the

actual taxes otherwise due, curently estimated to be the sum of
$27,643.00; and

5. F or the full calendar year of 2016 eighty (80%) percent of the actual taxes

otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of$27,993.00.

In the event a City-wide revaluation results in an increase or decrease in the
amount of taxes otherwse due, payment shall be the higher of either the taxes estimated
above or the amount of actul taxes after the City-wide revaluation.

ARTICLE III: APPLICATION FEE

The Applicant agrees to pay the sum of $3,000.00 to the City on or before the date
this Agreement is executed. Failure to make such payment shall cause the ta exemption
to terminate.

ARTICLES IV: FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAW

The construction of the Improvements is subject to all applicable federal, State
and local laws and regulations on pollution control, worker safety, discrimination in
employment, housing provision, zoning, planng and building code requirements.

ARTICLE V: TERM OF EXEMPTION

The Tax Exemption granted shall be valid and effective for a period of five (5)
full calendar years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project, which shall.
ordinarly mean the date on which the City issues, or the Project is eligible to receive, a
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Certificate of Occupancy, whether temporar or final, for part or the whole of the Project.

During the term of the tax exemption, the Applicant shall make an in lieu of tax payment
to the City in accordance with the schedule set forth above. Prior to the commencement
of the tax exemption, and upon expiration thereof, the Applicant shall pay full
conventional taes on the Improvements.

ARTICLE VI: REVALUE

The applicant has agreed that in the event the revalue results in a decrease in the
amount of actual taes otlerwise due for purposes of calculating a tax paymènt hereunder
and for the five (5) year period, the amount shall be calculated on the higher of the
amount estimated hereunder or the actul taxes.

ARTICLE VII: COUNTY EQUALIZATION AND SCHOOL AID

Pursuat to N.J.S.A. 40A:21-11(c), the percentage, which the payment in lieu of
taes for the ta exempt property bears. to the property tax which would have been paid

had an exemption not been granted for the propert under this Agreement, shall be
applied to the valuation of the propert to determine the reduced valuation of the property
to be included in the valuation of the City for determining equaization for county tax
apportionment and school aid, during the term of the ta exemption agreement covering
this property. At the expiration or termination of this Agreement; the reduced valuation
procedure required under the Law shall no longer apply.

ARTICLE VIII: OPERATION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

If during any year prior to the termination of this Agreement, the Applicant ceases
to operate or disposes of the Property, or fails to meet the conditions for qualifying for
tax exemption under thìs Agreement or pursuant to Law, then the ta whìch would have
otherwse been payable for each and every year, shall become due and payable from the
Applicant as if no exemption had been grated. The Tax Collector shall, within 15 days
thereof, notify the owner of the Property of the amount of taes due.

However, with respect to the disposal of the propert, if it is. determined that the
new owner will continue to use the propert pursuant to the conditions which qualify the
property for exemption, the tax exemption shall continue and thìs Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE IX: TERMINATIONÆLIGIBILITY
FOR ADDITIONAL TAX EXEMPTION

Upon the termination of this Agreement for tax exemption, the Project shall be
subject to all applicable real propery taes as provided by State Laws and Regulations
and City Ordinances~ However, nothing herein shall be deemed to prohìbit the Project, at
the termination of this Agreement, from qualifying for and receiving the full benefits of
any other tax preferences allowed by law. Furthermore, nothing herein shall prohibit the
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Applicant from exercising any rights under any other tax provisions of State law or City

Ordinances.

In the event the owner elects to terminate this tax abatement after the revalue, the
owner shall pay the City the difference of 100% of the full amount of the taxes otherwse
due from 2012 to the date oftermination.

ARTICLE X: PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

In order to provide City residents and businesses with employment and other
economic opportunities, the Applicant agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of
the Project Employment Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

ARTICLE XI: NOTICES .

All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing. Each notice
shall be sent by-registered or certified' mail, postage prepaid, retu receipt requested, to
the part to be notified at the addresses set forth below or at such other address as either

party may from time to time designate in writing:

Notice to City: Business Administrator

City Hall, 280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Notice to Applicant: Capital Development Realty
Group, LLC
81-83 Vesey Street
Newark, New Jersey 07105

ARTICLE XII: GENERAL PROVISIONS

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the paries and cannot be
amended, changed or modified except by written instrent executed by the parties

hereto.

In the event that any provisions or term of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by an Cour of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other. provision hereof; provided, however, that the City
continues to receive the full benefit of any economic term hereunder.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws
of the State of New Jersey. .

This agreement may be executed in several counterpars, each of which shall
constitute but one and the same instruent.
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IN WITNESS WHREOF, the City and the Applicant have caused this
Agreement to be executed on the date and year first above written.

WITNESS: CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT
REALTY GROUP, LLC/~

Name: Miles . Hunter

ATTEST:. CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

By:
John Kelly
Business Administrator
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APPLICATION

1. Identification of the Propert: Block 1999. Lots 12.E and 34 as shown on the

Official Assessment map of the City of Jersey City, and more commonly known
referred to as 742-748 Ocean Avenue.

2. Type of Exemption Required:

The Applicant seeks a long term tax exemption under and pursuant to N.J.S.A.
55:14K-1et. seq. (HMFA law) for a residential multi-family housing project. The
applicant seeks abatement based on 10 percent of project revenues.

3. General Statement of the nature of the Project:

Development of a 44 unit residential building consisting of (44) one bedroom
rental units (one non rent-paying superintendent's unit) and off street parking
spaces affordable to very low income renters. Five (5) of the units wil be rented
to Special Needs residents. The rental from the Special Needs units will be
limited to 30% of tenant income.

4. Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is 30 years from
the date of substantial completion of the Project.

5. Improvements to be Constructed:

The site consists of approximately 18,293 square feet of land in Jersey City, NJ.
The Project will be the construction of residential rental complex containing 44
units with off street parking spaces. The building will be 5 stories high. The
residential units will be located in the building and distributed as follows:

44 One Bedroom (one unit wil be reserved for the superintendent)

Each residential apartment unit will contain all new utilities and appliances for
heating, air conditioning, plumbing and electric. The building will be of steel and
wood frame construction. The Building will be located on Ocean Avenue, The
driveway entering and exiting the parking lot will be located on Ocean Avenue,

The Property currently owned by the Ocean Green, LLC. The Applicant has
signed a contract to purchase the Project from its current owner for $700,000.00.
The Applicant will take title to the property upon award of the 9% L1HTC. The
Applicant wil construct the project. The Applicant plans to lease the residential
units and parking spaces to seniors and 5 special needs residents. The standard
form lease will require the tenant to pay the following rents:

Rentals (Including utilities)
$600 1 Bedroom
$0 1 Bedroom
$0-$600 1 Bedroom

38 units
1 unit (Super)
5 units (Special Needs)



A general description of the lease is attached as Exhibit B.

6. Estimated Total Cost of the Project:

The total cost of the project as set forth in Exhibit 0 and 01 is estimated to be
$10,348,176. The Total Project Cost has been calculated in accordance with the
provisions of New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency's Low Income
Housing Tax Credit's Breakdown of Cost and Basis. Construction costs have
been estimated based upon information compiled by the Applicant. The
breakdown of the Total Project Cost is attached as Exhibit D.

7. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses:

A Schedule of Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses for the Project is attached
hereto as Exhibit C. A Projected Statement of Operations is attached hereto as
Exhibit E.

8. Construction Schedule:

The Construction of the Project is scheduled to commence within 90 days of the
date of execution of the Financial Agreement wil be completed within
approximate 18 months thereafter.

9. Municipal Land Use Approvals:

The Applicant has applied for approval for the Project from the Jersey City Board
of Adjustment as attached hereto as Exhibit F.

10. Real Estate Tax Assessments:

The tax assessment information for the property upon which the Project is to be
located is attached hereto as Exhibit G.

11. Real Estate Taxes Levied:

The total payments for the municipal real estate taxes were paid by the Seller as
ser forth in Exhibit G-1.

12. Status of Municipal Taxes and Other Charges:

The Applicant is a contract purchaser of the property. To the best of Applicant's
knowledge and belief, all real estate taxes and other assessments against the
property have been paid in fulL. The Applicant payor cause all real estate taxes
or other assessments due on the property to be paid prior to the execution of the
Financial Agreement.

13. Disclosure Statement:

The Disclosure Statement is attached hereto as Exhibit H-1. The Applicant is a
limited partnership in formation being organized under the laws of the State of



New Jersey including . A copy of the Certificate of
Formation is attached hereto as part of Exhibit H.

14. Certification of Construction Commencement:

The Certification of Construction Commencement is attached hereto as Exhibit i.

15. Estimate Jobs Created:

The Applicant estimates that construction of the Project will generate 80 jobs
over the construction period. Approximately ~ permanent full time real estate
rental, management, clerical and service positions wil be created.

16. Compliance with State and Local Law:

A Certification by the Applicant that the Project meets the requirements of the
laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City is attached hereto as
Exhibit J.

17. Certification of Truthfulness and Diligent Inquiry:

A Certification by the Applicant that the Project meets the requirements of the
laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City is attached hereto as
Exhibit K.

18. Financial Agreement:

The proposed Financial Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit L.

19. Fee:



6/21/2011

Ocean Green Senior Apartments

Narrat,ive Des'c.ription

Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P. proposes to develop a new construction, five-story,
44-unIt aparment building at 742-748 Ocean Avenue, in the Bergen-Lafayette section of
Jersey City, for low-income 8eniors and Special Needs households. All units wil be
one-bedroom, and all rents wil be affordable to households earing 50% or less of the
Area Median Income (AMI). There wil be one non-rent paying Super's unit.

Ocean Green Senior Aparents wil be EPA Energy Star-certified and New Jersey
Green Future Program compliant, with twenty-thee (23) parking spaces, a ground floor
community room and laundry area, and a second floor green-roof common terrace. The
site is conveniently located withn walking distance of a supermarket, a U.S. Post Offce,
retail shops and bans, the Maureen Coller Senior Center, and a Light Rail station
offering access to the Newport Shopping Mall and to PATH trains which connect to
additional local and regional transportation.

Ocean Green Senior wil provide Seniors the opportity to age with dignity in the
communty in which they live. The Jersey City Office on Aging and other providers will
furnish affordable and appropriate social services to building residents at the on-site
Community Room. The Visiting Homemaker Service of Hudson County wil provide
services to Frail Elderly residents, while the Jersey City Medical Center wil deliver
social services to residents of five (5) Special Needs housing units.

There is a severe need for afordable Special Needs and Senior apartments in New Jersey,
and that need is even more acute in Jersey City, where rents have risen unabated for more
than ten years. Ocean Green Senior Aparmets wil build on positive public, retail and
residential developments in the Bergen-Lafayette section in recent years, while also
putting a vacant piece of land to productive use and allowing long-time communty
residents the chance to not be priced out of their neighborhood.

Comfortably-sized aparments, an on-site security guard, a security intercom system, the
community room, laundr facilities, landscaped outdoor seating areas and secure,
covered garage parking wil all make Ocean Green Senior Aparents a valuable asset to
the community and to the City of Jersey City.



03/2?/2011 13: 33 FAX -+ GENE OCONNLL 14 008/010

STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY
COMMTMENT

BEING fu descbed as follows:

BEGINING at a point in the Southastely right-of-way line of Ocea Avenue (70' Wide), where the same is
intersected by th lie dividing Block 1999 Lot 12C and Block 1999 Lot 12E and from then; runng

1. North 21 degrees 58 miutes 46 seconds East, along said southeastrly right-of-way line of Ocean Avenue,
and the norwesterly lie of Block 1999 Lots 12E and 34, distat 127.14 feet to a point and th

southwestely line of Block 178 Lot A; thence

2. South 72 degrees 18 miute 06 seonds East, along said southwestely line of Block 178 

lot A, distat140.39 fet to a point and the nortwestely comer of Bloc 1999 Lot G1¡ thence

3. South 21 degree 58 miute 46 seconds West, along the nortwesterly line of Block 1999 Lots Gl, FI, El,
Dl, 18A and 18B, ditat 121.62 feet to a point and the norteasterly line of Block 1999 Lot 19C¡ thce

4. Nort 68 degrees 01 miute 14 seds West, along the norteasterly lie of Block 1999 Lot 19C, distat
15.00 feet to II point and the nortwestely comer of Block 1999 Lot 19C; thence

S. South 21 degree 58 minutes 46 sends West, along th nortwesterly line of Bloc 1999 Lot 19C, distant
16.00 feet to a point and the norteastely lie of Bloc 1999 Lot 12F¡ then

6. Nort 68 degrees Ol minute 14 seonds West, aJong said northeasterly lie of Block 1999 Lots 12F and 12C,
distat 125.00 fet to the above descbed point or place of BEGINNG.

The above descption was drawn in accordance with a survey made by Dresdner Robin dated October 7, 2005 and
revised Septeber 28, 2006.

FOR INORMATION ONLY:
Commonly known as:
742-748 Ocean Avenue

Jersey City, New Jersey

End of Scedule A - Description

BK=08040 PG=001sa

AlTORNTIE SERVICES, LLC
6 South Avenue Ba CrIl, New Jers 0716
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Q!uutruct fur ~ult Df 1Reul1Eatute

This Contract f~r Sale is made on June I K 2011- ~BETWEEN

~~~~!!n, L~C
~---~------ --------._- (Include Soc. Sec. No.)

whose address is l75 G!."!eld Avenue

Jersey CIty, NJ 07305-'~---~~_H____.___._______
-'-- ---_.__.__._--_._--_._.-

------ -----.----.-._.N_._.._.__.__~____,

-----.---.------.-___.H._____
referred to as the "Seller,"

AND

Ocean Green SenIor Aparlminla, L P._..._.._-_._-------------

-----------_.._-_..._._--_.....-

_.._---.._------------ -------- (Include Soc. Sec. No.)

whose address is 85!-~~'!~!!_~~_
Jersey City, NJ 07307

=
referred to as the "Buyer.".

The WOrds "Buyer" and "Seller" Include all Buyers and all Sellers listed aboe.

i. Pu..baR A.."'l Tb Sell"... to ..II.."" Do,.,.. to 

!m lb. ~ (oal" """"po)
described in this Contract.

~ Pro""". Tb ..rty to be "id -.", .. (.) th "' "' .n "... bul~... ... .... ..d

""to.. .. th "'''; (h) ~I """ Soi ""''' ....g to th "'d; .'" (~.. p..."" ""y ''''''iy '''.,,'' ....C..t.... Tb""~tobe..Id.__.. ~8 ~.__

--------- -------.--.-.------_MM____..
--'---'_HM__'___'_"'''''___'_'__'_'_N----- -------

-----_..,--_.._----_._---
-'--------_._.__.._---~---_._-~_....~.__.__._._... lb. ---~ "_J.'! Oil --.. ""....r .'ds.".___

"" s.... .r Now Jom. It. "ow.. .. ""''po "" ...,,,. lo _'~E .~ " h1""~!..
This Property Is more fully described In the attached Schedule A.a Putt... Prlæ. Th "".. "".." $ .!~~__
4. Payment of Purchase PrIce. The Buyer wil pay the purchase Price as follows:

Previously paid by the Buyer (Initial deposit)

Upon signing of this Contract (balance of deposit) $ _"-C!.O~____.._______

$ 899,900.00Balance to be paid at closing of tlt/e, In cash or by certlfed or bank cashlets check or.I.....y'. -1-...... Cohj",i.. -....."". $ ~_._
5. Time and ~.~c.::2slig. The Closing date cannot be made fial at this thne. The Buyer and Seller agre to

.. --' 11. ~.. lb. ...."" "''' r" th.."' D.lb.._ wil fuly ""p'"''''lb. """.."" "k. p," .."be"" "" ....d "'... Th. "'''wllI be 'old.i ~ ~_
O'Connell, 853 Summit Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07307_._......._.._........._....._-_._._-_.._._----_.._-------------_._._----_._--_..__._--_.__._._-

~-_....__.._~-_._._..._-_.._---~---_.-

~ ..""''.r Ow""~ At th ."" "" Sell" wil_ _"'hi .r th ....y to "" D.,.. Th'
i"...r" .r ""..'Ip win be ... ".11.... ""'" """'' _pt.. pnld.d I. _, .. "... "..""I.
Tbe Sell, WILL "" lb. D.., · ""Iy """'d ..d .'" .. .... _"" "TI. ce lb. Sell" . .
corporation, It will also deliver a corprate resolution authorizing the sale.

7. Ty.. or Do.d. A d... · · -. d"".... '" to __ -...Ip "P"". r. lbl. ..I, lb. S.""
agrees to provide and the Buyer agres to accept a deed .known as bargain and sale with covenants against grntors'
acta.

~ Pi..,.., C.n~".. "'" Pm_. Th" Pm...." ....d ".. I.," ..IC"....p. 10.. ..""'.. by
F",,~ ii...n. Tb Sen" - ""I "" .. .. " _. obi th "","n " ",I.. .r 'OY .r ..
Pro_,...""" .. lb. ..... Tb D""..,."" th~.. "" """"""''d.oy ""'''_'
may be provlded for In other part of thi Contract.

· Wok.r w.. Th Sell". ..""b.. r".oy d._.. thPry,..pt r" _.,..,.", lo'. ..til ,..
closing.

-------_._..__._-_..__..-

130 - Conlnct for Sale of Real Estate _ Short Fonn
Ind. or Corp. - Plain Languaga
Rev. 910 P8to -by

HOTdoc' C20 by ALL-BATE LEGAL.
A Division of ALL-BTATE International, Inc.
WW.alegal.com 80.222.0510 Paga i
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10. Lead Paint. The Buyer acknowledges that:

o The SelIer has provided the Buyer with an EPA-approved lead hazard InConnation pamphlet.
o The Seller has attached to this Contract a Lead Warning Statement (see ALL-TATE fonn NC132).
o The SelIer has disclosed the presence of known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards and has

provided additional InConnation concerng the known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards, or has
Indicated no knowledge of the presence of lead-baed paint and/or lead-based paint hazards.

o The SelIer has provided the Buyer with a list of any records or report avaUable to the Seller pertining to lead-
based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards or Seller has indicated that no such records or report are.

available.

11. Lead Paint Sale Contingency. This Contract Is contingent upon a rIsk assessment or inspection of the Property
for the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards at the Buyer's expense until 9 p,m. on the tenth

calendar-day aftr the signing of this Contract by all partIes for housing built before 1978. (Intact lead-based paint that
Is In good conditon Is not necessarily a hazard. See the EPA pamphlet, "Protect Your Family from Lead In Your
Home," for more InConnation.J This contiency will tennlnate at the abo predetennlned deadline unless the Buyer
(or Buyer's agent) delivers to the Seller (or Seller's agent) a wrtten Contract 

addendum listing the specifc existingdeficiencies and corrctions needed, together with a copy of the inpection and/or risk assessment report. The Seller
may, at the Seller's option, within __ days aftr delivery of the addendum, elect In wrting whether to correct the

condltlon(s) prIor to settlement. If the Seller will corrct the condItion, the Seller shall furnish the Buyer with
certifcation from a risk asseasor or Inpector demonstrating that the condItion has been remedIed before the date of
the settlement. If the SelIer does not elect to make the repaIrs, or If the SelIer makes a counter-offer, the Buyer shall
have --- days to respond to the counter-offer or remove thIs contingency and take the Property in "As Is"

condItion or thIs Contract shall become void. The Buyer may remove this coritlngency at any time without cause.
(42 U.S.C. 4852d) (61FR 90).

12. Private Well Testing Act (N.J.8.A. 58:12A.26 et seq.)
(a) ApplIcabilty: If the property (I) has a potable water supply furJUshed by 

a prIvate welI located on the property,or (Ii) the potable water supply is furnshed by a well that has fewer than 15 servIce connections or that does not
regularly servIce an average of at least 25 Indivduals daUy at least 60 days out of the year, then the viter supply must
be tested as a condItion of the sale.

(b) Testing Parameters: The water test must conConn with the parameters established In the PrIvate Well Testing
Act and any addItional parametera as requird by the Department of Environmental Protection.

(c) Disclosure: Closin of title shall not occur unless both the Buyer and the Seller have received and reviewed a
copy of the water test results. At closing; the Buyer and Seller shall certify in wrIting that they have receIved and

reviewed the water test results.

13. If this Contract Is for the sale of a new resIdential property, a Notifcation Regarding Off-Slte CondItions MUST be
attached to notify the purchaser regarding off-slte conditions which may affect the value of thIs property. New
Residential Construction Off-Site Conditons Disclosure Act, P.L. 1995, c. 263 (C. 46:30-1 et seq.) (see ALL-STATE
form No. 132).

14. Complete Agreement. This Contract is the entir and only agrement betwen the Buyer and the Seller. ThIs
Contrect replaces and cancels any previous agrements between the Buyer and the Seller. ThIs Contract can only be
changed by an agrement In wrting signed by both Buyer and Seller. The Seller also promises that she/e has not
made any other Contract to sell the Property to anyone else.

16. Parties Liable. ThIs Contract is bIndIng upon all partIes who sign It and all who succeed to their rights and

responslbUlUes.

SIGNED AND AGREED TO BY:

Witnessed or Attested by:
Date SIgned:

l. /f"- I i ~
As to Buyer(s)

Buyer

6 'IS' , I '

_.._---_....~._.....~'~~_..._.._-.__..._----_. ---
As to SelIer(s) -..-------.-.------_.__w.___..___._Seller

--_._----_.-..._---_...__......_._...._--_....

iao - Contrct ror Bala or Raal E.late _ Bhort Fonn
Ind. or Corp. - Plain Language
Rev.9102 P8/

-by
HOTdoc-

0202 by ALL-BTATE LEGAL.
A Dlvl.lon or ALL-TATE InternatiOnal, Inc.
ww.alegal.com BO.22,0619 Page 2



Exhibit.B

(Description of Leases/Sam.pl:e Lease)



-~l r-',
TH PARTIS. LANLORD AND TEANT. IN CONSIDERATION FOR THE MUTAL
PROMISES IN THIS AGREEMENT (refered to as "Lease") UNDERSTAND 

AND AGREE TOTHE FOLLOWlO: .
l) PARmS AND DWELLING UN

2 TERMS.. LESE

Only the foHowig persons win reide in the unit as pan fthe Ten t's houSehold/family:
Kelly M WiUìas .

andend on . 11/30/05
(See Secton #21 regadlng renewals),

3

Tenat a . a rental chage in the sum oU $467,00 per month unless changed.

as her~in Piovided. nussum consists of S-S67 .00 for base Tenant rent per month, plÙs
charges for utilties and other seivices (Refer to Sëction 4 of 

this Lease) ofS petmonth and a surcharge. ifapplícable, on _ Per mOnth (Reftr to SectioQ 18 and I C)).
aU ofwhicl Shan be considered rent. Tberent is due at 

the offce ofth~bUlidingor with theAgem. REALTY MANAGëMENT ASSOCIATES. INC., 400 Irvine Turer Blvd.. Rental
Offce. Newarki New Jersey 07108. For 

part ofa month, Tenant agrees to pay $ N//\ Inadvance for th. pa.rtia) m.onth, bee-inning . . and ending on
200_.

1



J.~"' "",\
L:i!1dlord does npt lose his right to any remedy by acceptng either filiI or partial payment of
rem. charges foJ, utilities an other services or sUrhaes,

4) CHARGES FOR UnUTIES AND OTH£R SERVIC2S

Tenant is responsjble for pajing elecUicity and ga for his/erunii Tha:tncludes electricity.

fa:d ighthig, an ai I' cònditionbig. and gas for cookirg and heating. Tenant uiidersi!l1dli thai
Mf utilties ar.tued.off by the supplier! fo.r non-ayent ofbil$~ tent is.in violation of
the lease.. Tws situation mUSt be corrcted with in three (3) days. Or tenant ma be evicted.

Th Tenant understads and agrees tlt the Lanlord does not provide secwityproretion for
the tenant. his car or prpert within the paddng ara. .

5) ADDITIONAL REt

The Tenant understands that the Lanlord may Charge the Tenant for c"J'enses incurred as
additional rent Expenses include late.fees, tetûm check fees (refer to Paragph 7), dnn~(;S
(refer to Section 14) reasona.ble attomëy fees and. oth associated cost win be construd as
additional rent-and wìl be due an pay~bie in accordarc with the monthly rental eharge as
described. in Section 3. rfth~ Tenant fails to. pay the additional rent; the Landlord wiJ i have
the same right as if the 'fcnant failed to pay the retal charge.

61 ADlíJSÎlyNTS IN T~NANrS RENT

Te.Mnt midersds and agrees thi upon Agency approval, the Landlord may mae
adjustments or adjustments to the Tenat's rent at any 1ie dur die teim oftms Lease
WItiì.øut firs! term~ting the Lease. If a rent adjustment is approved .it wi becGme effective
on the first day of the month fullowing one fuU calenda month 

aftr wrtten notice of the.
apprved adjm:i:meot is given. ..

Tenant ~cknowledges thai th bousingdevelopment ha received bélowmarketrate .fancing

frm the Agency as the result of 
the r\gency's abilit to raise fu by issuing Low Income.

Housing Tax Credits, (LIHTC)) and ifappJicable, has received oir form ofsubs;dy. The

Agency operating l'ursuantto StBte taw, mus iisurcthat enoug rents are received to pay the
developluenfs operating expenses, other com required by law and debt service on the..
Agency loan. TIierefo-re. rent adj\lstments in the form of incres or decreases must br
available as necessar. Ths mean lh~ tenant will not receive a termation of 

lease noticeeach time mere is a rent adjustment, nor will rent adjustmtntstake place only at the. end of
the lcàse rérm. . .
Ifine Agency approves implementaon ofarent adju~et1t durg1he tcnn of 

this Lease the'~Tenant has rbe option of cllceIi1l8. the Lea and vacating the aparment within sixt (60)
days. All rent fOr eaehaparent mus be paid. 11ie Tenant- muSt .provide Landlord with

thirty (30) days ivittcn nQtiëe ofmtent to move as requird by Section 21.

2
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If the Tenant vacates the unit before the end oftbe firs Lease term because oIa rent increase:
the Tenant is not responsible for paying the Landlord. the pro rata share of repainting the unit
as descnbe in Section 2 i .

.
7) CRAGES FOR LATEPA YMENIS- RETURND CHECKS AN LEGAL FEES

T.eant undertands and agees to pay, in accordance: with Paragraph 5, an extra charge for
late rent payments and returned checks as follows: .

A. Lat payment - Rent s~U be payable in advane .on or before the first day of
each month. Tenat will pay rent plus all fees, .charges and surcharges ~y
money order or personal ~beck only. If Tenant does not pay the full ainount
by the dose of business of the SB day of the month. Tenant will be delinquenl
and agres to pay addtiona rê:t of525.oo.

B. Additional (terns

L No partial payments wil be acceted.
2. if payment is late, it will not ~e accepted without late chares.. ,

3. If mailed, payment must be postmarked by the 41. day of the month.
4. lfthe Sli fals on Sunciy, the payment is due the next busíness day.

C. Retued checks - Tenant wiU pay å fee equa to the bank chargc4 plus an
admnistrative fee of mo any time a cheek is not honored for payment.

D. Legal fees. Tenant shall be responsible for paying legal fees in the event of
cour referr for nonpayent ofrent. or any other reasons.

8) ~EaJIÜTY OEwrrS
. .

Tenánt ba depositec; $ $461.00 as 8 seeurty deposit With the landlord. Landlord wil hold
tlis seurty deposit for the period the Tenant occupies the unit in .aecor~ance with the NJ

'.SECURITY DEPOSIT LAW'. as amended. LandJordbas put the deposit in an interest-'
beng account in the flame of Madison Arms Aparments at WachoyiaIcnt Secuitv
CAAtrol Center, IOcat6d at 100 Fidelity Plaza. North ßrunswick. New Jerey 08905.

Tenant acknwledges that this lease constites notice of where the Landlord has. deposited
the securty,

After Te.nat ha nioved from the unii.Lad.lord wildetemine whether Tent is eligible
for a refund of any or all of the .security deposit. The aiount of the refund will be'
determjned in accordance witb the foUowing conditions. and procedures:

k Tenant must provide Ia:ndlord with thirt (30) days w1:itten notice of 
intent to

move otherwse be liable as provided in Section 22.
B, ~ Tenant has moved frm the unit, Landlord will insct unt for damage.

Ladlord wil permit Tenåt to. paricipate in the inspection if Tenant sl)
tequests.

C. Landlord wil reñind to Tenant the amollJlt of security deposit togethe.r wirh
interest. less: 1) unpaid rent! 2) any adinistl'ati\le fees permitted by State

3
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Jaw; 3) damages tbat are not due to norm wear and tear and are ncJt listed on
the initial Unit Inpection Report; 4) pro rata share of repaintig the
apartmenr as described in pagrph 21; 5) any uncollected damages pursuant
to Section i 4; ó) charges for late payment of ret an" returned cheeks as
described in Sttion.7; 7) charges for retued keys as described in Section

I I; and 8) any oth~T unpad chares due Ladlord. Landlord will give Tenant
a wriiien list of charges that were deducted from the aePOSiL

D. Ladlord ags tQ reiùndtbe amount computed a~rding to Patph.8c

wilbin thirt (30) days afer Tenant his peanently moved OUI of 

the unit.Th refund shall be made by registered or ceified mail or by persona
deUveiy. Tenant is ttl gdvise Landlord in wrting of the address to Which t~e
refud should be sent.

ê.. If the unit is rented by mote th one peson, Tenants agr that they wiit
work out the details dividing any refud among them. Landlord may pay i:
refud to any Tenantidentified in Section i afthe Lease and be released oom .
furter obligation.

Tenant uiidei'stads and a~rees the securty deposit is not to be considered b,
Tenant as payment oftbe last month's rent

9) . OCCUPANCY OFRENÎÃt UNIT

Tenant wil occupy the unit exclusively as a private dwellng for Tenat and family and for
no other Purose.Thís provision does !lor exclude reasonable accommodation to Tenant's

guest or visitors for a period nOt exceeding a total of 
two (2) weeks. Tenants sh not assign

this Leas, sublet, Or trnsfer posession of 
the premises or gie aaeommodations to boarors

or lodger, whther 
paying or not: without wrtten eonsentoftndlord. Tenants shall comply

with all laws afecting the occupancy oime ptenises and with al ~pplicable propert rules.
and regulions.

Pets - T~Mnt ages not to bring any pets into the dWelling Mit. eiiher to be o\Ned b)'
Tenant. or by ~t of the Tenant.

10) CONDf110NS OF DWELLING WIT

By signing this Agreement, Tenanf acknowledge$ tht the unit is in safe. clean, sanitary and
good (:ondition imd agrees to maintain nnt.Ín safe clean. santaxy and good condition during
the term of ths lease. Tenani agrees th;it all applianoes and equipment are in workig order.
except as described on the Unit Inpetion Repon, which is Attacbmenr No.2 to this lease:
Tenant also agree (hat Landlord has made no promises to decorate, alter, repair. or improve
the unit. except as listed on the Unit-Inspection R.eport.

in KêYS AND LOCKS

::,
Tenants agree not to install additional or diferent Jocks or gates on any doors or windows
of the unit without the written consent of landlord. IfLandJotd apprves Tenant's request,

4
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Tenant ågees to proide Landlord with a key to each lock. When this Lease ends. Tenant

agree to give aU keys to- the unit to Landlord. La,dlord may chage Teaat a 525.00 lock
change fee if any key is not retuned.

Uì smLWATION OF LALORD

A. Landlord wm:

1. Not urilawfu1Jy disenrnnate on the b¡isis of race. color. reJigio", creed.
rtiional origi. sex. handica or membership in a legatly protected class;

2. Comply with an applicable cods:

3. Màe necessaiy repairs and ensur that the'development is habitable;
4-. Ke aU common areas clean;

5. Provide and maintain gcibage receptacles:

6. Respond in reasonable time to service calls by the Tenant

All of the Landlord's obligadons are 4ependent ppon Tenant"s obligari to notify

taord promptly of any conditon requiring Lanord's attention.

B. Landlord is not ltsponsible for tht following:.

.1. Daage or loss of Tenant propert resulting frm fire, wind. water, theft,.
utility outage or sewer backup or otherwjse (Tenant un&rstand tbat it is the..
Tenanfs obligation to obtainlnsurance coveñng persQ~al household

possessions )~
2. Dmage ofloss ofTenants propert entruted to Ladlord's empJoyees;
). The .acts of nther Tenats;

4. The failure of th elc"tJto5~ and .

:5. Propeny remainingi" the unit after the Lease or tenancy ends. . Such property
shaIl be considered to be abandoned and Landlord can either keep stich
propert or have if removed at Tenan's expense.

13) RESTRCTION ON AtttRATI'NS
.' .

The Tenant understands and agrees not to do any of the follow,lg withut first (¡btaing

written penssion from the Ladlord:

A. Change or move any pàr of the appliances, fixtres or.equipment;
B. Paint Öf instAlwalpaper or cotact paper in the unit;

C. Attach awnngs Or window guards to the unit;

D. Attath_Ot pw.e any fiture. signs or fences on the buildig(s), the common areas,..,r
the J)foject grounds~ .

E. Arreh any shelves. scren doors. or òtber permanent improvement 
in the unit;

F. Fans. heaters or air condhioners jo the unit; or

5
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G. .' Place any ~nals. antennas. satellte disbesl waing machines. dryers, dishwashers

ur Oilèr electrical c-onections on lbe unt.

Any alteratioDli on the aparment. without Wrtten Landlord approval. shaiU be rontóve:d by
Tenat at Tenant's expense, on demand from Landlord.

Any aJterations made with \\'litten Landlord approval . shall become the property of the
Lalord when completed and pad for by the TenanL Such Altertions shll remain as par
of me apartent at the end of the Lease tem uness Ladlord demands the Tenant remove.
them. The Tenant shall pay promptly all cost f~r any alterations, Th Tenat shal not.allow .
any mechanic~s üen or other claim to be filed aganst the Deelopment. If any lien or claim
is filed against th Development, the Tent shall have it prmpty removed. .

14) DAMAGES

Wheever damage; (reasonable wear and tear eKc~pt) is causf!d by caelesses. .misuse, Or
neglect on the parr of Ten aD 1. hisler family..visitors orempJoyees. Tenant agrees to pay as.
additional rem:

A. R.~asonabie chages .for all damages to the premises of th Development or unit

(includingeqpment and/or appliances supplied to rbe unit), Charges fOT such
dama.ges ar to be made according to the ciirrent Schedúlt.ofMaitenace chages.
as applicable, posted in.the Management offce. If damages dQ not apptai on the
schedule, Tenant will be charged for act COS1 of the repairs. Tenant agrees that
payment O~a.l such chges.hal be mae wi th (30) days of the date chq~
are biled: damage charges are consider additiona rent (Refer to Section S)

B. Rent for the period the unit is damaged,.whcther or noi the unit is habitable.
c. However. where å tcuant is wuifuiiy~ or though gross negligence) causing. or

allowing dañag~ to the premiseç, the Landlord reserves tbe right to bring an action
to ~viet the Tenant. The Landlord specifiealy reserves the leg~i right of 

re-entry in
such ch-nmtares.

15) FIRE AND otH DISASTE : :

If£he unit is greatly damaged by fire, wind ()r watef. to the extent (hat the unt caot be lived
in and the damge is not caused or made WOrse by Tenani. Tenant wUl be responsibJe for rent
only up 10 the date ofth~ damage. Tenant shall immdiately leave the unit and must within
fourteen (l4) days notify Ladlord in wrnng of Tenant's desire to eonnnue leaseltenancy
or end Lese/tenancy.

If the unit cun be livéd in and if continu~ occupaney is lawfl, Tëwu's rent 'Wll be reduced
in proportion to the damaged par of the unit until such time as repairs are made.

6
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J§) DE\Ot-ME'S RULES AND REãûiA nONS ::
Tenant àgrees to obey reasonable rules and reguJations. of the Development as set fonh in
Attatbmm No.3 to the Lease an With ar made a par oftbs Leu=. Tenant agree$ to
accept in wrng and obey addirional and or cbanged mles And regulatons established after. .
the effective date oftbü¡ lea-at. The Tenant wiD receive written noti~e of the proposed rules
and regulations at leàSt thu'ry (30) days before the rules. and reguations are enforcd,

This Lese shal govein when there is a conflict between the Development's rules and
reguations,

17) TEAN's LIAILmES UPOJ;.IER¡AÏrON

In the event that this Le!ge end$ because of legal action by Landlord, Tenant shall pay
Lådloro rent owed including and in addition thercto..attorney.s fee~ court COSt and any
expenses. incured in repairing damages under Paragraph i 4, and expel1ses før repaintii,g
uner Sectinn 22.

18) RECÈTIFICATION

Under the Agency's regulations and Federal Jaw. Tenants are required to bequaUfied for
octCupancy and are reqtûred .to report infonnation to tbt Ladlord on . 

Income. family~ompoition anäanyother mattr needed to determine'" Tenant's eligibilty for housing.
lte-eerlfications are to be done in accordace with various laws and reguations, as may be
amended from time to time. Attachment No. i to this Leas is a copy oithe form to be used
in re-certifications. wiuch form may be amended frm tim to time by the Agençy or
Landlord.

. The Tenant agrees to provide complete infrmtion when asked to re~ertify evel' year as .
may be reqnired by regulations or Ladlord Agency polley. Failure to. re.eei1iiy in
accorance with the reguarioii wil subject the Tenant to the following: l) the Tenant will
be requited to pay a surcharge equaling thiry percent (30%) of 

the 1'nt of the un and 2) theTent may be reuired to vacate rhe unit. (This r.eferenced surcharge wil be.due and
payable the first of eiich month startng with the date of the l'new'. lea.se penod and will.
continue to be in effect until the Tenani ha subitte the required Re-cenificatfon

infOrmtion to the Landlord).

Th Landlord reserves the nght to re-etr for.failure to re-certify or failure to pay the
surchatge, . The Tenant agrees that violation or Ilon-emp)jance With the terms of this
paragrph are reaonable and. shall be grounds for eviction.

7
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191. SqiCHÁRGE

The Tenant agres to pay a surcharc eaeh month íftbeTenant does not re~certi1Y. The
Tenant agreeSto pay a surcharge equaling thirt percent (30%) of 

the rent of the unit. as
w$c\\ssed in Section 18.

20). ACCESS TOPBEM!SES
:

A. The LadlOrd shan be allowed immate acces to the aparent in emergeoy

£ilUatioDs. If the Tenat is not present, the Ladlord may enter th unt by a master
key. The Land1ôrd will anempt to notify the Tenan of any entr twnty-four (24)

hour in adance.
B. Th Tenant win let the Landlord enter the unt a1 re~sonable times to perfonn routine

maintenae setvices.
C. Ihe TMat agres to allow the Ladlor to inspct tbe unit on an antial basis, The

Landlord. wil give the Tenat at lease seventy-1Wo (72) hours in advance of" any

inspection,
D. Penodii:allYi the Aieue may conduct apart inpections. TIie Tenant agrcs to

allow such inspettions. The Tenat wil be notified at ieat seventy-two (72) bours
in advance of any inpection.

E. . Duing th thirt (30) day peod pnor to the en of 
the tenay or lease the Tenr

wjJ aHowthe Landlord to enter the unit at reasonable hours to show ihc apartment
to possible new tenants.

l. If the ienant moves beore th Lease ends, the Landlord may enter the ulltto

del'Otaté. remodel~ altr or otherwse prepar me unit for re-occupacy.

2 n tEANS OPTON TO REW

The Tenant wil give the Landlord wrtten nQtice thir (0) day~ prio~ lO the end of the Lease

~ to whether the Tenant intends to renew the Leas or to vacate: the unit In the absence of
notice to the contry. the Least Win be deemed automaticaly renewed by the Ladtord and
the Tenam for &Dotber O.ne (1) year term, subject to the increased rent eSUl1)lishéd by 

theLandlord. which new rent shal not be greater than fha penntted under the Federl Low
Income Housing Tax Credt Progra or other law, ifany.

Iftbe Tenant is vacating the llnii within the thrt (30) days prior to the e~piration ofthc
!.ase term an does not give tllit Ladlord the fuI thir (30) 

days notice, the Tenant wil beliable Ior the monthly rent until such time as the unt is re-rented.

If the Tenant vacates tht unit before the end of the fit one-year tenn. th Tenat i!:

responsible for paying the Landlord th pro rata shae of 
repaintig th unit based on tbe

current Schedúle ofMaíntenance Char~es as posted in (be Management Offce. The pro-rata
shae is deternned as folJows:

8
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Act co of patig x tíme nnt was occupied/J 2 .. Tenan Repaintng Charge

Any changes in the ter ànd conditions of the Lease, excluding rent" charges; fees an
surcharges. win be provided tt) the. Tenant a5 least ninety (90) days pror to the end oftbe

Lease tem. Such changes win becmeeffective with.the new Lese tenn.

22) J.lNAl'ON OF TEANCY BY THE LANLÒRD
::

The Laon: may terinate this leaseltenan.cy for 8JY lawf rtlSGn or good cause. A
generl right of ie..tiy i$ reserved for violations of any Leas provlsion.

In adtion the Tenant acknowledges and agrees that the (oJlowjng are re(\onable Lee.
ters for whch the Landlotd reserves a. right ~f re~enuy and the riolation of which shall be
grounds for evictioi'l

A. Maial lln-ompliance with the tes ofthisLeas~ indudi bùt not Jimite to:
non-payent of rent. Îl1cIUding additional rent and suhares beond any grace
period available under State law; falur to reimburse the Ladlord wi thrt (3)
day~ fr teiis mae ~der Sècon 14; ieted late payment 

of rent; permittng
uruuithorze persons to li~ i the Wlit; serous or repeated damage to the. unit or

common aras; creation of physical haards serious or repeaed interference witb the
rights or other tena; aloWi liens to be placed against. th. proper; mal'g
unauth.orid alteraons to the wüt; refusing insection/access per Sections 20 and

26; faUut to meet re.ceÍÎcation requiremens; and giving the Ladlord false
inrmauòn regarding intome or otherfectors comjder!d in deténiûningthe Tenant" s
rerit. S"Ucbarge and eligibiity for a unt.

B. The Tenant's .actions that endanger the hea~ safety or welfar of otber tenants
residig in th De'eiopmntj

C. Th Tenat~s material fiilure to car out obligations under applicable State statute,
Agency re,gulations. directives, policir:s, procedures or gudelines and local 

laws and
ordinanes;

D. The -r cnmt s falure to mantain th unt in a habirable conition;
E. The Tenat is not able to maintain tbe unit in a habitable condtion beca.use of ltisllr

phYsica needs, and in .additioQ, the Tent fails to mae sutable aigem~ for.
someone to aid bier inmaintainis.the ptemíltes in a habitable condition orin.
carng for bîth physical needs;

F. Holding ovcr beyond the tel1 without agree to a new Lease. includingtbe

Tenant"s refusal to accept a reasonable change to this Lease;
G. Matenal violation of the Development's rules and reguons;
8. Forelosure. or sila procdigs againt the Ladlord, in whch th par's

torelosing requis the vacating of the unit and the sam~, is grDted by a eoun oflaw
or equi; and

i. Allowig the premises to .be usd for the poss~sslon, use, sale or distrbuton of.
ileglu dngs. or ilegal drg pnrapJiernaUa by the Tenant, faily niembers; gusts or

employees.

9
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The Tena unetstands and agres tht the above are grounds fo eviction and that the .
violation or promises ín this L~se. inelUding thse above, are grouds for hisler remo'Val
in an eVÌçtíon proceedi. Th, Ladlord speoificaly féSeté!l the legal right Df re-enti ii .
such cirCumanes.

23) NOTICES :

A. The Ladlonl's notice is given when banded to the Tent~ mailed to.the Tenat or

lef at the Tenat'sl¡paent.
B. The Tenant's notice to the Laord is. given when set by cefi~i:i or ha

. deliverd to the Landlord at tl addrss at the end of ths: Lese. The Ladlord sball
notifY th Tenant of any change of this. address in wriling.

C. AU Lease/tenancy termintion notices wiJ specify that the Lease/tenancy tennation .
notices wi spcitth date that th £.easenancy wil be temiinated and the reaon

for tbe teination.
D. AU rent adjustment notices wm state rhe new amount the Tenat is required to pay.

the date th new amount is effctive and the realions for. the change in rent. The
.Landlord is to.notifY the Tcriant in Wrting as least ODe .tull calendar moiitlprior to
the efftie date for a rent adjustment

W LEASE

The Lese .and its Attachments, as may be amended, make up 
the entire agreement between

the Tenant and the LalOrd. Any ohange to th Lease must be 
in wttirg and executed by

borh the Ténai and the Ladlord, uness provided hem. If any cour declar any

provisions of the Lea invalid, all otr tenus of the Lease will reman in effct The
. Ladlord's or the Tena's failur to euforce a provision of this Lease does not prevent future
enf()rcemçnt of that prvision. In the even of the sale or lease of the Development, the new
Laord wiU á9Sme th obHgllions under ths Lease, ~ required by. 

the Agency.

JhisLee is subordinate to al unrlyig Leases an to all mongages of the Developmentand is subject 10 the effects of any mofication in such underlying Leases and mortgages.
Th means that if those underlyg leases or mongags on the Development are changed~ or

foreclosur, or other proceedings ba upon them ar brought against th propert or the
Ladlord, the rlghrn of the paes holding such leases or mortages art greater tha the
Tënant.9 rights.

In the event tl1it any provision ohms lease shall be deemed to be in confict with the Agency
statutes 01 regulations. said statutes.and regulations 'Sba11 tae precedence.

25) MAJOR RElLITATIÓN

Shonld th Ladlord underak a major rehiiili1ation of the unit or the Development, the
Tenant agr~es to temporarly relocate dUrng th. 

rehabilitation period to permit the wO.fk to
be eompleted.

10
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26) ATIACHMS

The chelæ Attlients are attached to an made a part of 

this Lease. Receipt ofa i:opy
Oftbis leaS \\th Attçhments is hereby acknowledged.

(X) 1. Applicable Form.Certñcation and Re..eiIfcation oflncome

(X). 2. Unit lnpection Report

(X) 3. Rules and Reguatons oflbe Development

(X) 4. . Truth in Rentig Statement pursuanr to N'J.S~A. 46:843 thrugh 49. (Note:

Not al provisions contaied in tlus statement are applicable to ths 
housingdevelopment)

(X) 5. Notifcation of Federa Crime Insurance puruat to N.J.S,A. 46:838 through
42.

IN Wfss WHOF, the pares have silJ thîslease.

K- 1
L-lyM.

- I&: Stf.. å If
Date

Tenat
Date

LALORD: MAISON TIRNER,; L,P., DONALD C. BRALEY APARTMNTS,
Agent: REAL TV MANAGEME ASSOCITES. INC.

Date

..perj Maagçi

Title
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Exhibit C

(Annual Gross .Rev~nue Computation)



Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P.

Net Annual Income

Year 1: $274,930.00

Taxes Abated to:

10%

=

Tax Revenue (Year 1): $27,493.00



Exhibit.D

(Breakdown of .Cost & Basis)



Exhibit .0-1

. (Total' 
Project. Cost Ce.rtification)
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BREAKDOWN OF COSTS & BASIS - 20ll Re.viewer:

St:ige.:

ProjectN:ime:

Municipnlly;

Counry

QCT -- ev..N)
DDA-- (\...~)

SpednlNeeds.. (\orN)

ScaUeRd Sile SlngleIuplei ~ (\orli)
DAvlBAconWagei-l(Vor/')

Oten" Senior (Gi-een)

JeneyCily

Hudson

D~'lopniellt
eo"

Noii.Depreclable
Co

ACQulsmON
Building
Reocation
Oiher:

CONSTRUcnON
Demoliiin
Orr-Sitelml'o\'ements
ResidenlialSlruclures
En\'ironmentaClearnncc
Surety &: Bonding
BuildingPermiis
Community SCI'ice Facility
Gani;ePming
Fire Suppresion Syslem
Green Feiures
Other.

$6,50,000

S50,OOLL

S'OIL,OLL

S351,OOO
siS,9~'

SU,OOO
SIIO,OOO
SUS,OOO
S20,OOO
:iSO,OOO
",..
sl,eoo

SIO,OOD
SIS,DOD

SI15,OO1
S1G,OO
~O,OOD
$90,000
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SI0.345.176 SI,i24,728

CONTRCTOR FEE
ContraclorO\'erhesd&:Profil
Geneml Requiremenis

COm-INGENCY
HQIdConlingenc)'
SoA ContingenC)'

U9%

PROFESSIONAl. SEn. VICES
Apprniser&. Markel Siudy
Ardiilecl
Attomei'
Cost Cer1ificnlion I Audii
Engineering
En\'ÎronmenlaIConullanl
HisloricalConsulint
ProressionaPlnnner
Soilln\'esligo.lion
SUf\'Cl'Or

CARRYING &. FINANCrNO
Inleres
Points &: Bank Fees
R.E. TILxes '
Insurance
Tiile Insurnce &. Recording
UI¡lil)'ConnectionFees
QtherlmpadFees
Tax Credit Fee
Neg. Arb, Cosl orissuance
Other:

SUB.TOTAL

DEVELOPER FEE
lJND
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SYNDICATION EXPENSES
MARKG EXP &. HAS FEE
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OpernlÎngDelicilEscrow'
Debt &. Insurance
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TOTAL
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FUNDING SOURCE INTERES AMORlt TION AMOUNT
RATE
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JCAHTF S600,OOO
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x
X
X
X
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X
X
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"" Quaified Bosis
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SIIO,OOO
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S20,OLL0
S511,OOO
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sa,ooo
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SIlS,OIlIl
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~O,OOIL
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SS2,OIlO
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X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
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SS,592,841

S8,592,841

130%

SIl,170,G93

100.00%

S11,170,G93

"9.00%

SI,005,362

Carryover Test
Development Cost! Unit
Construi:tion Cost! Unit

S991,966
SZJS,I40
S170,614

PlinlDnte: I3-MAy-11

EliclbleIJo:ri:r
for Acqiiisition

100.00%

~..:)%

$1,005,362



EXHIBIT 0-1

Total Project Cost Certification

I, Eugene P. O'Connell of Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P. do certify
to the best of my knowledge and belief Exhibit D accurately reflects the
estimates construction costs of the Project proposed on Block 1980, Lot
1.01 and Block 1979, Lot 35.01.

Date: June ~, 2011

~~EUGENEP~LL



Exhi.bit E - ProJeete.d Stateme.nt of
Property Operations .

(15 year Operati.ng Pro. Forma&' Net
Operating Income )

I
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Exhibit F - Municipal Land Use Approvals

Site Plan Application Scheduled for
Board of Adjustment Meeting of July 21, 2011
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Exhi'bit G-Real..Estate T.ax Assessments



EXHIBIT G

Real Estate Tax Assessments



--~.._-_.- _...._.........._i:r .4.. .,.J.L inA rDY~ ~ ur ii *i~~3~ ~

BLOCK
LOT
QUAL
XLOT

: 1999
: 34

INFORMTION

(FOR RESJI)

ASSESSOR · S CODE

APX. LOT SIZE

ASSESSED VALUES

TAX RATE

TAX EXEMPTIONS

2010 TAXES

-2011
QTRI
QTR2

QTR3

QTR4
-2012
QTRI

QTR2

- DUE DATE

- 02/01
- 05/01

- 08/01

- 11/01

- DUE DATE

- 02/01

- 05/01

Title #: HR 30,604 Order #: MT-167-31S7169

HEN JERSEY TAX & ASSESSMENT SEARCH

ASSESSED OWNER
BILLING ADDRES
LOT ADDRESS

HUDSON
(MUNI CODE; 0906)

For: HUDSON REALTY ABSTRACT COMPANY

OCEAN GREEN, LLC
675 GARIELD AVE. JERSEY CITY, N.J. 07305
748 OCEA AVE.
JERSEY CITY (201) 547-5526
280 GROVE STREET JERSEY CITY NJ 07302

C.O. REQUIRED ON NEW CONSTRUCTION, CHAGE OF US
SMOKE DETECTOR INSPECTION REQUIRED AS PER NJAC 5: 70-4 .19
C~LL (201) 547-4255 FOR INSPECTION
INSPECTION FEE 20

1 - VACANT LAND (NOT TO BE USED FOR DETERMINING NJ MANSION TAX)

61.14X140
LAND : $ 11 6 i 8 00 IMP . : $ 0 TOT. : $ 1 16 , 8 0 0
$6.903 PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE

NONE

$ 8 1062.70 INCLUDED IN BELOW LIEN i REDUCED BY $ 7 221.93 DUE TO COUNTY
BOAR JUDGEMENT.

$2,015.68 INCLUDED IN BELOW LIEN

$2,015.67 INCLUDED IN BELOW LIEN

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

ADDED ASSESSMENTS PENDING ADDED/OMITTED ASSESSMENT FROM DATE OF CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY OR ASSESSOR' S INSPECTION OF PROPERTY

WATER ACCOUNT l

SEWER ACCOUNT l

SEE ADDENDUM

INCLUDED IN WATER ACCOUNT ( S)
CONFIRMED ASSESSMENTS : NONE

LIENS : SEE ADDENDUM

ADDITIONAL BILLING : SEE ADDENDUM

Certificate as to current status of pending (unconfirmed) assessments:
ORDINANCE #: NONE
TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT:
Signature Information Solutions LLC guarantees that the above information accurately reflects
the contents of the public record as of 06/19/2011

~~~~;L :::-

REPORT FEE: $30.00

Phone (800) 477-8288 · Fax (800) 677-3272 · P.O. Box 8488, Trenton, NJ 08650-0488

Page 1 of 2



_u I L.VI...L VUi U~ 111-1 I:U, ~.L!lflaLU' r: L/lTUr mdLLUII V.Ld V~.L-i-llX ~age Ö Dt II .iHn~Y ~

BLOCK
LOT
QUAL
XLOT

: 1999
: 12.E

INFORMTION

(FOR RESAL)

ASSESSOR'S CODE

APX. LOT SIZE

ASSESSED VALUES

TAX RATE

TAX EXEMPTIONS

2010 TAXES

-2011
QTR1

QTR2

QTR3

QTR4

-2012
QTR1

QTR2

- DUE DATE

- 02/01

- 05/01

- 08/01

- 11/01

- DUE DATE

- 02/01

- 05/01

Title #: HR 30,604 Order #: MT-167-3157168

NEW JERSEY TAX & ASSESSMENT SEARCH

ASSESSED OWNER
BILLING ADDRESS
LOT ADDRESS
HUDSON
(MUNI CODE: 0906)

For: HUDSON REALTY ABSTRACT COMPAN

OCEAN GREEN, LLC
675 GARFIELD AVE. JERSEY CITY, N.J. 07305

742 OCEAN AVE.
JERSEY CITY (201) 547-5526
280 GROVE STRET JERSEY CITY NJ 07302

C. O. REQUIRED ON NEW CONSTRUCTION, CHAGE OF US
SMOKE DETECTOR INSPECTION REQUIRED AS PER NJAC 5:70-4.19
CAL (201) 547-4255 FOR INSPECTION
INSPECTION FEE 20
1 - VACANT LAND (NOT TO BE USED FOR DETERHINING NJ MANSION TAX)

66X140 IRR.
LAD : $109,900
$6.903 PER $100

NONE

IMP . : $ 0 TOT. : $ 109 , 9 0 0
OF ASSESSED VALUE

$7,586.40 PAID IN FULL

$1,896.60 OPEN PLUS PENALTY

$1,896.60 OPEN PLUS PENALTY

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

TO BE DETERMINED

ADDED ASSESSMENTS PENDING ADDED/OMITTED ASSESSMENT FROM DATE OF CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY OR ASSESSOR' S INSPECTION OF PROPERTY

WATER ACCOUNT l

SEWER ACCOUNT l

UNIMPROVED. IF PREMISES IS IMPROVED UTILITY CHAGES AR A LIEN.

UNIMPROVED. IF PREMISES IS IMPROVED UTILITY CHARGES AR A LIEN.

CONFIRMD ASSESSMENTS : NONE

LIENS: NONE

ADDITIONAL BILLING SEE ADDENDUM

Certificate as to current status of pending (unconfirmed) assessments:
ORDINANCE #: NONE
TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT:
Signature Information Solutions LLC guarantees that the above information accurately reflects
the contents of the public record as of 06/19/2011

::-:~..~. :~;

REPORT FEE: $30.00

Phone (800) 477-8288 · Fax (800) 677-3272 · P.O. Box 8488, Trenton, NJ 08650-0488

Page i of 2



Exhibit G 1-ReaIEstate. Taxes



EXHIBIT G

Real Estate Tax Assessments

The 2010 taxes for Block 1999, Lot 12.E were $7,586.40.

The 2010 taxes on Block 1999, Lot 34 were $8,062.70.



Exhibit H-1

(Disclosure. Statement)



EXHIBIT H-1

The Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P. is a Limited Partnership for the
business of developing and owning a senior apartment building located in Jersey
City, New Jersey.

99% Owner - The Limited Partner is CARA Development, LLC whose registered
agent is Eugene P. O'Connell with offices located at 853 Summit Avenue, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07307.

1% Owner - The General Partner is 742-748 Ocean, Inc. located at 853 Summit
Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07307 is equally owned by Frank Cretella and
Eugene P. O'ConnelL.



Exhibit H - Disclosure Statement

Certificate of Limited Partnership of
Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P.



~

CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

OF
OCEAN GREEN SENIOR APARTMENTS, L.P.

The undersigned, desiring to form a Limited Partnership pursuant to the New.

Jersey Limited Partnership Law (1976), N.J.S.A. 42:2A-1, et seq. (the Act),

executes ths Certiicate of Limted Partnership:

1. The name of the Limted Partnership is Ocean Green Senior Apartments,

L.P. (the "Partnership").

2. The general character of the business of the partnership is the

development and ownership of a senior apartment building located in
.--. '....

Jersey City, NJ.

3. The original registered offic~ of the Partnership is:

Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P.

853 Sunuit Avenue

Jersey City, NJ 07307

The original registered agent and address are:

Eugene P. O'Connell

853 Summt A venue

Jersey City, NJ 07307

4. The name of the General Partner is:

742-748 Ocean, Inc.

853 Summt Avenue

Jersey City, NJ 07307

Attention: Eugene P. O'Connell



5. The aggregate amount of cash and a description of the agreed value of

other property or services contributed by the partners of the Partnership

are as follows:

Partners and Names.

General Partner:

742-748 Ocean, Inc.

Cash Contributions

$99.00

Limited Partner:

CARA Development Corp., LLC
$1.00

TOTAL CAPITAL
$100.00

6. The partners have not agreed to make future contributions either as of a

time or upon the happening of an event. No partner is required to make

capital contributions other than as set forth in Article 5 herein.

7. No limited partner possesses the power to grant the right to beçome

limited partner to the transferee of any part of his or her limited

partnership interest. A tranferee of a limited partner may become a

limited partner in the partnership provided the conditions of the

Agreement of Limted Partnership (liThe Agreement") are satisfied. The

conditions include written consent of all the general partners, which

consent. may be withheld in their absolute discretion.

s. A limited partner may not terminate his or her membership in the

Partnership either as of a time or upon the happening of an event.

9. The partners have the right to receive distributions of net cash flow, as

defined in the Agreement, in proportion to their respective interest in the



, ,

Partnership Profits, as and when authorized by the general partner in its

sole and absolute discretion. Upon dissolution and winding up of the

affais of the Partnership, the partners wil receive from assets remaining

after payment of Partnership liabilties, distributions in cash and/ or

property in accordance with their interests in the Partnership on the basis

of ninety-nie percent (99%) to the general partner and one percent (1 %)

to the limted parer.

10. The partners have no right to withdraw their capital contributions or to

demand payment of their capital contributions in property other than

cash.

11. The time as of which, and the events upon the happenig of which the

Partnership is dissolved and its affairs wound up are the first to occur of

the following:

(i) The involuntary withdrawal, banuptcy, or dissolution of the

general partner;

(ii) The sale of other disposition of all or substantially all of the

Partnership's assets

(iii) The unanimous written consent of all partners;

(iv) The occurrence of any other event, which under the mandatory

provisions of the laws of the State of New Jersey would cause a

termination or dissolution of the Partnership.

12. Upon bankruptcy, involuntary withdrawal or dissolution of the general

partner, provided at least a majority-in-interest, as defined in the

Agreement, of the limited partners shall within 90 days after such event of

withdrawal agree in writing to continue the business of the partnership

and to the appointment of a new partner.



, J

13. If the partnership shall borrow funds through the New Jersey Housing

and Mortgagee Finance Agency, any and al real property financial

agreements with any municipality shall comply with N.J.s.A. 55:14K-1 et

seq.

14. The address and principal office of the Partnership are as follows:

Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P.

853 Summt Avenue

Jersey City, NJ 07307

Attention: Eugene P. O'Connell

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned General Partner has duly signed,

sealed and executed this Certificate of Limited Partnership on this ~ June,

2011.

General Partner,

742-748 Ocean, Inc.

By:c:D~
Eugene P. O'Connell, President



CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

742-748 OCEAN, INC.

The undersigned, being of age (18) year or over, for the purpose of formig a
corporation pursuant to the provisions of the New Jersey Business Corporation
Act, N.J.S.A. 14:1-1 et seq., does hereby execute the following Certiicate of
Incorporation:

ARTICLE ONE

NAME

The name of the Corporation is "742-748 Ocean, Inc.", hereinafter referred to as
the "Corporation."

ARTICLElWO

PURPOSE

The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is to engage in any activity
within the purposes for which corporations may be organized under the New
Jersey Business Corporation Act.

ARTICLE THREE

STOCK

The aggregate number of the share which the Corporation shall have authority to
issue is one thousand shares (1,000) of common stock without a par value.

ARTICLE FOUR

REGISTER OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT

The registered agent of the Corporation shall be Eugene P. O'Connell. The office
of the Corporation shall be 853 Summt Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey 07307.

1



The business address of the Corporation shall be 853 Summt Avenue, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07307.

ARTICLE FIVE

DIRECTORS

The number of directors constituting the intial board of the Corporation shall be
two (2). The name and address of the intial directors are: '

Frank Cretella
675 Garfield Avenue.

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

Eugene P. O'Connell
853 Summt Avenue

Jersey City, New Jersey 07307

ARTICLE SIX

INCORPORATION

The name and address of the incorporator is:

Eugene P. O'Connell
853 Summt Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey 07307

ARTICLE SEVEN

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

One or more of the directors of the Corporation may be removed without cause
by the shareholders by affirmative vote of the majority of the votes cast by the
holders of shares entitled to vote for the election of directors.

ARTICLE EIGHT

LIABILITY

2



A director or officer of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the
Corporation or its share for damages for breach of any duty owed to the
Corporation and its shareholders. The preceding shall not relieve a director or
officer from liabilty for any breach of duty based upon an act or omission (a) in
the breach of such person's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its shareholders,
(b) not in good faith or involving a knowing violation of law or (c) resultig in

receipt by such person of an improper personal benefit. If the laws of the State of
New Jersey are amended to authorize corporate action further elimiating or
limitig the personal liabilty of directors.or officers, then the liabilty of a
director or officer or both shall be elimated or limited to the fullest extent
permitted by the law as so amended. Any amendment to this Certiicate of
Incorporation, or change in law which authorizes this Article Eight, shall not
adversely affect any then existing right or protection or a director or officer of the
corporation.

ARTICLE NINE

INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall have the power to inderry all of the agents of the
Corporation against their expenses and liabilties in connection with any
proceedings involving the agents f the Corporation by reason of his or her being
or having been such corporate agent, other than a proceeding by or in the right of
the Corporation, if (a) such agent of the Corporation acted in good faith and in a
manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests
of the Corporation; and (b) such agent of the Corporation had no reasonable
cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful with respect to any criminal
proceeding. Expenses incurred by a corporate in connection with a proceeding
as authorized by the board of directors upon receipt of an undertaking by on or
behalf of the corporate agent to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be
determined that the agent is not entitled to be indemnied for expenses.

ARTICLE TEN

INSURANCE

The Corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any corporate agent against any expenses incurred in any proceeding
and any liabilties asserted against any corporate agent by reason of being or

having been a corporate agent, whether or not the Corporation would have the

3
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power to indemn any corporate agent againt such expenses and liabilties
under the provisions of ths section.

ARTICLE ELEVEN

EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date of this Certiicate of Incorporation is the date of filing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, as the Incorporator of the
Corporation, has executed this Certificate of Incorporation on the 26 of June,
2011.

~
EUGENE P. O'CONELL

4



Exhibit I - Commencement Certification.. .' . . ','



EXHIBIT I

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned being the developer of a proposed housing project, Ocean
Green Senior Apartments, L.P., hereby certifies that:

1. Construction of the Project has not and will not commence prior to the final
approval and execution of the Financial Agreement between the City and
the undersigned.

2. The foregoing statements made this0- day of June, 2011 is true and to
the best of my knowledge and I understand that if it is will fully false; I am
subject to punishment.

By:
~--_.~~~

EUGENE P. O'CONNELL



Exhibit J - Compliance with State and.. Local
Laws



EXHIBIT J

Compliance with State and Local Laws

On this _ day of June 2011, the undersigned being the developer of the

Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P. project hereby affirms that the renewal
housing project wil comply with State of Local laws.

BY:~
EUGENE P. O'CONNELL



Exhibit K",Certification of Diligent Inquiry.



EXHIBIT K

The undersigned being the developer of the Ocean Green Senior Apartments,
L.P. project, a proposed projectto be located at Block 1999, Lots 12.E and 34
hereby certifies that:

1. All information contained in the application for tax abatement is true and
correct to the developer's knowledge, after he has made diligent inquiry to
confirm the accuracy of all information.

2. The foregoing statement made by me this 'l 0 day of June, 2011 is true
and to the best of my knowledge and I understand that if it is will fully
false; I am subject to punishment.

By: COD ~
EUGENE P. O'CONNELL



Exhibit L -- Proposed Financial. Agreement



Rev. 2-27-09
HMFA
NJ.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.

Re:
Block 1999, Lots 12.E and 34

PREAMBLE

THIS Agreement made this day of August, 2011, by and between
OCEAN GREEN SENIOR APARTMENTS, L.P", Limited Partnership Company is

a qualified housing sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage Housing Finance Agency

NJ.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., having its principal offce at 853 Summit Avenue, Jersey

City, New Jersey 07307, and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation

in the County of Hudson and the State of New Jersey, having its principal offce at 280

Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

RECITALS

WIT N E SSE T H:

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner under a Deeds dated and

of certain property designated as Block 1999, Lots 12.E and 34 more

commonly known by the street address of 742-748 Ocean Avenue, Jersey City, NJ, and

more paricularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1

to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct certain improvements on the Propert

to create a total of 44 units of rental housing, and a 23 car parking garage (ProjectJ; and

WHEREAS, on 2011, the Entity's Application for a tax exemption

for the Project was approved by the City by the adoption of Ordinance _; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and

agreed as follows:



ARTICLE I - GENERA PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shaii be governed by the provisions of the New Jersey Housing

and Mortgage Finance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., Executive Order of

E.O. 02-003, and Ordinance _' which authorized the execution of ths Agreement.

It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts,

data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in

granting this tax exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when

used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

1. Agency- The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance

Agency.

11. Anual Gross Revenue- The total gross income, including any

and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project of whatever kind or amount,

whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third paries, including

but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, laundry, or other services,

including any Section 8 certificate revenue derived from the Project, including all rent

and other income, with an allowable vacancy rate of up to 5%. It also includes the cost

of insurance, gas, electricity, water and sewer charges, other utilities, garbage removal

and insurance charges even if paid for directly by the Tenant, if such expense is

ordinarily paid for by the Landlord.

11. Anual Service Charge -Estimated Service Charge:

$ over the30 year term ofthe tax exemption, calculated as follows:

(1) Years 1 through 30, a total of $27,493.00 each year, based

upon: A)10% of anual gross revenue of the residential unts: $_ or approximately

$_perunit;
iv. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the

financial status of the Project (for a period oftime as indicated by context), which shall

also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation of Net Profit.



ix. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A sumary

proceeding by which the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale,

under NJ.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 ~t seq.

x. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land,

on which the project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing

improvements. Land Taxes are not exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit

against the Anual Service Charge.

XL. Land Tax Payments - If the law requires, payments made on the



quarerly due dates, including approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as

determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector.

xll. Law - Law shall refer to the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage

Finance Agency Law, NJ.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.; Executive Order 02-003, relating to

long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance

which authorized the execution of this Agreement; and Ordinance 07-123, as may be

amended or supplemented from time to time, which requires the execution of a Project

Labor Agreement, and all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances,

resolutions, rules and/or regulations.

xll. Minimum Anual Service Charge - The Minimum Anual

Service Charge shall be the amount of the total taxes that would have been levied

against all real property in the area covered by the Project in the last full tax year

preceding the recording of the HMF A mortgage which amount the parties agree is

approximately $ The Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be paid in each

year in which the Anual Service Charge, calculated pursuant to the Financial

Agreement would be less than the Minimum Anual Service Charge.

xiv. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter

gender, the singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xv. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the

Project, in whole or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean

the date on which the Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of

Occup~ncy for any portion of the Project.

XVi. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the

terms of this Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements

to be constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

Agreement and the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constrcted on

certain property known on the Offcial Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 1999,



Lots 12.E and 34, more commonly known by the street address of 742-748 Ocean

Avenue, Jersey City, NJ, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached

hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached

hereto as Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite

provisions of Law; has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the

Deparment of Community Affairs; and has been fied with, as appropriate, the Secretary

of State or Offce of the Hudson County Clerk.

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it wil construct certain improvements on the Propert to

create a total of 44 units of affordable rental housing, and 23 car parking garage, all of

which is more specifically described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence constrction and

complete the Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached

hereto as Exhibit 5.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the propert upon which the Project

is to be constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements

wil be managed and controlled as follows:

1. The Entity shall manage the improvements with regard to the residential

dwellng units and retail space.

2. The parking facility will be operated by a third par Lessee pursuant to

and in accordance with the terms of a certain lease between the Entity

and third-pary Lessee.

Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance

with the Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth estimated Total

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the



interest rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in

capital, and the terms of any mortgage amortization.

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules

and lease terms are set forth in Exhibit 7, attached hereto.

ARTICLE III - DURTION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term
So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood

and agreed by the paries hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier

of: thirty three (33) years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance which

approved this exemption or thirt (30) years from the date of the recording of the HMFA

mortgage as fuded and approved by the Agency. The tax exemption shall only be

effective only while the Project is owned by an entity formed and operating as a housing

sponsor under the Law and subject to an HMFA mortgage. Thereafter, the tax

exemption shall expire and the land and improvements thereon shall be assessed and

taxed according to the general law applicable to other non-exempt property in the City.

ARTICLE IV - ANUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make payment to the City

of an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Anual Service Charge or an Annual

Service Charge. The Anual Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the

Entity's estimates of Anual Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan, attached

hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Anual Service Charge shall be adjusted in

accordance with this Agreement.

A Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be due beginnng on the date ths

Agreement is executed. The Anual Service Charge or Minimum Anual Service

Charge, as the case may be, shall be due on the first day of the month following the

Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the

Minimum Anual Service Charge or the Anual Service Charge, the amount unpaid

shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on



land until paid.

Section 4.2 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an anual administrative fee to the City in addition to

the Minimum or Anual Service Charge. This administrative fee shall equal two (2%)

percent of the Anual Service Charge and shall be payable and due on or before

December 3 1 st of each year and collected in the same maner as the Annual Service

Charge.

Section 4.3 Land Tax Credit

If the Law requires the Entity to pay Land Taxes in addition to the service

charges, then the Entity wil be entitled to a land tax credit against the service charges.

I order to be entitled to the credit, however, the Entity is obligated to make timely Land

Tax Payments, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Anual Service

Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarerly

installments against the Anual Service Charge. In any year that the Entity fails to make

any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity

ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credits against the Anual Service Charge for that

year. No credit wil be applied against the Anual Service Charge for partial payments

of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies,

the right to proceed against the propert pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act,

NJ.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default and terminate this Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Anual Service Charge shall be made in

quarterly installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject,

nevertheless, to adjustment for over or underpayment within thiry (30) days after the

close of each calendar year. In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Anual Service

Charge, the amount unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of

unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid.

Section 4.5 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,



Minimum Annual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges, including adjustments

thereto, Administrative Fees, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this

Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMNT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Labor Agreement and Project Employment Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and

other economic related opportnities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of

the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhbit 8. In

addition, the Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance

07-123 as it exists or as it may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain

all Certificates of Occupancy in a timely maner. The failure to secure the Certificates of

Occupancy shall subj ect the property to full taxation.

Section 6.2 Filng of Certificate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith fie with both the

Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to fie such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by

the preceding paragraph, shall not mitigate against any action or non-action, taken by the

City, including, if appropriate retroactive biling with interest for any charges

determined to be due, in the absence of such fiing by the Entity.

Section 6.3 Construction Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed

Financial Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the

construction cost in the issuance of any construction permit(s) for the Project.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls

established and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting



principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor's Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or

calendar year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that this Agreement shall

continue in effect, the Entity shall submit to the Muncipal Council, the Tax Collector

and the City Clerk, who shall advise those muncipal officials required to be advised,

and the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in the Deparment of Community

Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's

Report shall include, but not be limited to: Rental schedule of the urban renewal Project,

and the terms and interest rate on any mortgagee s) associated with the purchase or

construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the

Entity and to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this

Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity

during the previous year.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after the Substantial

Completion of the Project, the Entity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax

Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be

advised, an audit of Total Project Cost, certified as to actual construction costs by an

independent and qualified architect, utilizing the form attached hereto as Exhibit 9, and

as to all other costs, certified its conformance with generally accepted accounting

principles, by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in

the State of New Jersey.

C. Disclosure Statement: On the aniversar date of the execution of this

Agreement, if there has been a change in ownership or interest from the prior year's

fiing, the Entity shall submit to the Muncipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, a Disclosure

Statement listing the persons having an ownership interest in the Project, and the extent

of the ownership interest of each and such additional information as the City may

request from time to time.

Section 7.3 Mortgage



Within ninety (90) days after the date the Entity closes on its loan with the

Agency, the Entity shall fie with the City a fully executed copy of the Note and a

recorded copy of the HMF A Mortgage.

Section 7.4 Inspection/Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and

other facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessar, any other related

Entity by representatives duly authorized by the City and the NJ Division of Local

Governent Services in the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit,

upon request, examination and audit of its books, contracts, records, documents and

papers Such examination or audit shall be made during the reasonable hours of the

business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the Entity.

All costs incurred by the City to conduct the audit, including reasonable

attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as part of

the Entity's Anual Service Charge. Interest shall accrue at the same rate as for a

delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity's retu on

investment shall be limited in accordance with the regulations and conditions imposed

by the Agency pursuant to N.J.S.A. 55: 14K-7(6) or any other Law applicable.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Prior Approval of Sale

Any change made in the ownership of the Project and sale or transfer of the

Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance of the Municipal

CounciL. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity,

wil not uneasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer ofthis

Agreement provided 1) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law;

2) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; and 3) the Entity's

obligations under this Agreement is fully assumed by the new Entity.



Section 9.2 Transfer or Lease to Tax Exempt Organization or Public Body.

In the event that the Entity transfers, sells, demises, conveys, or in any maner

relinquishes ownership or title, including a lease to the land or improvements, covered

by this tax exemption agreement, to a tax exempt non-profit organization or institution,

including any public body, during the term of the tax exemption agreement, that would

adversely impact the City's anticipated economic interests by reducing in any way taxes

or the service charge due the City under ths agreement or by law, it is understood and

agreed by the Entity that it first obtain the consent of the City to the transfer or lease. It

is fuher understood that it may be grounds for the City to withhold its approval if the

City's economic interests are adversely effected thereby.

Section 9.3 Severabilty.

It is an express condition of the granting of this tax exemption that during its

duration, the Entity shall not, without the prior consent of the Muncipal Council by

Ordinance, convey, mortgage or transfer, all or par of the Project so as to sever,

disconnect, or divide the improvements from the lands which are basic to, embraced in,

or underlying the exempted improvements.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated

in accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this

Agreement shall not only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 55:14K-l, et seq., as

currently amended and supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The

Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement

and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax

exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this

Agreement or failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law,

beyond any applicable notice, cure or grace period.



Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of

the Default (Default Notice J. The Default Notice shall set fort with paricularity the

basis of the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the

Default Notice, to cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy

available to the Entity. However, if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default

canot be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable diligence, the City wil extend

the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall

have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.5, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural

remedies as provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate

the Agreement as provided in Aricle XII herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the

property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or

may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the

Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge, Administrative

Fees, Additional Consideration or the Anual Service Charges shall not be subject to the

default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI Land Taxes or the Anual Service

Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in Aricle XI

herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provided in Aricle XII herein. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the

City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and

concurent. No determination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City

of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land

Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge, Anual Service Charge, Administrative

Fees or Additional Consideration. This right shall apply to arearages that are due and

owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if



there had been no determination. Furer, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the

Minimum Anual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees or

Additional Consideration, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy

herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the

rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure

action or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in

Aricle IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the

Entity's land and propert, in the maner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and

any act supplementary or amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is

applied, directly or impliedly to mean taxes or muncipal liens on land, such statutory

provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to ths Agreement, as if the charges were

taxes or municipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period

provided in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirt (30) days

written notice to the Entity (Notice of TerminationJ.

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion

of the Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it

relinquishes its status as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption,

the Anual Service Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative

action of the Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of

this Agreement, the Entity shall provide a final accounting to the City. For puroses of

rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the

end of the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes



Upon Termination or expiration of ths Agreement, the tax exemption for the

Project shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be

assessed and conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other

nonexempt taxable propert in the City.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the paries hereto or

a dispute arsing between the paries in reference to the terms and provisions as set fort

herein, either pary may apply to the Superior Cour of New Jersey by an appropriate

proceeding, to settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as wil tend to accomplish

the purposes of the Law. In the event the Superior Cour shall not entertain jursdiction,

then the paries shall submit the dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New

Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to

accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The cost for the

arbitration shall be borne equally by the paries. The paries agree that the Entity may

not file an action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity

has first paid in ful all charges defined in Aricle IV, Section 4.5 as Material Conditions.

ARTICLE xiv - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a

waiver or relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without

limitation, the right to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any

of the conditions provided herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of

recovery of any amount which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision

ofthis Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as part

defendant in any action (other than an action commenced by the Entity) alleging any

breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement and/or the



provisions of the Law, the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City harless, and the

Entity agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City maintains the

right to intervene as a par thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereof to be borne by the Entity.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either pary to the other shall be sent

by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

and
New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
637 South Clinton Avenue
P.O. Box 18550
Trenton, NJ 08650-2085

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing

otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with

this Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to

provide such Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax

Collector unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity

otherwise. The notice to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the



Urban Renewal Entity and the Property's Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERAILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except

a Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the

remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to

persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable,

shall not be affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement

shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable

and provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the paries shall cooperate

with each other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a

maner contemplated by the paries. This shall include, but not be limited to the

authorization and re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to

effectuate the original intent of the paries. However, the City shall not be required to

restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material Condition, the amount of the

periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would result in any

economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of

the State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule

requiring constrction against the pary drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn

since counsel for both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and

approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflcts

The paries agree that in the event of a confict between the Application and the

language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevaiL. In the

event of conflict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevaiL.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations



There have been no oral representations made by either of the paries hereto

which are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing

the Agreement, and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the paries

and there shall be no modifications thereto other than by a written instrent approved

and executed by both paries and delivered to each pary.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Muncipal Council

approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a par hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each oth~r, utmost good faith is required from the Entity

and the City.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth

at length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this
Agreement;

3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertakg of 
the Project;

7. Initial Rental Schedules and Lease Terms;

8. Project Employment & Contracting Agreement & Project Labor

Agreement;

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs;

10. Written approval of HMF A mortgage loan, including the

amount and term thereof.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paries have caused these presents to be
executed the day and year first above written.

ATTEST:

OCEAN GREEN SENIOR APARTMENTS, LP

SECRETARY

ATTEST:

742-748 OCEAN, LLC GENERA PARTNER

PRESIDENT

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRE
CITY CLERK

JOHN KELLY
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR



1-22-08

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the _ day of

, 20ll,between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City) and OCEAN GREEN
SENIOR APARTMENTS having its principal office at 853 Summit Avenue, Jersey City, NJ
07307. Recipient agrees as follows:

I. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in par, this agreement.

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, strcture, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site.

3. "Contractor" means any part performing or offering to perform a prime contract on

behalf of the Recipient.

4. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportnity under the Departent of

Administration, located at 1 Journal Square Plaza, 2nd Floor, Jersey City, NJ 07306,
Telephone #(201) 547-5611. DEO is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting

. coordination and monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project
which requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduceß the annual amount
of taxes otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the constrction and operational phase
of the project. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions,
terminations, or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by
new employees. However, positions filled though promotion from with the Recipient's
existing work force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

8. Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group withn DEO

under the Deparent of Adminstration responsible for collecting local and minority
business contracts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert

service which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting
and constructíon subcontracting goals.

9. "Minority" means a person who is Afican, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined
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a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial
groups of Africa.

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding,
however, persons of European origin.

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any ofthe original people of the Far
East, Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of
North America who maintains cultual identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in
Jersey City which is fifty-one (51 %) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Deparment of Labor, Division of Labor Market,
and Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City
Clerk.

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporar, par time or seasonaL.

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

contract.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member 
of the DEO staff

under the Deparment of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Project
Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects
covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements wil direct inquiries to the
Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of the DEO

sta under the Deparent of Administration directly under the command of the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site,
collecting the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment &
Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by ths agreement.

16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Officer" is an employee of the
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in
compliance with the Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

17. "Recipient" means any individual, parership, association, organation, corporation or

other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
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receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent
of the Recipient.

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registr" means a list maintained by the

City or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses,
including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is par of a prime contract.

20. "Subcontractor" means a third pary that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perfonn

under a subcontract all or par of the work included in an original contract.

21. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Proj ect.

II. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportities for City residents,
paricularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportities for Local Businesses,
especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or
relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent
mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under ths agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hire whomever they choose.

III. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrnte thnt its work force already meets the
goals set fort below or is able to meet such goals durng the term of ths agreement, the
Recipient wil not be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set fort

in Section VI 1., A-L (Constrction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs). All goals for
Constrction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of the total number of work hours in each
trade from the beginning of the project to its completion.

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing fifty-one (51 %) percent City residents, fift-one (51 %) percent of whom
are residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of
whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more
than one category.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses., fift-
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one (51 %) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. Iffifty-one
(51 %) percent ofMinorI1y or Women Owned Local Businesses canot be obtained, that
percentage of contracts must stil be applied to local vendors.

iv. Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shalI designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This offcer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Offcer.

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the "Project Employment &
Contracting Compliance Officer" to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to
any preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This
principle offcer should also be present for alI preconstrction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer" to the employees of the Recipient's company. An example of this letter

can be found in Appendix AZ

v. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period of the
tax exemption (the Economic Incentive). Thus, it wil commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of
years from the date of the adoption of that Ordinance or _ years from the date of Substantial
Completion ófthe Project.

VI. Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shalI mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Initial Maning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Intial Manng Report.

ii) The Intial Mang Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each

constrction trade or craf and the number of hours to be worked by City

residents, including a list of the number of minority residents and Women
residents that wil work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be
performed by such employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors.
Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient's Intial Maning Report.

iii) The Initial Mang Report shall be fied with the Project Employment and

Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient enterig,
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into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in
Appendix C.

B. Developer's Contracting Obligations

i) Once the developer submits the project's initial manning report, he/she must

forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any
construction or building operating goods, services and sub-contracting
opportnities. An example of this letter is given in Appendix D.

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and

individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which wil
be sent to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program at DEO
under the Deparment of Administration. An example of this letter can be found
in Appendix D2.

C. Contractor's/Subcontractor's Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor
must agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement canbe found in Appendix E.

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective
bargaining agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a unon statement for the paricular

union to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals ariculatcd in thc Projcct Employment & Contracting
agreement. This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the
signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor in DEO under the Deparent of Admnistration before
work stars in order for a developer to be in compliance.

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the

City of any refusal or failure of a unon to sign the statement. If a paricular unon
refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the unon for not signg such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
DEO under the Deparent of Administration. .

E. Sub-Contractors
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The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance
of his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting
requirements during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a
portion of the work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained in these supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account
for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each
trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-joumey-worker
ratio contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold
each of his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient wil require the contractor or
subcontractor to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and
minority apprentices.

G. Monthly Manng Report

i) The Recipient wil cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project

Maning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO
under the Deparent of Administration by the seventh day of the month
following the month durng which the work is performed, for the duration of the
contract.

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number
of minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and wil
list separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and
each of its Subcontractors durng the previous month. The Monthly Maning
Report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain

records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or
Subcontractors.

H. Monthy Certified Payroll Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to fush the Project Employment &
Payroll report shall he in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

Contra

ii) Payroll reports must he submitted on a monthy basis with the Monthly Maning

Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

I. Equal Employment Opportty Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient wil request copies of the
most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2)
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which are required to be fied with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission by the collective bargaining unit. These reports wil be forwarded to the Project
Employment & Contracting Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment
& Contracting Agreement.

1. Other Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other
documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to cary out the
puroses of this agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient wil insure that the City wil have reasonable access to all records and fies
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify

. the accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site wil be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed
reasonably necessar by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report." An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in
Appendix I.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with

the City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site
constrction manager about the monitoring process, and informing hier that

the monitor wil contact him/er to set up an initial meeting. In the case of
projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall infonn the City of the dates
they are working at each site location(s) where they are working, in order to
facilitate the monitoring.

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hing of a Recipient's
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient wil sit
down with the head of the Registr to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent
. workforce. The following issues should be covered in ths meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiing process.
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
iii) the qualifications needed for these paricular jobs.
iv) possible trainig programs offered by the permanent employer.

v) the Recipient's goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
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vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of
its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the
subcontracting pary that it wil abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement
before said subcontractor begins staffng permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a
copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An
example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with
the head of the Registr to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the

same requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken
place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent
employment needs. This plan should summarze all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring
Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment
goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the
Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any

employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a
wrtten notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of
pay, hours of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective
terms which wil enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient wil place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must fuish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Deparment of Administration with a
copy of ths advertisement.

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the
advertisement.

F. Semi-Anual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-anual
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident,
minority resident or woman resident. The report wil explain in wrting the reasons why any
quaified applicant referred by the Registr (or in the event advertisement is required, any

qualified person responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example ;ofthis report is
found in Appendix K.
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G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files
and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the
accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the
semi-annual reports.

i. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall funish

such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to
implement the puroses of this agreement.

J. Incoæoration of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,
maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose
personnel wil be assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

1) Solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any
construction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting
opportunities. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was

accepted or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of ths documentation

can be found in Appendix D2.

i) Semi-Anua Purchasing Reports: The Recipient wil submit wrtten semi-
anual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts
awarded over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these
contracts. The reports will specify the number and dollar amount of
contracts awarded to Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned
Local Businesses. An example of these reports can be found in Appendix
L.

ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors
that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Deparent of
Administration of a Recipient, either knowingly or unowigly, using the masthead of a local
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or minority owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it
should not, wil immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section Vin (d)
below.

4. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

I. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A)

2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient's Employees

(App.) AZ
3. Example ofInitial Manning Report (Appendix B)

4. Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Maning Report (Appendix C)

5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and

Residential Vendors from Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Progran1
(Appendix D)

6. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2)

7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/

Subcontractors (Appendix E)
8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)
9. Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)
10. Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H)
11. Example of Bi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I)
12. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix 1)
13. Example of Semi-Anual Employment Report (Appendix K)

14. Example of Semi-Anual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

VII. Notices of Violation:

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The
Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an
Advisory Notice can be found in Appendix M.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set fort in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then
issue a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in suffcient

detail the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have thee (3)
workig days to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in
AppendixN.

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may

be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of ths agreement and

so advises the City in writing, subject to confrmation by the City.

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
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achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation wil be considered not corrected.

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting

with the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance;
or may respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely
submission of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be
requested no later than two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written
explanation.

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request

additional information from appropriate paries as is considered necessary to determine
whether the alleged violation has occured.

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determnes that the
Recipient is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided
below.

VIII. Liquidated Damages/lnterest:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the paries agree that damages for violations of this
agreement by the Recipient canot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical
certainty. Therefore, the paries agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any of the
above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation,
the City wil be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a) failure to file Initial Maning Reports (Constrction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring

Notification (Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business
Contracting): an amount equa to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated
anual paymcnt in lieu of taxes;

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement

(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to
Thee (3 %) percent increase in the estimated anual payment in lieu of taxes;

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports

(all categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated
anual payment in lieu of taes.

d) the use of the local or local minority business' masthead for labor or work
supplied by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%)
percent increase in the estimated anual payment in lieu of taxes. Interest shall
be charged on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax
Collector.
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Collector.

e) the late payment of any liquidated sum shaII accrue interest at the rate of 8%.

ix. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

1. The Recipient shaII send aII tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a

letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as
Appendix O.

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about

the composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will
be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall
provide the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P.

3. The Recipient wil send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year.

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a

Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.

X. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either pary to the other, shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:

Ocean Green Senior Aparents, LP

c/o Eugene P. O'Connell
853 Sumit Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07307

2. When sent by the Reèipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
Deparment of Administration
Division of Economic Opportty
1 Joural Square Plaza

2nd Floor

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; uness prior to.
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification:
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This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by
the Municipal CounciL.

XII. Controllng Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflcts
with any collective bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargaining agreement.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Brian O'Reily
Business Administrator

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

WITNESS: Ocean Green Senior Apartments, LP

President: Frank CretellaSecretary: Eugene P. O'Connell
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EXHBIT 5-
ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

/



CONSTRUCTION TIMTABLE

I. Designation of Developer Title Search, Survey, etc.
2. Planning Board
3. Council ( Resolution and Tax Abatement)
4. Grant Submission
5. Final Grants
6. Star Constrction
7. Completion of Constrction

May 201 I

July 2011
July 2011

August2011
November 20 II
November 20 II
Januar 31, 2013

.~.



EXHIBIT 6-
FINANCIAL PLAN FOR THE UNDERTAKNG OF

THE PROJECT



EXHIBIT 7-
INITIAL RENTAL SCHEDULES AND LEASE

TERMS



EXHIBIT. 9-.:" ,/'
ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION COSTS



Inglese Architecture & Engineering

150 Union Avenue
East Hutherford¡ NJ 07073

201.438.0081 :tel

201.438.0225. fax

Î. ingleseßiing lesè-í:e. co m

June21,2011

Eugene P. O'Connell
853 Summit Avenue
Jersey City, NJ 07307

Re: Ocean Green Senior Apartments, L.P.
44~Unit Development
Jersey City, New Jersey

Dear Mr. O'Connell:

This letter is to confirm that the preliminary construction budget forthe aforementioned projectis
.$7,666.,Q76.90.. Feel free to contact me if you have any additional questions. .
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APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTION
OF

GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC

In compliance with Executive Order 02-003 of the Mayor of City of Jersey
City, the Applicant herewith submits the following information in support of its
application for a Tax Exemption under and pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq.

Applicant: Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC
594 Broadway, Suite 1107
New York, New York 10012
Attn.: Karim Hutson

Project: Ocean and Dwight
441-443,445,447,449,451-457 Ocean
Avenue and 79-81 Dwight Street
Jersey City, New Jersey

Applicant's
General Contractor: TBD

Applicant's Architect: DMR Arch itects
777 Terrace Avenue
Hasbrook Heights, New Jersey

Applicant's Attorney: Garcia & Turula, LLC
Harborside Plaza 10

3 Second Street, Suite 1201
Jersey City, New Jersey 07311
Tele. (201) 200-1900
Fax (201) 200-1982
Attn: George L. Garcia, Esq.

Loan Advisor and/or
Consultants: The Metro Company, LLC

242 - 10th Street, Suite 103

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Attn.: Mr. Stuart Portney
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit

G.
H.
H-1
I

J.
K.

L.

M.
N.

Description of Property
Annual Gross Revenue Computation
Descriptions of Leases
Total Project Cost
Sources and Uses
Projected Statement of Stabilized
Property Operations
Municipal Land Use Approvals
Real Estate Tax Assessments and
Real' Estate Taxes
Disclosure Statement
Commencement Certification
Certification of Compliance with laws
Certification of Diligent Inquiry
Proposed Financial Agreement
Project Employment Agreement

A.
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APPLICATION

A. Identification of the Property: The Property located at 441-443, 445, 447,
449,451 and 451-457 Ocean Avenue and 79 - 81 Dwight Street Jersey City,
New Jersey and is more particularly known as Blocks 1332, Lots 1, 2 and 18.99,
Block 1332, Lot 20.99 and Block 1332, Lots A, Band C on the official tax map of
the City of Jersey City, State of New Jersey. The Property is more particularly
described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

B. Site Control:

The Applicant is under contract to purchase from the Jersey City
Redevelopment Agency the Property

C. General Statement of the Nature of the Project:

The Applicant proposes to develop an affordable housing project pursuant to and
in furtherance of the objectives of the Turnkey Redevelopment Plan. The
development shall consist of a five (5) story multi-family building containing sixty
(64) affordable residential rental dwelling units, containing twenty-four (24) one
(1) bedroom units, 20 two (2) bedroom units and twenty (20) three (3) units and
approximately 4,465 square feet of officelretail space on the ground floor with
twenty-two (22) on-site parking spaces.

The Projects affordable nature, its dynamic and diverse commercial attributes,
makes it ideally situated.

D. Type and Term of Exemption Requested:

The Applicant seeks a tax exemption under and pursuant to N.J.S.A.
40A:20-1, et seq., (The Long Term Tax Exemption Law) for the Project. The
applicant seeks a thirty (30) year exemption based upon the 8.00% of annual
gross revenue formula under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b)(1). The estimated Annual
Service Charge is S 40,413.00 see Exhibit B.

E. Improvement to be Constructed: The development shall consist of a five
(5) story multi-family building containing sixty (64) affordable residential rental
dwelling units, containing twenty-four (24) one (1) bedroom units, 20 two (2)
bedroom units and twenty (20) three (3) units and approximately 4,465 square
feet of office/retail space on the ground floor with twenty-two (22) on-site parking
spaces (the "Project"). A description of the terms leases for the Project is
attached as Exhibit C.
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F. Certified Estimated Total Cost of the i

Project (Exhibit 0 and 0-1): S 17,293,678.00

G. Source of Funds:

A schedule of sources and uses of funds is attached as Exhibit E.

H. Fiscal Plan: A schedule of the Fiscal Plan for the Project is attached as
Exhibit F.

i. Construction Schedule:

The construction of the Project is scheduled to commence within 180 days
of the date the exe"cution of the Financial Agreement and will be completed within
approximately twenty-four (24) months thereafter.

J. Municipal Land Use Approvals:

The Applicant has applied for preliminary site plan approval for the Project
from the Jersey City Planning Board on August 9th, 2011 Exhibit G.

K. Eligible Redevelopment Plan or UEZ Location of the Project. The Project

is located within the boundaries of the Turnkey Redevelopment Plan.

L. Real Estate Tax Assessments and Levied:

The tax assessments information for the property upon which the Project
is to be located is attached hereto as Exhibit H.

The total payment for the municipal real estate taxes for 2011 was
approximately S7,668.56 computed in accordance with Exhibit H-1.
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M. Status of Municipal Taxes and Other Charges:

The Applicant is under contract to purchase from the Jersey City
Redevelopment Agency the Property known as Blocks 1332, Lots 1,2 and 18.99,
Block 1332, Lot 20.99 and Block 1332, Lots A, Band C on the official tax map of
the City of Jersey City. To the best of the Applicant's knowledge and belief, all
real estate taxes and other assessments against the property have been paid in
fulL. The Applicant will payor cause all real estate taxes or other assessments
due on the property to be paid prior to the execution of the Financial Agreement.

N. Disclosure Statement:

A Disclosure Statement is attached hereto as Exhibit i. The Applicant is a
limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey and
has petitioned for qualification as an urban renewal entity pursuant to N.J.S.A.
40A:20-5. A copy of the proposed Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as
part of Exhibit 1-1.

O. Certificate of Construction Commencement:

The Certification of Construction Commencement and Construction
Completion scheduled are attached hereto as Exhibit J.

P. Estimated Jobs Created:

The Applicant estimates that construction of the Project wil generate 100
jobs over the construction period. Approximately 4 permanent real estate rental,
management, clerical, and service positions will be created.

Q. Compliance with State and Local Law and Certification of Truthfulness
and Diligent Inquiry:

A Certification by the Applicant that the Project meets the requirements of
the laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of Jersey City is attached heretoas Exhibit K. '

A Certification of the Applicant that all information contained in the
application is true and correct to the best of its knowledge after having made
diligent inquiry is attached hereto as Exhibit L.

5



S. Financial Agreement:

The proposed Financial Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit M.

T. Project Employment Agreement:

The proposed Project Employment Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit N.

U. Fee:

Pursuant to Chapter 160, Section KK, Chapter 304, Taxation of the
Ordinance of the City of Jersey City a filing is not required for this application.
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

(SEE ATIACHED)
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Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company
File No. MTANJ-046621

TITLE INSURCE COMMTMENT
SCHEDUL A

LEGAL DESCRITION

All that certain lot, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate, lying and being in
the City ofJersey City, County ofHidscn, State of New Jersey

BEING known and designated as Lot A in Block 1332, as shown on a certin map entitled "Map of the Estate of John 1.
Bouton, Deceaed shoeing propert of George T. Bouton, George T. Bouton and Robert Duncanson, Jr., Trutees and
GeorgeT. Bouton, Trutee ", duly fied in the Offce of the Clerk of Hudson County on March 10,1902 as Map # 1251.

BEGING at a point on the northwesterly line of Ocean Avenue, distant northeasterly 50.12 feet from the northeasterly
line of Futon Avenue; thecae runing

1. Northwesterly and parallel with Fulton Avenue, 99.84 feet; thence

2. Northeasterly and at right angles with the last course, 16.67 feet to a point opposite the center of part wall, stading
parly on the premises herein described and partly on the premises adjoining norheasterly thereto; thence

3. Southeasterly to, through and beyond the center of said par wall, parallel with the first course ru, 98.65 feet to the
northwesterly line of Ocean Avenue; thence

4. Soutwesterly along the same, 16.71 feet to the point or place ofBEGlNG

NOTE: Being Lot(s) A, Block 1332, Tax Map of the City of Jersey City, County ofHidson.

NOTE: Lot and Block shown for informational puroses only.

Madison Title Agency, LLC
1125 Ocean Avenue, Lakewood, NJ 08701

Telephone: 732-905-9400 Fax: 732-905-9420

(Created 09126108 03:0 I 'AM) (04662 I .PFD/04662111 7)



Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company

File No. MTANJ-046622

TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT
SCHEDULE A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All that certain lot, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate, lying and being in
the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson , State of New Jersey

BEING known and designated as Lot B in Block 1332, as shown on a certain map entitled "Map of the Estate of John J.
Bouton" made by Edward B. See. DeL., duly filed in the Office of the Clerk of Hudson County on March 10, 1902 as Map #
1251.

BEGINING at a point on the northwesterly line of Ocean Avenue, distant northeasterly 66.83 feet from the northeasterly
line of Fulton Avenue; thence running

1. Northwesterly and parallel with Fulton Avenue, 98.65 feet; thence

2. Northeasterly and at right an gles with Fulton Avenue or nearly so, 16.67 feet; thence

3. Southeasterly parallel with the first course, 97.46 feet to the northwesterly line of Ocean Avenue; thence

4. Southwesterly along the same, 16.71 feet to the point or place of BEGINING

i NOTE: Being Lot(s) B, Block 1332, Tax Map of 
the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson.

NOTE: Lot and Block shown for infonnational purposes only.

Madison Title Agency, LLC
1125 Ocean Avenue, Lakewood, NJ 08701

Telephone: 732-905-9400 Fax: 732-905-9420

(Created 09/25/08 07:07'AM) (046622.PFD/046622/10)



Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company

File No. MTANJ-046623

TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT
SCHEDULE A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All that certain lot, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate, lying and being in
the City of Jersey City, County of Hudson, State of New Jersey .
BEING known and designated as Lot C in Block 1332, as shown on a certain map entitled "Map of the Estate of John J.
Bouton ", duly filed in the Office of the Clerk of Hudson County on March 1 0, 1902 as Map # 125 i.

BEGINING at a point on the northwesterly line of Ocean Avenue distant northeasterly 83.54 feet from the northeasterly
side of Fulton Avenue; thence

1. Northwesterly and parallel with Fulton Avenue to, through and beyond a part wall standing partly on the premises
hereby conveyed and partly on the premises next adjoinin g south westerly thereto 97.46 feet; thence

2. Northeasterly and at right an gles with Fulton Avenue or nearly so 16.67 feet to the line of/an ds of Ross; thence

3. Southeasterly and along the line oflands ofRcss, 96.26 feet to the norhwesterly side of 
Ocean Avenue; thence

4. Southwesterly along the northwesterly side of 
Ocean Avenue 16.71 feet to the point or place of BEGINING.

NOTE: Being Lot(s) C, Block 1332, Tax Map of 
the City of Jersey Cityi County of Hudson.

NOTE: Lot and Block shown for infonnational purposes only.

Madison Title Agency, LLC
1125 Ocean Avenue, Lakewood, NJ 08701

Telephone: 732-905-9400 Fax: 732-905-9420

(Created 09/25/08 07:32'AM)
(046623. PFD/046623/8)



EXHIBIT B

ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE AND ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE
COMPUTATION

Total Annual Gross Rental

Apartments:

Vacancy Residential at 5 %:

$ 150,384

$ 154,560

$ 195,480

$ 31,255
$ 3,200

($ 25,021)

($ 4,688)

. One Bedrooms:
Two Bedrooms:
Three Bedrooms:
Other - Commercial:
Other - Laundry:

Vacancy Commercial at 15 %:

Total $ 505,170

Total Annual Service Charge
Apartments at 8.00% of
Annual Gross Revenue: $ 38,288

Total Annual Service Charge
Commercial at 8.00% of
Annual Gross Revenue: $ 2,125

Total Annual Service Charge: $ 40,413

8



EXHIBIT C

DESCRIPTION OF LEASES

1. Name of Tenant Various

2. Term of Lease Initial term of lease not less
than one (1) year

3. Number of Apartments 24 - One Bedroom
20 - Two Bedrooms
20 - Three bedrooms

4. Projected Annual Rent per Apartment
One Bedroom: $150,384

Two Bedrooms: $154,560

Three Bedrooms: $195,480
Total: $500,424

6. Total Annual Rent

5% ($25,021)

$475,403

5. Anticipated Vacancy

7. Premium Paid directly by
Tenant Annually: N/A

a. Fire and other insurance:

b. Real Estate Taxes of
~ssessments in project:

c. Operating and maintenance
Expense ordinarily paid by tenant:

8. Renewal Option: Yes

a. Number of years: One (1) year.

b. Renewal Rent: TBAlmarket increases

9. Special Features (step-up rents, etc.): N/A

9



EXHIBIT D

TOTAL PROJECT COST-40A:20-3(h) as amended

a. Cost of land and improvements to the
$ 460,041

b. Architects, engineers, attorneys, and accounting

fees (paid or payable) in connection with the
planning, construction and financing of theProject. $ 645,000

c. Surveying and testing charges $ 75,000

d. Projected construction cost preliminary

contractor bids including site preparation $ 13,868,610

e. Insurance, interest and finance costs during

construction $ 727,527
f. Cost of obtaining initial permanent financing $ 10,000

. g. Commissions and other expenses payable in

connection with initial lease or sale of units $ 80,000

h. Real Estate taxes during construction period $ 64,500

i. Developer's overhead based. on a percentage of

(d) above, to be computed in accordance with
Percentage given in law (40A:20-3(h)) $ 1 ,363,000

TOTAL $ 17,293,678

10



EXHIBITD-1

TOTAL PROJECT COST ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATION

i. Jt()f4T V if:lle:U~ the architect for the Applicant do certify that

to the best of my knowledge and belief Exhibit D accurately reflects the estimates

construction cost of the Project as of the date hereof.

/17~?J¿o-
MAA i. PE

NOARAØtI HE'"
Cou.,....'I1MO5

l- ij tf" L-d
(tlJJtT. V i~ttLI e,.

l? """"A-JL'lll'TE'L T's

AlA
.

11

.



EXHIBIT E

SOURCES AND USES

USES
Land Acquisition
Sitework
Soft Costs
Hard Costs
Financing & Carrying Costs

Marketing & Leasing

Develo er Fee

$ 250,000

$ 210,041

$ 720,000

$ 13,868,610
$ 802,027

$ 80,000
$ 1,363,000

SOURCES

FHLBAHP
LffTC Equity
City of Jersey City HOME
Deferred Developer Fee

NJHMFA First Mort a e Loan

$640,000
$14,375,522

$1,500,000
$178,156
$600,000Ji~~~;l~"i~~~ti~~l~~

12



EXHIBIT F

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

Residential
One Bedroom $ 150,384
Two Bedroom $ 154,560
Three Bedroom $ 195,480
Other-Commercial $ 31,255
Other-Laundry $ 3,200
Total Gross Income $ 534,879

Less Residential Vacancy (5%) $ (25,021)
Less Commercial Vacancy (15%) $ (4,688)

Total Net Income $ 505,170

Operating Expenses

Administrative $ 40,839
Salaries $ 111,500
Maintenance & Repairs $ 37,000
Maintenance Contracts $ 52,167
Utilities $ 32,000
Management Fee $ 36,864
Insurance $ 35,200
P.LL.O.T. on Residential Income $ 38,288 8%
P.LL.O.T. on Commercial Income $ 2,125 8%
Reserve for Repair and Replacement $ 25,600
Total Operating Expenses $ 411,583

Net Operating Income Before
Debt Service and Taxes $ 93,586

13



EXHIBIT G

MUNICIPAL LAND USE APPROVALS

(SEE ATTACHED)

14 .
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. S;UBJCl.
PROPERTY
DESqul'I

E

Site Acl..ge (squ"are footage and dimensions):

25,5~~ sf various (dirn~nsionS)

PreseJ-use:. porti()n vacant and fallow,.
, ¡:

itl Conforming 0 Non-Conforming

Ii.. Vacant Lot

Zong District(s):

Redevelopment Area:

Historic District:

~l.
V

NO. 567 ¡;0Ø1

Tumkey Redevelopment

Turnkey

. None

propO~å Development, Narne, and Nature of Use:

Mult~fairily building.containing sixty-four (64) affordable and moderate income dwellng units.
i:

,

. CheCk¡~1 that Apply:

II i~iìplication for ~ new building on
un~~veloped tract

i:

i:,

NiJmblof N~w Buildings: 1-
Height(t8ble:

o Application for new use of

existing building

o Application for use of a

porton ,of a building

Existing

Stories Feet

Proposed

Stories Feet
60'

B.:. ,ing

A~tion/Exten$iQn

RØoftop Appurtnances.

'æssory Stuctures

i"
L

St'liare Footage of-appliGable building(s) for
th~s project by use: .

Ii

Re.tidential 78.122.5. sf

R~iaíl . 4,465 sf

qïce 0 sf

Irii:stral 0 sf

p~ing Garage 11,428 sf

òmer 0 sf

TtrAL: 94,615,5 sf

12'

Number of dwellng units (if applicable):

Studio 0 units

1 bedroom 24 units

2 bedroom 20 . units

3 bedroom 20 units

4+ bedroom 0 units

TOTAL: 64 units

N~ber of lots before subdiVision;

N!ber of lots afr subdivision:

nla.

n/a

% of lot to be covered by buildings: 69.98 %

%.,of lot to. be aDvereõ by buildings & 82.5 "1
oâement
G.tQss floor area (GFA): 94,6ti sf
FIçQrAra Ratio (FAR); 3.1

"!.

:0:.

fõ IE OC~ ~W IE fR

lf"f~~J ~
DiviSion of City Planning
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10.
PARG&
SIGNAGE

11.IN-
ST.RUCTUR

08:41 PLANNING DIV. ~ 92012001982 NO. 560 i;004
.'.. !

L

~
..'--,'. ':--

Number dt parking spaces & dimensions: number: E. I Dime ~:R ~ ~ W ~~Number ~f loading spaces & dimenSions: number: ~ / Dime
I:,

. fJ11i 1 U ion

. r .. e .. NUmbe~~gri ~ . . . 1.:::
Height of', ionument and/or pylon signs: ~ If.- 0 Cit;

,

(

: .'
I¡.

DivisjO~ of City Planning
"

:.
;
,. .

WATER Ii.
..

Is public ~ter being extnded to.the trct and/or reused? If yes, i.es DNo
speèify s¡~ arid materiaL. ..,:. Size T90 by piumbing engineer. From ÐKiotng mainIi Material DIP

. OQes thel~sting water service have a curb stop? DYes DNa

Is thre e?sting combined fire/domestic servce? DYes DNa

Is there ~isting domestic service only? .DYes DNo

Is new w I~r service being proposed? JlVes DNo

is there r ~ combined fire/domestic servce? IlYes DNo

Is there r ~ domestic service only' DYes IINo

S~R~:.....
15 eXistin~sewer servce proposed to be reused? If yes, DYes IlNo
specif si_ and material.lie . Size

,

i
Material

Wil lher~¡:~e sewer curb .c1eanout? IiYes DNo

Are.mini hiim slope-requiremenls satisfied as per.National IlYes DNo
Standsn'lumbinClCode?
is n~W"s ,,ler servce propo~d? . liVes DNo

Are stOfrf drains proposed? IiYes DNo

Are any liw streets or utilty extensions proposed? DYes .IlNo

. 1:
i.

Mise ¡:
l;...

Are exiS~ing strets being widened DYes ¡jNo

Are utiliti~ underground IlYes .ONo

Is site ìnl\â.floOd plain? DYes IiNo

is soil re~~)Val or fill proposeØ? If yes., specify total in cubic yards. íiYes ONo "löOU.cy

Are any ~uctures bein.g removed? DYes DNo

is the aptication for additional buildings and/or improvements to a IiYes DNo
tract ha~g existinß buildings and/or improvements?
Is the pr4rly within 200 feet of an adjacent municipality? If yes, DYes. IlNo.

h. hí' I,W!c. ;¡..
I~' Municipalities:
i:

Is the pr~ert on a County Road'? . DYes IlNo
Are th~~.¡jee restrictions, covenants, and/or easements DYes ii No 

affectin 'tie trct? If ves. attch 2 coíes.
' .

Are there iany performance guarantees and/or maintenance DYes ~No
agreemér~ with the Cit Council? If ves, attch 2 copies.

. ..

..,

~~ i

:i

. ,

"

1-
!

,..
i
J:
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12.
TYPE OF
"ØJNELOl'MEN

i

i

I

I
(
l

12: 14 PLANNING DIU. ~ 92012001982 NO. 567 i:002

....
. ).~ \ '--..'-"'

~.

REQtñRED FOR ALL DEVELOPMENTAPP~ICATI~NS .
i
¡.

Total number
of

affordable
housing
unito,

creted

total number of
resjdential units

demolished

total number
of new

residential
units. created

Nøw stiòiilur~ containing rø.identlal unit'. .
Conve~n fr~m 8 non~resldential structre to a structre
contaln-.g residental units .
Convern from market rae housing units to NJ COAH
define~¡jjordable.housing units

64 .64 6

"'Accding to NJ COAH definitions atN.J.A.c. 5:94 et seq.

~;~. .
VoryLow

InCome
Age Restricted Rental.Unlts;. , . Moderat

Income
Low Income

;;.:

o 64o 32 32Nnrr.bø~::Of ~ffordable

~ouslns.mts creat_do, .
r;~.JL
I;:. Use Group Deseñption

(ThGse Ii descriptions are pursuant to NJ Council on Affordable Housing
N~)A.G.~. 5:94 Appendix E, and are for the sole purpse 9f calcul~ting

aforda~le housinQ obliaation.)
B; Of~ buildings. Places where business transactions of all kinds occur.
InC!i.d~.banks, coiporate ofces, govemment.offèes, professional offce, car
showrobrns and outoatent clinics. . .
M: Meitantila useS, Buildings used to display and sell products. hicludes reil

~tores, I~~rip malls, shops and gas stations.

f: . F~cl~es wher people make, proces. or assemble products. F use group
includ$ F1 and F2.

s~ ,sto~e use. Includes warehouses, parking garagE! and lumberyards. S

group ircludes 81.and 82. .
H: High Haard manufacturing. prosing, generation and storage uses. H
group ii~çludes H1', H2, H3. H4 and .H5.

. A1: A~êmblY use inCI~ding concert halls and lV studios.
::.:

'" Acconiig to NJ ÇOAH dcfiitioß6 at NJ.A. C. 5: 94. et seq.

Gross.Floor Area
of New .

Con!rniction

(.;ross Floor
Are of

Demolition

.0

4,465

o

11,428

o

o

o

o
o

o

.0

o

o

f~nce 295 Ifr
u: Mlsr:llaneoUS USEI. Fences, tanks. sheds, greenhouses, etc.

';

,

:.;.

'fõ ! (G ~. U WfEM,;)' .

Ifi Ö, Jill i V 2øn 1 U' ,
lt! / -- 0 ¡¡t... J K,~;;~. "W~.'i1.

fllfk inn nf C. 'n: Of' ~~~ij¡,1'. rl 1 "'n' ,. ,..._ ' !'. .riing :.' ;.;. .___ :: j_.-"-..-r.~

:: "
,

.... :
",.:

Â: .
. ~'. ",
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13.,
APPROVAL.
HISTORY

i~.
FEES
. (se attchEd feE
,tbiluk) .

15.
AITAClIENTS

16.
CERTIFlCATlON

.....

i 1~
L.ist aU pa~t approvals, denials, appeals, or other activity for the subject propert. IiCheck here if none
If there a~~ previous. ap~val$ attch 2 copies of the approving resolution .

t,

!:;
CiTY JOBfCASE NUMBER

APPROVED DENIED DATE

Subdivisipn.
0 0

Site. Plan!:
0 0

Variar:c~,S)
0 0

Buiid,ing eermit
0 0

~- '. _.,: -- " .-.', ..:;-., '
..,..- -._., _. ;'...;.: -.;~~::..-;;:,!,,¿~.::,¡i..i~,.

Sui:dÎvi~~, ,..
SiteP~ .1-. ,:,
Var;anc~)-,-,' ,
TOTALlquE

$

$

$

$

Ainoun~~~aid $

BALAtfE DUE $--:.
~.

L;

I:;.
l;~. .~ . .

plea~~f,Attaçh the required additional forms and informaton, if appUeable (see attached FORMS.
and C~ECKUSTS) .¡ . ' .

i:...
':

'certiJ:that the foreging statements and the attched materials s~bn1ited are true. I further certify that I .
al1 tM,.indìvidual åpplicant or that I am an Ofcer of the Corporate Applicant and that I am ~uthorized to
sign th~ application for the Corporation or that. 

1 am a General Parter of the PaÌ1ership Applicant. I

h~reb~:permit authorized City offcial to 

inspect my propert in conjurictiori with this application.

,'.
,.
,.
.~.

'~':'

.\:

,.
f

./ Sworn to and subscribed before me ttis date

.';~.

.',

. .!'

:.;,' .

1.

~,:

., .
!:

i .~.

ProPElrty Owner Authorizing Applicatin if
other/tian Applicant

-.'.

, ,

.1

..!

~ ! ::: .

r:,,:,,;"1.., ,.l ("'+ P' ...! \.1 1::"I"HTM

.:~



Exhibit H

THE LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN ASSESSED FOR THE YEAR
2011 AS FOLLOWS:

Parcel Land Improvement Total
1. Block 1332 $ 12,800.00 $0.00 $12,800.00
Lot 1

2. Block 1332 $12,800.00 $0.00 $12,800.00
Lot 2
3. Block 1332 $8,400.00 $49,800.00 $58,200.00
LatA
4. Block 1332 $4,400.00 $53,600.00 $58,000.00
Lot B
5. Block 1332 $4,400.00 $25,600.00 $30,000.00
Lot C
6. Block 1332 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00
Lot 18.99
7. Block 1332 $176,200.00 $0.00 $176,200.00
Lot 20.99

15



EXHIBIT H-1

The Real Estate Taxes Biled to the Propert in the Year 2011 were:

Parcel Total Taxes
1. Block 1332, Lot 1 $0.00

2. Block, Lot 2 $0.00

3. Block 1332, Lot A $3,052.74

4. Block 1332, Lot B $3,042.25

5. Block 1332, Lot C $1,573.57

6. Block 1332, Löt 18.99 $0.00

7. Block 1332, Lot 20.99 $0.00

Total: $ 7,668.56

16



EXHIBIT I

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

NAME OF ENTITY: Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC

PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS: 594 Broadway Suite, 1107

New York, New York

NAME OF REGISTERED AGENT:

ADDRESS: 360 Communipaw Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey

NAME ADDRESS PERCENT OWNED

1. Karim Hutson 594 Broadway Suite, 1107 100%
New York, New Yark

I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE REPRESENTS THE NAMES AND ADDRESSES
OF ALL MEMBERS OWNING A 10% OR GREATER INTEREST IN THE ABOVE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY. IF ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NAMED
IS ITSELF AN ENTITY, THE APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE THE NAMES AND
ADDRESSES OF ANY ENTITY OWING A 10% OR GREATER INTEREST
THEREIN.

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT NO OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF
JERSEY CITY HAS ANY INTEREST, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, IN THIS ENTITY.
I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING STATEMENTS MADE BY ME ARE TRUE.
I AM AWARE THAT IF ANY OF THE FOREGOING STATEMENTS MADE BY
ME ARE WILLFULLY FALSE, I AM SUBJECT TO PUNISHMENT.

Genesis Ocean As ociates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC

DATE: By:

17



EXHIBIT 1-1

CERTIFICATION OF FORMATION

(SEE ATTACHED)

18



Certcate of First Amendment to the Certificate of Formation
of

GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES, LLC

1. The name of the Limited Liability is: Genesis Ocean Associates, LLC.

2. The Identification Number of the Limted Liability Company is: 04004202497.
¡

3. The new name of the Limted Liability Company is: Genesis Ocean Urban
Renewal Co., LLC.

4. The following shall be added as paragraph (4) to the Certificate of 
Formation of

the Limted Liability Company dated May 26th, 2011 and filed with the Treasurer of 
the

State of New Jersey on May 26th, 2011:

4. (i) The purose for which the Company is formed shall be to operate

under P.L.1991, c.431 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.) and to intiate and conduct projects for the
redevelopment of a redevelopment area pursuant to a redevelopment plan, or projects
necessary, useful, or convenient for the relocation of residents displaced or to be
displaced by the redevelopment of all or par of one or more redevelopment areas, or low
and moderate income housing projects, and, when authorized by financial agreement with
the City of Jersey City (the "City"), to acquire, plan, develop, construct, alter, mainta or
operate housing, senior citizen housing, business, industrial, commercial, admstrative,
communty, health, recreational, educational or welfare projects, or any combination of
two or more of these types of improvement in a single project, under such conditions as
to use, ownership, management and control as regulated pursuant to P.L.1991, cA31
(CAOA:20-1 et seq.).

(ii) So long as the Company is obligated under financial agreement with the City made
pursuant to P.L.1991, cA31 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.), it shall engage in no business other
than the ownership, operation and management of 

the project.

(iii) The Company has been organzed to serve a public purose, its operations shal be
directed toward: (1) the redevelopment of redevelopment areas, the faciltation of the
relocation of residents displaced or to be displaced by redevelopment, or the conduct of
lo:w and moderate income housing projects; (2) the acquisition, management and
operation of a project, redevelopment relocation housing project, or low and moderate
income housing project under P.L.1991, c.431 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.); and (3) the Company
shall be subject to reguation by the City, and to a limtation on profits or dividends, as
appropriate, for so long as the Company remais the owner of a project subject to
P.L.1991, c.431 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.).

1



(iv) The Company shall not voluntarily transfer more than 10% of the ownership of the
project or any portion thereof undertaken by the Company under P.L.1991, cA31
(CAOA:20-1 et seq.), until it has first removed both it:;elf and the project from all
restrictions ofP.L.1991, cA31 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.), in the maner required by P.L.1991,
cA31 (CAOA:20-1 et seq.), and, if the project includes housing unts, has obtained the
consent of the Commssioner of Communty Affairs to such transfer; with the exception
of transfer to another urban renewal entity, as approved by the City, which other urban
renewal entity shall assume all contractu obligations of the transferor entity under the
financial agreement with the City. The Company shall fie anually with the muncipal
governg body of the City a disclosure of the persons having an ownership interest in the
project, and of the extent of the ownership interest of each. Nothig herein shall prohibit
any transfer of the ownership interest in the Company itself, provided that the transfer, if
greater than 10 percent, is disclosed to the muncipal governng body of the City in the
anual disclosure statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the
anua disclosure statement referred to above.

(v) The Company is subject to the provisions of 
section 18 ofP.L.1991, cA31 (CAOA:20-

18), as amended, respecting the powers of the City to alleviate financial diffculties of the

Company or to perform actions on behalf of the Company upon a determnation of
financial emergency.

(vi) Any housing unts constructed or acquired by the Company shall be managed subject
to the supervision of, and rues adopted by, the Commssioner of Communty Mfais.

5. Ths Certificate shall be effective upon its filing with the Secretary of
State.

6. In all other respects the Certificate of Formation dated January 5th, 2011 and filed with
the Treasurer ofthe State of New Jersey on Januar 5th, 201 i shall remain in ful forceand effect. .

IN WITNESS WHREOF, the undersigned being over the age of eighteen (18)
years, hereby represents that he is authorized to sign this certificate on behalf of the
Limted Liability Company and that this filing complies with N. . .A. 42:2B-1 et seq.,
the "New Jersey Limted Liabilty Company Act."

Date: July;)"1 ,2011

2



NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
DIVISION OF CODES AND STANDARDS

BUREAU OF HOMEOWNER PROTECTION.
PO BOX 805

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08625-0805

URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

Instructions for Completion: You have filed an application for approval of an urban renewal entity pursuant to
the Long Term Tax Exemption Law (N.J.S.A 40A:20-1 et seq.). In order for us to process the ap.plication,
we require that you provide the following information and forward this form to the above address or fax it to
(609)984-7954. This form must be completed prior to Division approval of the entity. If you have any
questions, please call Karen Schwacha at (609)633-6606.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Name of Urban Renewal Entity: Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC

SECTION 1: TYPE OF APPROVAL REQUESTED (check one):

Original certificate (of incorporation, limited partnership, formation, etc.)

X Amendment to original certificate (of incorporation, limited partnership, formation, etc.). Note: In
the case of amendments, please forward a copy of original certificate marked "fied, State
Treasuret' or "filed, Secretary of State" with this form.

Other (please specify)

SECTION 2: PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name: Lena Francis Edwards Apartments

Project Street Address: 441-443, 445, 447, 449 and 451-457 Ocean Avenue and 79-81 Dwight Street

Project Block Number(s) 1332 Project Lot Numbers 1, 2, A, B, C, 18.99 and 20.99

Municipality in which the Project is located Jersey City

County in which the Project is located Hudson

SECTION 3 (for project listed in SECTION 2.)

(Check one)
_1. This project is solely a commercial project (with no housing units) developed in a redevelopment area

pursuant to a municipal redevelopment plan.
-next-



URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 2

Name of Urban Renewal Entity: Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC

SECTION 3 (cant.)

_2. This project consists solely of market rate housing units developed in a redevelopment area

pursuant to a municipai redevelopment plan.

NOTE: If you checked 1 or 2, complete SECTIONS 4, 6, and 7.

_3. The project consists of low and moderate income housing units, which may include senior citizen low
and moderate income housing units.

NOTE: If you checked 3, complete SECTION 5, 6, and 7.

L 4. This project consists of mixed uses.
Specify type:
_Market rate and low and moderate income housing.
_Commercial and market rate housing.
LCommercial and low and moderate income housing.
_Other (please describe).

NOTE: If you checked 4, complete SECTIONS 4,5,6, and 7.

SECTION 4:REDEVELOPMENT PLAN INFORMATION

Name of Municipal Redevelopment Agency Jersey City Redevelopment Agency

Citation of municipal ordinance adopting the redevelopment plan Turnkey Redevelopment Plan

For housing projects, complete the following:
Specify type and number of units as applicable:

_Condominium units
_Market rate rental
LLow and moderate income in mixed use projects 64
_Senior citizen in mixed use projects
_Other (please specify)

Total number of units

SECTION 5: PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES

The low and moderate income housing project wil be financed or insured by which of the following (check
all applicable):
_ Private funds(Please specify)

L State or Federal financing or insuring agencies (Please specify below)
_Other (Please specify)

-next-



URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 3

Name of Urban Renewal Entity: Genesis Ocean- Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC

SECTION 5: PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES (cant.)

State or Federal Financing or Insuring Agencies for the Project (check all that apply):

NJ Department of Community Affairs:
_Neighborhood Preservation Balanced Housing
_Downtown Living Initiative Program
_HOME - Housing Production Investment Fund
_HOME - Neighborhood Preservation
_HOME - Rental Rehabilitation

NJ Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency:
_NJ Community Housing Demo Program (developmental disabilities)
_ NJ Supportive Housing Program

_Shared Residence Rental Housing Program (community residence)
_Transitional Housing Revolving Loan Program

_Multifamily Rental Housing Program

_Public Housing Construction and Permanent Loan Program

_Rental Housing Incentive Finance Fund

_100% Mortgage Program
_Urban Home Ownership Recovery Program
L Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Allocation Program

NJ Redevelopment Authority:
LNJ Urban Site Acquisition Program

US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
_Section 811 Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilties
_Section 202 Supportive Housing for the Elderly
_HOPE Vi Grants
LHOME Program

US Department of Agriculture
_Rural Resources Administration (formerly Farmers' Home Administration)

_Other (Please specify)

List the information of the State or Federal financing or insuring agency's contact person:
Name: Darice Toon
Title: Director
Department/Agency: City of Jersey City Department of Housing Commerce and Economic Development
Division of Community Development
Address: 30 Montgomery Street, 4th Floor, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Telephone Number

-next-



URBAN RENEWAL ENTITIES
DISCLOSURE INFORMATION, PAGE 4

Name of Urban Renewal Entity: Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC

SECTION 6: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION/OWNERSHIP

L 1. The project is new construction.

_2. An existing project is being rehabilitated.
If rehab, specify name of individual, entity, etc. who is the current owner of the project.

_3. Ownership of an existing project is being transferred to the new urban renewal entity.
If transfer, specify name of individual, entity, etc. from whom the project is being or has been
transferred.

Is the transferor entity a limited dividend corporation or association, established pursuant to the
Limited Dividend and Nonprofi HousingCorporations and Associations Law, N.J.SA55:16-1 et
seq.? (yes or no)

Is the transferor entity an existing urban renewal entity established pursuant to the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law, N.J.SA 40A:20-1 et seq.? (yes or no)

~ 4. Has this project caused or will this project cause displacement of individuals or businesses? (yes or
no)yes

SECTION 7:CERTIFICATION
NOTE: This certification must be completed by an individual authorized to execute the certificate of
incorporation (incorporator), the certificate of limited partnership (general partner), or other similar certificate
or statement as may be required by law.

CERTIFICATION
I attest that the information stated herein is truthful and accurate to the best of my knowledge and

understand that failure to fully and accurately disclose any information may delay processing the application
while the Department investigates the application and project. Further, I understand that any project of the
urban renewal entity may be subject to.additional Department review and approval, pursuant to
the requirements of the Limited Dividend and Nonprofi Corporations or Associations Law, N.J.SA 55:16-1
et seq., the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, N.J.SA 40A:20-1 et s q., and/or rules governing Limited
Dividend and Nonprofit Housing Corporations and Associ tions a Urban Renewal Entities, N.JAC. 5:13-
1 et seq.

Sworn to me
day of (mo/da

6eo~ L.G.'Yric~~ ;trv..~..JC-r¿~K lit .SJ7 ör JV è.?Û .j ~ q /'~ , l,A S\)'n
(notary public/attorney) .o(print name of authorized individual)
Rev. 8/2006

Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC



EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION AS TO CONSTRCUTION START

The undersigned being a sole member of Genesis Ocean Associates
Urban Renewal Co., LLC, the Applicant and developer of the a proposed Project
hereby certifies that:

1 . Construction of the Project has not and will not commence prior to

the final approval and execution of a Financial Agreement between
the city and the undersigned.

2. The foregoing statements made by me this day of July,
2011 are true to the best of my knowledge and I understand that if it
is wilfully false, i am subject to punishment.

Genesis Ocean sociates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC

DATE: 71 tS /z-l.~t' I By:

Member
Title of Person Signing
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EXHIBIT K

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLINACE WITH LAWS

The undersigned being the sole Member Manager of Genesis Ocean
Associates, Urban Renewal Co., LLC, the Applicant and developer of the a
proposed Project hereby certifies that:

1. The Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New

Jersey and the City of Jersey City for consideration for granting the
tax exemption requested in this application.

2. The foregoing statements made by me this day of July,
2011 are true to the best of my knowledge and I understand that if it
is willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

Genesis Ocean sociates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC

DATE: 7 f 5/1 Ö ,'I By:

Member
Title of Person Signing

20



EXHIBIT L

CERTIFICATION OF DUE DILIGENCE

The undersigned being the sole Member of Pacific Landing Urban
Renewal Co., LLC, LLC, the Applicant and developer of the a proposed Project
hereby certifies that:

1. All information contained in the application for tax abatement is true

and correct to the developer's knowledge, after he has made
dilgent inquiry to confirm the accuracy of all information.

2. The foregoing statements made by me this day of July,
2011 are true to the best of my knowledge and i understand that if it
is wilfully false, i am subject to punishment.

Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal
Co., LLC

DATE: ì /25/.tO i/ By:
Karim Hutson, Member

Member
Title of Person Signing
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EXHIBIT M

PROPOSED FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

FOR

GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC

(SEE ATTACHED)

22



Rev. 8-23-05

Long Term Tax Exemption
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.
(Mfordable Residential Rental)

Re: 441-443 Ocean Avenue

445, 447 and 449 Ocean Avenue
451-457 Ocean Avenue and
79-81 Dwight Street
Jersey City, New Jersey
Block 1332, Lots 1,2, A, B, C, 20.99 and 18.92

An Redevelopment Plan Area and
Urban Enterprise Zone

PREAMBLE

TilS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, (AgreementJ is made as of this day of

,2011, by and between GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES URBAN RENEWAL Co., LLC

an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long

Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq.,

having its principal offce at 594 Broadway, Suite 1107, New York, New York 10012 (EntityJ,

and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Muncipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having

its principal offce at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 (CityJ.

RECITALS

WIT N E SSE T H:

WHREAS, the Entity is the Lessee of certain propert designated as Block

1332, Lots 1,2, A, B, C, 20.99 and 18.92, more commonly known by the street address of 441-

443 Ocean Avenue, 445, 447 and 449 Ocean Avenue, 451-457 Ocean Avenue and 79-81 Dwight

Street and more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhbit 1

to this Agreement; and

WHREAS, this propert is an affordable housing proj ect located withn the boundaries

of an Urban Enterprise Zone and the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan Area; and
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WHEREAS, the Entity proposes to develop an affordable housing project pursuant to

and in fuherance of the objectives of the Turey Redevelopment Plan. The development shall

consist of a five (5) story multi-famly building contaig sixty (64) affordable residential rental

dwellng unts, containing twenty-four (24) one (1) bedroom unts, 20 two (2) bedroom unts and

twenty (20) thee (3) unts and approximately 4,465 square feet of office/retail space on the

ground floor with twenty-two (22) on-site parking spaces.

(Project); and

WHEREAS, on , 2011_, the Entity filed an Application with the

City for a long term tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1. the curent real estate tax would generate $7,668.56, if 
the property were

subject to conventional taxes, whereas, the Anual Service charge as
estimated, and wil generate revenue to the City of approximately

$40,413.00;

2. it is expected that the Project wil create approximately 100 jobs during

constrction and 4 new permanent part-time jobs;

3. the project should stabilze and contribute to the economic growt of

existing local business and to the creation of new business, which cater to
the new residents;

4. the project provides 64 unts of affordable housing which advances an

inerently beneficial public purose notwithstanding that the City's impact

analysis, on fie with the Office ofthe City Clerk, indicates that the service
charge wil not support the cost of providing muncipal services to the
Project; and

B. Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtainng development of

the project and infuencing the locational decisions of 
probable occupants:
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1. the relative stability and predictability of the anual service charges wil

make the Project more attactive to investors and lenders needed to
finance the Proj ect; and

2. the relative stability and predictability ofthe service charges will allow the

owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will insure
the likelihood of the success of the Project and insure that it will have a
positive impact on the surounding area; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on ,2011, the Muncipal

Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption application and authorized the

execution of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERA PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor,

02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance _' which authorized the execution of this

Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the

facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhbit 3, in

granting this tax exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwse or the context otherwse requires, when used in

this Agreement, the following terms shall have the followig meanngs:

1. Afordable Low or Moderate Income - A Person or Household whose total Gross

Anual Income is equal to between 30% and 80% or less of the median gross income figue

established by geographic region and household size using the income gudeline approved for

use by the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing or as it may be amended pursuant to
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NJ.A.C.5:92-12.

11. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arved at by applying the Allowable Profit

Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

ll. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arived

at by adding 1.25% to the anual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per

anum basis, shall be considered as interest for ths purose. If there is no permanent mortgage

financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related par, the Allowable Profit

Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arrived at by adding 1.25% per

anum to the interest rate per anum which the muncipality determines to be the prevailing rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

iv. Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project of

whatever kid or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third

paries, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, laundry, health

club user fees or other services (such as lease premiums for views, fireplaces, etc.). No

deductions wil be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, but not limited to gas,

electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance charges, whether paid

for by the landlord, tenant or a third pary, except for customar operating expenses of

commercial tenants such as utilities, insurance and taxes (including payments in lieu of taxes)

which shall be deducted from Gross Revenue based on the actual amount of such costs incured.

v. Anual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City for

muncipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12.

_ Vi. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the financial status of

the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context), which shall also include a certification

of Total Proj ect Cost and clear computation of Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report

shall have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting priciples and shall

contain at a minimum the followig: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of
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retained earngs or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of

accounting policies, notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory

material results of operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor's

Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public

accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of 
New Jersey.

vu. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to N.J.S.A.

52:27D-133.

V1l. Debt Service - The amount required to make anual payments of principal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including retus on institutional equity financing and market rate related pary debt

for the project for a period equal to the term of 
this agreement.

ix. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.

x. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Genesis Ocean

Associates Urban Renewal Co., LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A.

40A:20-5. It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of 

the Project,

provided they are formed and operate under the Law.

Xl. Improvements or Project - Any building, strctue or fixtue permanently affixed

to the land and to be constrcted and tax exempted under ths Agreement.

xu. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A sumar proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-

129 s?t seq.

X11. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value ofland, if any, on which

the project is located and, if applicable, taes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes

may be exempt; however, if Land Taxes are levied, Entity shall receive a credit against the

Anual Service Charge.

xiv. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarerly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax
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Collector.

xv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of 

the Mayor 02-003, relating to long

term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance

which authorized the execution of ths Agreement; and Ordinance 07-123, as may be amended or

supplemented from time to time, which requirès the execution of a Project Labor Agreement, and

all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rues and regulations.

XVi. Minimum Anual Service Charge - The Minium Anual Service Charge shall

be the greater of:

(a) the amount of 
the total taxes levied against all real propert in the area

coveredby the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to

taxation, or in the case of tax exempt propert, the projected tax levy based upon

the assessed value for the year in which the application is filed, which amount the

paries agree would be $0.00; or

(b) the sum of $ per year, which sum wil be prorated only in the years in

which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement termnates.

The Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be paid in each year in which the

Anual Service Charge, calculated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be

less than the Minmum Anual Service Charge.

XVll. Net Profit - The Gross Revenues of the Entity less all operating and non-operating

expenses of the Entity, all determed in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Anual Service charges paid pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-

15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an anual amount suffcient to amortize (utilizing the straight line

method-equa anual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determed in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable

annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the
j

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commssions,
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insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional

service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into

repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to

ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is par of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, ?r

offcers, parners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xviii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of the

Project.

xx. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

XXI. Total Project Cost - The total ~ost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred

by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are

associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinar costs incured

including the cost of demolishing structues, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final

Total Project Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total Project Cost.

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be

constrcted and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and

the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain propert known
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on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block2053, Lot 7 A and 8, more commonly

known by the street address of 317 - 319 Pacific Avenue, and described by metes and bounds in

Exhbit 1 attached hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as

Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Communty Afairs;

and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Offce of the State Treasurer or Offce of the Hudson

County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5.

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct a multi-family strctue, consisting of a five story

building, containing 64 affordable residential unts to famlies of low income; There wil be one

superintendent unt. The project will contain twenty-four (24) one-bedroom unts, twenty (20)

two (2) bedroom units and twenty (20) three (3) bedroom unts all of which is specifically

described in the Application attached hereto as Exhbit 3.

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhbit 5.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of 
the property upon which the Project is to be

constructed. Upon constrction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be managed

and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents that it is the designated redeveloper of the Propety upon which the

Project is to be constructed and will manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that

the Entity may enter into futue management agreements so long as such agreements are not used

to reduce the City's economic benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be paid

are comparable to those disclosed in the application.
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Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhbit 6. The Plan sets forth estimated Total Project Cost, the

amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of fuds, the interest rates to be paid on

construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of any mortgage

amortization.

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules and

lease terms are set forth in Exhbit 7.

ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the paries hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of _ years

from the date of the adoption of Ordinance_on _ , 2011, which approved the tax

exemption or 30 years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project. The tax

exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall

continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and

operating under the Law.

ARTICLE IV - ANAL SERVICE CHAGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to

the City:

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minmum Anual
Service Charge or an Anual Service Charge equal to 8.00% of the Anual Gross Revenue for

the low and moderate income unts and 8.00% for the Anual Gross Revenue of the

commercial/retail space. The Anual Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the

Entity's estimates of Annual Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of
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Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhbit 6. Thereafter, the

Anual Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement.

A Minium Anual Service Charge shall be due beginng on the effective date

of ths Agreement. The Anual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month

following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay

the Minmum Anual Service Charge or the Anual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall

bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or ta liens on land until

paid.

(ii) County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Anual Service Charge

upon receipt of that charge, for remittance to the County by the City.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Anual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

1. Stage One: From the first day of the month followig Substantial Completion

until the last day of the fifteenth year, the Anual Service Charge shall be 8.00% of Anual

Gross Revenue for the commercial/retail units and 8.00% for the low and moderate income unts;

11. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1st day of the 16th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual

Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and

Improvements;

11. Stage Three: Beginng on theIst day of 
the 22nd year following the Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 27tl year, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual

Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwse due on the value of the land and

Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on theIst day of the 28th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual

Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwse due on the value of the land and

Improvements.
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v. Final Stage: Beginnng on theIst day of the 30th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Anual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwse due on the value of the land

and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Credits

The Entity is required to pay both the Anual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Anual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarerly installments

against the Anual Service Charge. In any quarer that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land

Tax Payment credits against the Anual Service Charge for that quarter. No credit will be

applied against the Anual Service Charge for partial payments of Land Taxes. In addition, the

City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default

and terminate this Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Anual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within th (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Anual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear

the highest rate of interest permtted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid.
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Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an anual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the

Anual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two

(2%) percent of each prior year's Anual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on

or before December 31 st of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Anual Service

Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount

unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on

the land until paid.

Section 4.6 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum

Anual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative

Fees, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Labor Agreement and Project Employment and Contracting

Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhbit 8. In addition, the Entity

shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance 07-123 as it exists or as it

may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely maner so as to complete construction in accordance with
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the proposed constrction schedule attched 
hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the propert to full taxation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completiòn and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filng of Certifcate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibilty of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to fie such issued Certificate of Occupancy as requied by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive biling with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. An Auditor's Report: With niety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar

year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the

Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Muncipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Governent Services in the Deparment of Communty Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to: the

terms and interest rate on any mortgagee s) associated with the purchase or constrction of the

Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of 
the Entity and to its operation and

performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly

identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity durng the previous year.
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B. Disclosure Statement: On the anversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and

each and every year thereafer while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the

Muncipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those muncipal

offcials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership

interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time.

Section 7.3 Inspection! Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its propert, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City and the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in

the Deparment of Communty Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of 
the business day, in the presence of an offcer or agent designated

by the Entity.

All costs incured by the City to conduct the audit, including reasonable attorneys' fees if

appropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Anual

Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a delinquent

service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

Durng the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:20-15.
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The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,

and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of

the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such par of the excess

Net Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.J.S.A.

40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no fuher credits thereto

shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of 

five (5%) percent of

the preceding year's Gross Revenue.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any fiscal year, shall exceed the Allowable

Net Profits for such period, then the Entity, withi one hundred and twenty (120) days after the

end of such fiscal year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional service

charge; provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the entity's excess net profits shall include

those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other

costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this agreement even

though those costs may have been deducted from the project costs for puroses of calculating the

anual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or
Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal

year of the Entity. Withi ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the excess Net Profit,

if any.
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ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void uness approved in advance by

Ordinance of the Municipal CounciL. It is understood and agreed that the City, on wrtten

application by the Entity, wil not uneasonably withold its consent to a sale of the Project and

the transfer of this Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not Own any other Project subject

to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to

operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the

Entity's obligations under this Agreement is fully assumed by the new Entity, 5) the Entity shall

pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then curent Anual Service Charge as required by

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-10d.

Section 9.2 Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in

ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to

the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Muncipal Council for appropriate

action on the rtquested assignent. The fee shall be non-refudable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not

only be termable as provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as curently amended and
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supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with

the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other

remedies, have the right to termate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-

005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.

The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a

Default under this Agreement and the City shan, among its other remedies, have the right to

termnate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or

failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default (Default Notice). The Default Notice shall set fort with paricularty the basis of the

alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60)' days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure

any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in

the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default canot be cured withi sixty (60) days using

reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the

right to termate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.
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Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.8, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provided in Aricle XLI herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, NJ.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may declare a

Default and termate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land

Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, , or the Anual Service

Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in Aricle XI herein,

but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in

Aricle XII. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and

remedies .granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurent. No termination of

any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against

the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minium Anual Service Charge,

Anual Service Charge, or Adminstrative Fees. This right shall apply to arearages that are due

and owig at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the futue become due as if

there had been no termnation. Furer, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minium

Anual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, or for breach of

covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall

not be constred as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax

sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.
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In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Aricle

IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and

property, in the maner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to

mean taxes or muncipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is

pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or muncipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XLI- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided

in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to

the Entity (Notice of Termination).

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the

Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes its status

as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Anual Service Charges

and the profit and dividend restrictions shall termate.
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Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Withn ninety (90) days afer the date of termnation, whether by affrmative action of the

Entity or by virte of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the

provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excess Net Profits. For puroses of

rendering a final accounting the termnation of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of

the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project

shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.

Section 12.5 Termination Payment

In addition to any other remedies available to the City upon termination whether

volunta or upon default, the Entity shall pay to the City an amount equal to the difference

bètween the service charge actually paid and the service charge that would have been due had

each adjustment period provided in Section 4.2 hereof, been of the shortest duration permitted

by law, thereby generating the most accelerated increases, permitted by law.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the withn Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a

dispute arsing between the paries in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,

either par may apply to the Superior Cour of New Jersey by an appropriate proceedig, to

settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as wil tend to accomplish the puroses of the Law.
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In the event the Superior Cour shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the paries shall submit the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance

with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be borne equally by the paries. The paries

agree that the Entity may not file an action in Superior Cour or with the Arbitration Association

uness the Entity has first paid in ful all charges defined in Aricle IV, Section 4.7 as Material

Conditions.

ARTICLE xiv - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided

herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount which the

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as par defendant in

any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement

and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City

haress. against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees

and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this

indemnty) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or

common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the puroses of this

indemnfication. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense, counsel to be

selected by the City, subject to the reasonable consent of the Entity. However, the City

maintains the right to intervene as a part thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereofto be borne by the City.

21



ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certifed Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either par to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, retu receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal Co~, LLC
594 Broadway, Suite 1107
New York, New York 10012

Attn.: Mr. Karim Hutson

With a copy to:

Garcia Turla, LLC
P.O. Box 291
Jersey City, New Jersey 07303
Att.: George L. Garcia, Esq.

uness prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
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uness prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Propert's Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERAILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or condition of, this, Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the paries shall cooperate with each. .
other to take the actions reasonably required to restóre the Agreement in a maner contemplated

by the paries and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-

execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the

paries and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this

Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be constred and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring

constrction against the par drawig or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
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Section 18.2 Conflcts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflct between the Application and the language

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevaiL. In the event of confict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevaiL.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,

and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the paries and there shall be no

modifications thereto other than by a wrtten instrent approved and executed by both paries

and del1vered to each pary.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Muncipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a par hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City.

Section 18.6 Pending Litigation

The Entity fully and freely holds the City harmless and assumes any risk that may effect

the present or futue validity of the withi financial agreement, arising from any other litigation.
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ARTICLE xix - EXIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhbits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at

lengt herein:

1.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Agreement;
9.

Metes and Bounds description ofthe Project;
Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of ths Agreement;
The Application with Exhbits;
Certificate of the Entity;
Estimated Construction Schedule;

The Financial Plan for the undertakng of the Project;

Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms;
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement & Project Labor

Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.

IN WITNESS WHREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

ATTEST:

ATTEST:

GENESIS OCEAN
RENEWAL CO., LLC

ASSOCIATES URAN

By:
Karim Hutson, Member

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

John Kelly

Business Administrator
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EXHIBITN

PROPOSED PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

FOR

GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC

(SEE 
AnACHED)
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4-20-11

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the _ day of_,

201 1,between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City) and GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES
URBAN RENEWAL CO., LLC, having its principal offce at 594 Broadway, Suite 1107, New
York, New York 10012. Recipient agrees as follows:

I. Dermitions:

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanngs uness the context clearly indicates otherWise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in par, this agreement.

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, strcture, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site.

3. "Contractor" means any par performing or offering to perform a prime contract on

behalf of the Recipient.

4. "DEa" means the Division of Economic Opportunty under the Deparent of

Admnistration, located at 1 Joural Square Plaza, 2nd Floor, Jersey City, NJ 07306,

Telephone #(201) 547-5611. DEa is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting
coordination and monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project
which requires approval of the Muncipal Council and which reduces the anual amount
of taxes otherwse due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase
of the project. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions,
termations, or expansions with the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by
new employees. However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's
existing work force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

8. Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEa

under the Deparent of Admstration responsible for collecting local and minority
business contracts and capabilty inormation. This group operates the Supplier Alert
service which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting
and constrction subcontracting goals.

9. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanc, Asian, or American Indian defined
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as follows:

a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any of 
the black racial

groups of Africa.

b) "Hispanc" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South
American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding,
however, persons of European origin.

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any ofthe original people ofthe Far

East, Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of 
the original people of

North America who maitains cultual identification though tribal affliation or
communty recogntion.

10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in
Jersey City which is fift-one (51 %) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Deparent of 

Labor, Division of Labor Market,

and Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City
Clerk.

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, par time or seasonal.

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

contract.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member of the DEO staff
under the Deparent of Admstration who is in charge of coordinating Project
Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects
covered by Project Employment & Contraèting Agreements wil direct inquiries to the
Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member ofthe DEO

staff under the Deparment of Admnistration directly under the command of 
the Project

Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site,
collecting the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment &
Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Officer" is an employee of 
the

Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance
with the Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting agreement.
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17. "Recipient" means any individual, parership, association, organzation, corporation or

other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent
of the Recipient.

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the

City or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses,
including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seekig contracts.

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is par of a prime contract.

20. "Subcontractor" means a thid par that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform
under a subcontract all or par of the work included in an original contract.

21. "Substantial Completion" means the determnation by the City that the Project, in whole
or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.

II. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunties for City residents,
paricularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportties for Local Businesses,
especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or
relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent
mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hie whomever they choose.

III. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals durng the term of this agreement, the
Recipient will not be requied to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth
in Section VI 1., A-L (Constrction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs). All goals for
Constrction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of 

the total number of work hours in each

trade from the beging of the project to its completion.

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing fift-one (51 %) percent City residents, fifty-one (51 %) percent of 

whom

are residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of
whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more
than one category.
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2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fift-
one (51 %) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. Iffifty-one
(51 %) percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses canot be obtained, that
percentage of contracts must stil be applied to local vendors.

IV. Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal offcer of its firm to be responsible for
administerig the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Offcer.

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the "Project Employment &
Contracting Compliance Offcer" to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to
any preconstrction meetings. An example of ths letter can be found in Appendix A. This
principle offcer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer" to the employees of the Recipient's company. An example of this letter

can be found in Appendix AZ

V. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-termnus with the effective period of 
the

ta exemption (the Economic Incentive). Thus, it wil commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 33 years
from the date of the adoption of that Ordinance or 30 years from the date of Substantial
Completion of the Project.

VI. Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Intial Manng Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manng Report.

ii) The Initial Mang Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each
constrction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked by City
residents, including a list of the number of minority residents and women
residents that wil work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be
performed by such employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors.
Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient's Initial Manng Report.
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iii) The Intial Manng Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and

Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient enterig
into any constrction contract. An example of ths acceptance letter is given in
Appendix C.

B. Developer's Contracting Obligations

i) Once the developer submits the project's intial mang report, he/she must

forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any
constrction or building operating goods, services and sub-contracting

opportties. An example ofthis letter is given in Appendix D.

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and

individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which wil
be sent to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program at DEO
under the Deparment of Administration. An example of this letter can be found
in Appendix D2.

C. Contractor's/Subcontractor's Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Proj ect, each Contractor or Subcontractor
must agree in wrting to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each unon with which he/she has a collective
bargaining agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a unon statement for the particular

unon to sign, which claims the unon wil use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals ariculated in the Project Employment & Contracting
agreement. This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the
signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor in DEO under the Deparment of Administration before
work stars in order for a developer to be in compliance.

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the

City of any refusal or failure of a unon to sign the statement. If a paricular unon
refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient wil document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the unon for not signng such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
DEO under the Deparment of Administration.

5



E. Sub-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance
of his /her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting
requirements during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a
portion ofthe work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained in these supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and miority apprentices account
for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by unon apprentices on the job in each
trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-joumey-worker
ratio contaied in the collective bargainng agreement between the varous unons, and shall hold
each of his /her subcontractors to ths requirement. The Recipient wil require the contractor or
subcontractor to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and
minority apprentices.

G. Monthy Manng Report

i) The Recipient wil cause the Contractor to complete and submit MontWy Project

Manng Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO
under the Deparment of Administration by the seventh day of the month
following the month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the
contract.

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each constrction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number
of minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and wil
list separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and
each of its Subcontractors during the previous month. The MontWy Manng
Report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintainig or causing the Contractor to maintain

records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or
Subcontractors.

H. MontWy Certified Payroll Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to fush the Project Employment &

Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The
reports wil specify the residence, gender and ethnc/racial origin of each worker,
work hours and rate of pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report
shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

ii) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthy basis with the MontWy Mang
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Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

1. Equal Employment Opportty Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the

most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Inormation Report (EEO-2)
which are requied to be filed with the US Commssion of Equal Employment Opportty
Commission by the collective bargainng unt. These reports wil be forwarded to the Project
Employment & Contracting Monitor within one month of the signng ofthe Project Employment
& Contracting Agreement.

1. Other Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall fuish such reports or other
documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the
puroses of this agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient wil insure that the City wil have reasonable access to all records and fies
reasonably necessary to confrm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The City wil physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify

the accuracy of the montWy reports. Each work site wil be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed
reasonably necessar by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report." An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in
Appendix 1.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with

the City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This inclúdes specifically instructing the on-site
construction manager about the monitoring process, and informing himJer that

the monitor will contact hiher to set up an initial meeting. In the case of
projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates.

they are workig at each site location( s) where they are workig, in order to
facilitate the monitoring.

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following
conditions:

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiing of a Recipient's
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit
down with the head of the Registr to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent
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workforce. The following issues should be covered in ths meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hirig process.

ii) the specific tyes of jobs that need to be filled.
iii) the qualifications needed for these paricular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient's goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of

its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the
subcontracting pary that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement
before said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a
copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An
example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Offcer to meet with
the head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the

same requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken
place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for futue permanent
employment needs. This plan should sumarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring
Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment
goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the
Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example ofthis plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a
written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minium qualifications, rate of
pay, hours of work and the hirig date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective
terms which will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient wil place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must fush the Project

Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Deparent of Administration with a
copy of this advertisement.

E. Pre-Hirg Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maitained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the
advertisement.
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F. Semi-Anual Employment Reports: The Recipient wil submit wrtten semi-anual
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident,
minority resident or woman resident. The report wil explain in writing the reasons why any
qualified applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any
qualified person responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of 

this report is

found in Appendix K.

G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all fies
and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessar to confrm the
accuracy ofthe inormation set forth in the semi-aIiual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy ofthe information set forth in the
semi-anual reports.

i. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall fush

such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to
implement the puroses of this agreement.

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of 
this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,
maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose
personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of 
the followig conditions:

1) Solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramah T. Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any
construction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting
opportties. An example of ths letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) Afer submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was
accepted or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of 

this documentation

can be found in Appendix D2.

i) Semi-Anual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient wil submit written semi-
anual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts
awarded over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these
contracts. The reports will specify the number and dollar amount of
contracts awarded to Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned
Local Businesses. An example of these reports can be found in Appendix
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L.

ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors
that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Deparment of
Admnistration of a Recipient, either knowingly or unowigly, using the masthead of a local
or minority owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it
should not, wil immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section Vin (d)
below.

4. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

1. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A)

2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Offcer to Recipient's Employees

(App.)AZ
3. Example of Initial Manng Report (Appendix B)
4. Letter Of Acceptace of Initial Maning Report (Appendix C)

5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and

Residential Vendors from Mayor Jerramah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Prograi

(Appendix D)
6. Documentation of Bid Submission (AppendixD2)
7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/

Subcontractors (Appendix E)
8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)
9. Example of Monthly Mang Report (Appendix G)
10. Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H)
11. Example ofBi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I)
12. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix 1)
13. Example of Semi-Anual Employment Report (Appendix K)
14. Exanple of Semi-Anual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

VII. Notices of Violation:

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The
Advisory Notice shall explain in suffcient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have four (4) workig days to correct the violation. An example of an
Advisory Notice can be found in Appendix M.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then
issue a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in suffcient
detail the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient wil have three (3)
working days to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in
AppendixN.
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3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may

be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and
so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended.ifthe Recipient enters into
satisfactory wrtten agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

5. Meetings Concernng Violations: The City may provide an opportty for a meeting

with the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance;
or may respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely
submission of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be
requested no later than two days afer the alleged violator has submitted the written
explanation.

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request

additional inormation from appropriate paÍies as is considered necessar to determine
whether the alleged violation has occured.

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thi days after the

delivery ofthe Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the
Recipient is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided
below.

VIII. Liquidated Damages/lnterest:

Whle reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the paries agree that damages for violations of ths
agreement by the Recipient canot be calculated withi any reasonable degree of mathematical

certainty. Therefore, the paries agree that upon the occurence of a material breach of any of the
above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation,
the City wilbe entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a) failure to fie Initial Mang Reports (Constrction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring

Notification (Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business
Contracting): an amount equal to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated
anual payment in lieu of taxes;

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement

(Constrction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to
Thee (3 %) percent increase in the estimated anual payment in lieu of taxes;

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports
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(all categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated
anual payment in lieu of taxes.

d) the use of the local or local minority business' masthead for labor or work

supplied by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%)
percent increase in the estimated anual payment in lieu of taxes. Interest shall
be charged on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax
Collector.

e) the late payment of any liquidated sum shall accrue interest at the rate of 8%.

ix. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

1. The Recipient shall send all tenants, of commercial space withi the Project Site a
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as
Appendix O.

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about

the composition of the work force of each tenant. The inormation solicited wil
be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall
provide the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P.

3. The Recipient wil send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October 3 i of each year.

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space withi the Project Site a

Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.
x. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either par to the other, shall be sent by
certified mail, retu receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recip!ent it shall be addressed to:

Genesis Ocean Associates Urban Renewal Co, LLC
594 Broadway, Suite i 107
New York, New York 10012

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:
Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
Deparent of Admistration
Division of Economic Opportty
1 Joural Square Plaza

2nd Floor

Jersey City, New Jersey 07306
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with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; uness prior to
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by
the Municipal CounciL.

XII. Controllng Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conficts
with any collective bargainig agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargainng agreement.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne
City Clerk

John Kelly
Business Administrator

WITNESS: GENESIS OCEAN ASSOCIATES URBAN
RENEWAL CO., LLC

Secretary By: Karim Hutson
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